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ATFEM
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ATFEM

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE
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RESULTS

Revenues
Gross profit
Operating loss
Loss attributable to:
(i) Owners of the Company
(ii) Non-controlling interests
Loss per share — Basic (RMB)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets

Total debt

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to:
(i) Owners of the Company
(ii) Non-controlling interests

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND SUMMARY
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For the year ended 31 December
BE+-_A=+—HLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
IR ZZI-F ZTITE Z-HhFE IZNF
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
AE®TRE AREBTT ARBTn ARETn ARETR

129,321 265,158 126,384 122,374 55,016
10,829 21,729 13,870 21,044 18,495
(80,476) (213,310) (74,812) (121,284) (156,578)

(169,809) (187,468) (73,784) (139,165) (164,403)
1,894 (1,396) (755) (4,385) (194)
(0.1668) (0.2029) (0.0889) (0.2028) (0.3161)

BEEREE
As at 31 December
®+=ZB=+—8
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

—_E_"E —"T--F "T-ZE _—T-hE T)\E
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTrn ARETT ARETn ARETx
257,289 240,045 433,245 465,158 477,201
54,422 194,436 193,623 169,124 177,061
219,333 359,565 371,513 350,043 289,239

5,686 (125,626) 54,230 106,907 175,282
32,270 6,106 7,502 8,208 12,680
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AND SUMMARY

RS E R 2

FINANCIAL RATIOS

2022 2021 2020 2019
R F CZE--% ZE”TFE ZT-hE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR ARETR AR¥ETR AREBTR
Gross profits margins: ERE:
(i) Overall () =g 8.4% 8.2% 17.2% 33.6%
(i) Newspaper and vehicles advertising (i) BAERBGHEEES 18.9% 58.5% 45.4% 57.1%
(ili) Marketing, consulting and printing services (i) E#HFAR
ENRIBR (0.8%) 4.2% 25.6% 30.7%
(iv) Sales of agricultural products (v HEREMD 13.6% 9.9% 12.5% 0.5%
(v) Others (v) Hth 38.0% (236.3%) 37.5% 100%
Operating margins REFBE (62.4%) (80.5%) (59.2%) (99.1%)
Net margins FHE% (129.8%)  (71.2%)  (59.0%)  (117.2%
Return on equity © BAERED (442.4%) (158%)  (1207%)  (124.7%)
Return on assets @ BEDRER (65.3%) (78.7%) (17.2%) (30.8%)
Trade receivables turnover (days) BoRUFEREX (H) 30.4 23 17 26
Trade payables turnover (days) BoRAFEREX (A) 109 30 168 55
Gearing ratio BEAGILX 21.2% 44.7% 44.7% 36.4%
Notes: P 5E
M Return on equity is calculated based on loss for the year divided by O REAREEREIZFENBERUE RS
total equity.

PAES b=

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2018
ZE-N\E
RMB'000
AREFT

27.7%
40.9%

24.9%

(284.7%
(299.3%
(87.6%
(34.5%
46

404
37.1%

)
)
)
)

LR

@ Return on assets is calculated based on loss for the year divided by @ HELRXEFNGERUEEESHE.

total assets.
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According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, China’s
GDP exceed RMB121 trillion in 2022, representing a growth
of 3.0% as compared with 2021. The total economic output
reached USD18 trillion, ranking second in the world after the
United States. The per capita GDP of RMB85,698 (equivalent
to USD12,741) remained above the USD12,000 mark. In 2022,
China’s employment and prices were generally stable, with the
national urban survey unemployment rate down to 5.5% at year-
end from its high in April last year. China’s consumer price index
(CPI) went up by only 2.0% for the whole year, far lower than the
8.0% rise in the United States and 8.4% rise in the Eurozone and

other developed economies,

Under the influence of multiple unexpected challenges such
as the epidemic impact and complex and acute domestic and
international market environments, China’s advertising market
continued to decline since the beginning of 2022. The overall
market showed obvious signs of recovery in the second half year,
but owing to the epidemic rebound in the fourth quarter, the
placement of multiple types of advertising channels was affected,
and once again entered a volatile stage. According to data from
Media Intelligence of CCTV Market Research (CTR), China’s
annual advertising market in 2022 decreased by 11.8% year-on-
year. Advertising revenues of traditional outdoor, newspaper, and
cinema video declined significantly, while television, elevator, and

Internet advertising fluctuated but performed resiliently.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHREE

RIBFFBEERAS B ZE2022FFEGDPHE
BARBI218ET B2021F1EK3.0%; &
BREZEISEBEED ERNER BEHA
B N\MBERNEEMRES ARKSS,6987T
MEE12,741E0 HERTEI2EZTU
Fo2022FFEMEMYBRBEE > FX2
Bl RS R EEXREFIB M BRER
5.5%  FEIERMEEBRERIEH(CPN2FEE L
2.0% » = ER EES.0% Bt &8.4% & 3
AT BE YRR

ERIEBER BEAIITHREEERIE
FLEBRANRBNOTET > 20228 HE N
ROEESHHFETNE TH+EEEDS
BEABNLOATSR BEHRROFTERER
BoZHEETEENRBRRIRE BIREA
TRBER - RIBREHFZAE(CTRIENE
ABENETR 20285 HAE2FESTHF
EERZ011.8% > B P SN WA~ P RIaE
HWABRBRTRE ER BR EHEESHE
BEREERIEFRY) -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITREHRESE

With the rapid advancement of technology and speedy changes
in the market environment, the advertising industry is swiftly
changing its placement model. Traditional media such as
newspapers, radio, and television are gradually declining, while
the mobile Internet and new media are beginning to dominate
a strong lead. According to QuestMobile, a research institution
specializing in the PRC mobile internet market, the scale of mobile
Internet users in the PRC has exceeded the 1.2 billion mark.
Among them, short videos show significant growth in both media
platforms and advertising forms. In view of the rapid growth of
the market size of short video advertising, the Group entered into
an acquisition agreement with a short video player in PRC on 31
July 2022 to acquire 49.95% equity interests in the short video
player. The short video player operates a video content creation
platform namely Xiaozhu Youban (NF&{BhRR), which provides
content creators with a simple, fast, efficient, and high-value
content open platform for their creation and distribution of short

videos.

According to data published by the China Film Administration,
the total box office of China in 2022 was RMB30.067 billion, only
half of the box office of RMB64.266 billion in 2019 before the
epidemic. Total attendance declined from 123 million in 2021 to
102 million. Movie-going attendance fell from 1.17 billion in 2021
to 710 million. The movie-watching rate continued to decline over
three years, from 8.1% in 2020 to only 5.8% in 2022. According
to preliminary statistical data from the National Film Development
Funds Management Committee, benefiting from the substantial
adjustment of the prevention and control policy, the 2023 Spring
Festival season has ushered in a strong recovery in the film market
in the PRC, laying a solid foundation for the recovery of the
yearly box office. The outlook for 2023 will welcome a box office
rebound, with full-year gross film box office revenue expected to
reach approximately RMB54.6 billion, and the revenue recovery

reaching 85% of the average box office level in 2019.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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For the twelve months ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB129.3 million (2021: RMB265.2 million)
in its principal business. Gross profit was RMB10.8 million (2021:
RMB21.7 million). Net loss after taxation was approximately
RMB167.9 million (2021: RMB188.9 million).

The Group will continue to focus on providing customers
with value-added services such as advertising, marketing and
consulting. At the same time, the Group actively leverages its
experience and resources in the advertising, film, culture and
media industries to develop integrated projects on the theme of
film or media by seeking locations with unique environmental
elements for developing integrated projects focusing on industry
positioning, cultural heritage, tourism features, eco-agriculture,
entertainment and community functions such as health and
wellness. In addition, the Group will continue to strive to identify
suitable industry partners and investment or cooperation projects
to capture business opportunities which form synergy with our
existing businesses, as well as the transformation and upgrade
that combine the strength of online and offline activities in the
new media era. Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank the management team and all employees for their hard
work and dedication. At the same time, | would like to express
my sincere gratitude to our respectable shareholders, customers
and business partners for their long-term trust and unwavering

support.

Chen Zhi
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director
Hong Kong, 31 March 2023

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITEHREE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEREAD R

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2022, both the domestic and international situation was
complex and acute. Despite a smooth start in the first quarter,
the early stage of the second quarter was affected by factors
that exceeded expectations, especially the epidemic in Shanghai
in Spring, which exerted a significant drag on the economic data
in the second quarter. In the second quarter of 2022, China’s
gross domestic product (GDP) growth rate was only 0.4%, which
also posed a new blow to the slowly recovering investment
and consumption from the epidemic. In facing such a difficult
situation, the central government promptly introduced a basket
of policies and successive measures to stabilize the economy,
and all regions and departments performed better coordination
in epidemic prevention and control as well as economic and
social development. Under the accelerated implementation
of the packaged tax and fee support policies, the domestic
economy gradually recovered. The economy stabilized in the
third quarter with a GDP growth rate of 3.9%. In the fourth
quarter, despite the rebounding impact of the epidemic, the
overall recovery persisted under the joint efforts of all parties.
According to the National Bureau of Statistics of China, China’s
GDP exceed RMB121 trillion in 2022,
of 3.0% as compared with 2021.
reached USD18 trillion, ranking second in the world after the
United States. The per capita GDP of RMB85,698 (equivalent
to USD12,741) remained above the USD12,000 mark. In 2022,

representing a growth

The total economic output

China’s employment and prices were generally stable, with the
national urban survey unemployment rate down to 5.5% at year-
end from its high in April last year. China’s consumer price index
(CPI) went up by only 2.0% for the whole year, far lower than the
8.0% rise in the United States and 8.4% rise in the Eurozone and
other developed economies, and significantly lower than the 6%-
10% rise in other emerging economies. “China’s stable price” and

“global inflation” form an extremely sharp contrast.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the advertising and marketing market, the macroeconomic
trends affect brand owners’ confidence in short-term business
operations, which in turn affect the size of budgets spent on
advertising and marketing. China’s advertising market continued
to decline since the beginning of 2022, with a more pronounced
month-on-month decline. The overall market showed obvious
signs of recovery in the second half year, but owing to the
epidemic rebound in the fourth quarter in which some cities
were seriously affected by the epidemic, the placement of
multiple types of advertising channels was affected, and once
again entered a volatile stage. As of December, the advertising
market returned to growth month-on-month. According to data
from Media Intelligence of CCTV Market Research (CTR), China’s
annual advertising market in 2022 decreased by 11.8% year-
on-year. Under the influence of multiple unexpected challenges
such as the epidemic impact and complex and acute domestic
and international market environments, advertising revenues
of traditional outdoor, newspaper, and cinema video declined
significantly, while television, elevator, and Internet advertising
fluctuated but performed resiliently. The four industries of
food, pharmaceuticals, transportation, and household products
ride against the tide in the advertising market. With the
implementation of security regulations such as the Data Security
Law and Personal Information Protection Law one after another,
the IT products and service industries, education and training,
cultural and entertainment industries, medical beauty and health,
games, Internet finance industries, and other sub-segments
were subject to stringent regulation and other factors, with a
large number of brands in the industry being lost, resulting in a
decrease of 34.5% year-on-year in industry advertising placement.
According to the data published by the 2022 China Internet
Advertising Data Report ((CE - EHBEKAESHIER
%)) jointly compiled by Interactive Marketing Lab Zhongguancun
(PR BEEFEIHEEE), PricewaterhouseCoopers, Miaozhen
Academy of Marketing Science (F)#+& #8512 83)and School
of Journalism and Communication of Beijing Normal University
(b REMEAZ2FHEEFEZEPT), in 2022, the size of China’s
Internet advertising market was approximately RMB508.8 billion,
representing a decrease of 6.38% as compared with 2021, which
was the first negative growth in market size in nearly seven years.
The size of China’s Internet marketing market was expected to
be approximately RMB615 billion, representing a decrease of
0.37% as compared with the previous year. The total size of the
advertising and marketing market was approximately RMB1,123.8
billion, representing a decrease of 3.19% as compared with 2021.
The video has become an effective tool for marketing products
and engaging users. Among them, short videos show significant
growth in both media platforms and advertising forms, indicating
that the structure of Internet video advertising was tilting toward
short videos, and the form of short video advertising highlighted
its market advantages.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEREAD R

According to data published by the China Film Administration,
the total box office of China in 2022 was RMB30.067 billion,
representing a decrease of 36.07% as compared to RMB47.033
billion in 2021 and only half of the box office of RMB64.266
billion in 2019 before the epidemic. Among them, the box office
of Chinese films was RMB25.511 billion, accounting for 84.85%
of the total box office. Total attendance declined from 123 million
in 2021 to 102 million. Movie-going attendance fell from 1.17
billion in 2021 to 710 million, with significantly fewer people
going to cinemas. The movie-watching rate continued to decline
over three years, from 8.1% in 2020 to only 5.8% in 2022. In the
three years since the epidemic, China’s film industry fell into the
doldrums, with box office plummeting year-over-year, willingness
to watch movies declining, cinemas struggling to survive, the
propaganda cycle lengthening, and the supply of upstream films
insufficient. Under the influence of the epidemic, the surface
impact was a drop in the box office, and the deeper level was that
consumers” willingness to watch movies declined, as well as their
preferences, requirements for the content, and form of watching

quietly changed.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2022, the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB129.3 million (2021: RMB265.2 million)
in its principal business. Gross profit was RMB10.8 million (2021:
RMB21.7 million), and gross profit margin increased slightly from
8.2% in 2021 to 8.4% in 2022. Net loss after taxation decreased
to approximately RMB167.9 million (2021: RMB188.9 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Newspapers and Public Vehicles Advertising

With the rapid advancement of technology and speedy changes in
the market environment, the advertising industry is swiftly changing
its placement model. Traditional media such as newspapers, radio,
and television are gradually declining, while the mobile Internet and
new media are beginning to dominate a strong lead in the advertising
industry. During the year, the circulation and operation of Southeast
Express operated by the Group continued to be unsatisfactory, coupled
with the termination of the contract of the public vehicles advertising
project in Fuzhou due to changes in the operating environment.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, newspapers and public
vehicles advertising contributed RMB6.5 million to the Group's
revenue, representing a decrease of 51.2% (2021: RMB13.3 million) as

compared to 2021, with a gross profit margin of 18.9%.

Marketing and Consulting Services and Printing Services

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2022, the Group's
revenue from marketing and consulting services was approximately
RMB54.1 million, representing a decrease of 28.0% as compared
with 2021, with a gross loss margin of 1.5%. The revenue from
printing services also decreased to RMB3.0 million, representing
a decrease of 28.6% as compared with 2021, with a gross profit

margin of 9.8%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEERED

Sales of Agricultural Products

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2022, the Group's
revenue from sales of agricultural products was approximately
RMB61.0 million (2021:

margin of 13.6%. The sales of agricultural products of the Group

RMB171.7 million), with a gross profit

mainly focus on ornamental plants, which tend to record higher
sales in the second half year, and the sales of which are generally

peaked towards the end of the calendar year.

Agency commission services
For the twelve months ended 31 December 2022, the Group's
revenue from agency commission services was RMB3.4 million

(2021: Nil), with a gross profit margin of 57.5%.

Internet and other Services
During the Period under Review, the Group was still conducting
market survey to decide the business models of www.dnkb.com.cn

and www.duk.cn and as such, the Internet services segment has

yet to contribute any revenue to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Total revenue decreased by 51.2% from RMB265.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB129.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022, primarily due to the decrease
in revenue from sales of agricultural products. Revenue from
marketing and consulting services decreased from RMB75.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB54.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022. Revenue from newspaper
and public vehicle advertising decreased from RMB13.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB6.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022. Revenue from sales of agricultural
products decreased from RMB171.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 to RMB61.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. Revenue from printing services decreased from
RMB4.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB3.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit decreased by 50.2% from RMB21.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB10.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022. Gross profit margin increased from
8.2% in 2021 to 8.4% in 2022, which was primarily attributable
to the slightly increase in gross profit margin of agricultural

products.

Other income

Other income decreased from RMB1.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 to RMBO.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, mainly due to the decrease in the income from

government grant during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEREAD R

Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses decreased by 63.5% from
RMB26.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
RMB9.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022, mainly due
to the decrease in selling and marketing expenses of the sales of

agricultural products.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses decreased by 41.4% from
RMB40.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
RMB23.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022, mainly
due to (i) decrease in staff costs of RMB4.2 million and (ii)

decrease in amortisation of intangible assets of RMB2.5 million.

Loss before income tax

As a result of (i) the provision for impairment on goodwill and
other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets; and (ii) the increase in other net income and gains,
loss before income tax for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
RMB168.6 million, representing a decrease of 27.7% as compared
to loss before income tax of RMB233.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Loss for the year

The Group recorded a net loss for the year of RMB167.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022, representing a decrease of
11.1% as compared to loss for the year of RMB188.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021. Decrease in loss for the year
was mainly due to the decrease in selling and marketing expenses

and general and administrative expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests
As a result of the above factors, loss attributable to non-
controlling interests increased from RMB1.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to profit attributable to non-controlling

interests of RMB1.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the above factors, loss attributable to owners of the
Company decreased from RMB187.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 to RMB169.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Liquidity and capital resources
As at 31 December 2022,
approximately RMB257.3 million (2021:

the Group had total assets of
RMB240.0 million) and
total borrowings (including amount due to a joint venture, loan
from a shareholder and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and lease liabilities) totalling approximately RMB54.4
million (2021: RMB195.9 million),
defined as total borrowings over total assets, of approximately
21.2% (2021: 81.6%).

representing a gearing ratio,

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately RMB58.2
million (2021: RMB213.2 million), calculated on the basis of
the current assets of approximately RMB145.1 million (2021:
RMB139.2 million) divided by current liabilities of approximately
RMB203.3 million (2021: RMB352.5 million), representing a

current ratio of approximately 0.7 (2021: 0.4).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had cash and bank balances
of approximately RMB46.6 million (2021: RMB9.8 million),
including restricted cash of RMBO0.6 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEREAD R

Going concern

For year ended 31 December 2022, the Group reported a net
loss of RMB167,915,000 and had a net cash outflow from
operating activities of RMB11,645,000. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB58,200,000 while the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB46,025,000.

The above conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the ability of

the Group to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have assessed the appropriateness
of adopting the going concern basis for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022.

position, the directors of the Company have been implementing

In order to improve the Group's liquidity and financial

various measures as follows:

(i)  The Group has successfully obtained a borrowing facility
of RMB20,000,000 from a company wholly-owned by a
major shareholder of the Company on 1 August 2021.
RMB1,500,000 had been drawn in 2021 and a further
RMB2,919,000 had also been drawn in 2022. The borrowing
will be repayable in two years from the date of drawdown
with an interest rate of 5% per annum. On 6 March
2023, the repayment period of facility was extended from
repayable in two years to repayable in four years from the
date of drawdown. In addition, the major shareholder has

issued a letter of financial support to the Company for a

period of eighteen months from 31 December 2022 to

enable the Group to meet its liabilities as and when they
fall due and to carry on its business without a significant

curtailment of operations;
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has obtained written confirmations from the
directors and related parties which confirmed that they will
not demand the Group for repayment of the amounts due
by the Group in aggregate of RMB23,867,000 for the next

eighteen months from 31 December 2022;

The Group is closely monitoring the progress of the Group's
tourism project in Yongtai County in the PRC. As there were
certain delays in the preparation work, the Group has revised
the plan and anticipates the construction of the project will
be commenced in 2023 and the project will be ready for
commercial operation in 2025. The directors are confident
that the Group would be able to commence the commercial
operations of the tourism project in Yongtai County in 2025
which would start to generate income and operating cash

inflows to the Group;

The Group is in negotiation with certain potential investors
to raise fund to finance the capital investments for its

tourism and integrated development projects;

The Group is maximising its efforts to dispose its properties
held for sales with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB15,097,000 as at 31 December 2022 and expected
to collect the sales proceeds within the cashflow forecast

period;

The Group will continue to take initiatives to implement
cost control measures, including adjustment to management

remuneration and streamlining administrative costs; and

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEREAD R

(vii) The Group will continue its efforts to implement measures
to strengthen its operating cash flows and working capital
position, including expediting collection of outstanding trade
receivables and deferring discretionary capital expenditures,

where necessary.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cashflow forecast
prepared by management which cover a period of not less than

twelves months from 31 December 2022.

The directors, after making due enquiries and considering the
basis of management’s cashflow forecast described above and
after taking into account the reasonably possible changes in
the operation performance, believe there will be sufficient
financial resources available to the Group at least in the coming
twelve months after the balance sheet date to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the directors
consider that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial

statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, a material uncertainty exist as to
whether management of the Group is able to achieve its plans
and measures as described above. Whether the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern would depend upon the Group’s
ability to generate adequate financing and operating cash flows

through achieving the below plans and measures:

(i)  Successful draw down of financial resources from the above-
mentioned (i) borrowing facility from the company wholly-
owned by the major shareholder and (ii) financial support

from the major shareholder, as and when required;

(i) Successful implementation of measures to complete the
preparation work and commence the commercial operation
of the Group's tourism and integrated development projects

as planned;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(iii)  Successful in raising funds to finance the Group's capital
investments for its tourism and integrated development

projects;

(iv)  Successful in disposal of its properties held for sale and

collection of sales proceeds as planned;

(v) Successful implementation of measures to control
operating costs, expedite collection from customers, obtain
additional sources of financing when needed and deferring
discretionary capital expenditures where necessary, so as to

improve the Group’s cash flow position; and

(vi) Successful in obtaining additional sources of financing as

and when needed.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying
values of the Group's assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
adjustments have not been reflected in the consolidated financial

statements.

Cash flows used in operating activities

For the year ended 31 December 2022, net cash used in operating
activities amounted to RMB11.6 million, primarily attributable to
the loss before income tax for the year amounted to RMB168.6
million and partially offset by non-cash items, which primarily
included (i) provision for impairment of intangible assets
amounted to RMB7.1 million, (ii) disposal of subsidiaries and fixed
assets of RMB9.5 million, and (iii) depreciation and amortisation of
RMB4.4 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEREAD R

Cash flows used in investing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2022, net cash generated
from investing activities amounted to RMB26.0 million, resulted
primarily from receipt from disposal of property plant and

equipment of RMB8 million.

Cash flows generated from financing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2022, net cash generated
from financing activities amounted to RMB22.8 million, mainly
attributable to capital injection from non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary of RMB30.0 million and borrowing from joint

venture of RMB12.3 million.

Capital expenditures

Capital expenditures incurred during the year are mainly for
the purchase or construction costs related to property, plant
and equipment. Capital expenditures were RMB1.4 million and
RMB1.0 million for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022,

respectively.

Trade receivables — net
The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables based on
invoice dates is set out in note 16 to the audited consolidated

financial statements.

Trade receivables increased by 107.1% from RMB7.0 million as at
31 December 2021 to RMB14.5 million as at 31 December 2022.
Such increase was mainly attributable to the increase of marketing

agency about RMB10 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
The non-current prepayments,
maintained at RMB20.8 million as at 31 December 2022, while

deposits and other receivables

the current prepayments, deposits and other receivables slightly
increased from RMB62.1 million as at 31 December 2021 to
RMB63.7 million as at 31 December 2022, mainly due to the new
subsidiary with amount of RMB1.7 million, which is an allowance

paid in advance to the employees.

Properties held for sale
As at 31 December 2022, properties held for sale amounted to
RMB22.8 million). The

properties in the PRC were received in exchange of advertising

approximately RMB15.1 million (2021:

services to real estate developers in the PRC. The Group’s intention
is to sell these properties, accordingly, such rights are recognised
as properties held for sale upon the completion of the advertising

sales transaction if the related properties are ready to be sold.

Management assessed the fair value less costs to sell of the
properties with reference to their market value with the assistance
of an independent property valuer. For the year ended 31
December 2022, the management compared the carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell of the properties made impairment
provision of RMB5,323,000 based on the valuation of the valuer
(2021: Nil).

Trade payables

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on
invoice dates is set out in note 22. Trade payables increased
from approximately RMB12.8 million as at 31 December 2021 to
RMB26.5 million as at 31 December 2022. Turnover days of trade
payables increased from 30 days for the year ended 31 December
2021 to 109 days for the year ended 31 December 2022 due to

significant increase of purchases of agricultural products for sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE AN

Other payables, accrued expenses and contract liabilities

The current other payables,

accrued expenses and contract

liabilities decreased by 12.9% from RMB123.8 million as at 31
December 2021 to RMB107.8 million as at 31 December 2022,

mainly due to the decrease in the contract liabilities of RMB14.0

million.

Share capital

(a)

On 4 November 2022, the authorised share capital of the
Company has increased to HK$1,100,000,000, comprising:
(a) 100,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each;
and (b) 10,000,000,000 non-voting Convertible Preference
Shares of HK$0.01 upon the resolution passed at the Special
General Meeting. On 11 November 2022, 383,636,331
Convertible Preference Shares were allotted and issued to
the TopBig International Development Limited under the
Convertible Preference Shares Specific Mandate at the
subscription price of HK$0.57 per Convertible Preference
Shares, in full and final settlement of the entire outstanding
balance of the TopBig International Development Limited’s
Loan (including principal and interest) owed by the Group to

the TopBig International Development Limited.

On 14 October 2022 and 15 November 2022, the
convertible bonds with carrying amount of RMB27,063,000
and RMB27,490,000, respectively, were converted based on
the principal amount of HK$30,803,000 and HK$30,803,000
(equivalent to RMB27,859,000 and RMB28,298,000,
respectively). As a result, 44,003,571 and 44,003,571,

respectively, new shares were issued and allotted.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Convertible bonds

On 24 January 2019, the Company entered into the convertible
bond subscription agreement with TopBig International
Development Limited (the “Subscriber”), a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Chen Zhi, an Executive Director and a shareholder
of the Company, pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to issue, and the Subscriber conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, 3% per annum convertible bonds (the “Convertible
Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of HK$250,000,000

(equivalent to RMB215,750,000).

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is HK$0.24
per conversion share. The Convertible Bonds matures at the
day falling on the third anniversary of the date of issue of the
Convertible Bonds and the conversion period covers the period
commencing on the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds and

ending on the maturity date.

On 23 April 2019, the Convertible Bonds were issued. The initial
value of the liability component was calculated using a market
interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond of the

Company.

On 22 April 2022,

bonds remained unexercised and it was lapsed. The Group

the conversion option of convertible

and the Subscriber entered into a loan agreement where the
outstanding convertible bonds is replaced by a 2-year loan
with Top Big International Development Limited with face
value of RMB187,310,000 at an interest rate of 3% p.a. (the
“shareholder loan”).

Indebtedness
Indebtedness consists of obligations to lenders, including

commercial banks and certain related parties and companies.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has
successfully obtained a borrowing of RMB12,300,000 from a joint
venture on 1 August 2022, 27 September 2022 and 11 November
2022. The borrowing is unsecured, interest-free and the maturity

over 4 years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEREAD R

The Group has successfully obtained a borrowing facility
of RMB20,000,000 from a shareholder on 1 August 2021.
RMB1,500,000 had been drawn in 2021 and a further
RMB2,919,000 had also been drawn in 2022. The borrowing will
be repayable in two years from the date of drawdown with an
interest rate of 5% per annum. On 6 March 2023, the borrowing
period of facility was extended from repayable in two years to

repayable in four years from the date of drawdown.
As at 31 December 2022, all bank borrowings were repaid.
Commitments

(a) Operating lease commitments — as a lessor

The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-

FEER-_Z—FN\B—HRWE—%K
HESETRE AR 20,000,0007t° AR
1,500,000t BN - —FIZWMKE—F A
R12,919,000c M ER B - _FIRW &
MEERENEAETMERNER FAEXR
5% - MR_TE_=F=B/ B RENEZH
FRHERIBMBESTMEANERERENSE
WEE-

RIEZZF+ZA=+—H FAERTE
REEE-

A
(o) BEHERE—(EHHEA
FEHEKEHEEN A B RERESKX

cancellable operating leases are as follows: MEEINE -
2022 2021
——-—& "—T-—%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
Not later than 1 year —FELLF 652 1,253
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years ~ —&EU ERFAELTF 2,116 5,536
2,768 6,789
(b)  Capital commitments (b) BEAAEIE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of REREHAEREITNEREIASEENE
the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as RKEAFZWMT :
follows:
2022 2021
—--—& _—T--—&%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
Property, plant and equipment ME R REZE 2,640 4,266
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no material

contingent liabilities.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 106 full-time employees
(2021: 213). Total staff costs including directors’ remuneration for
the year ended 31 December 2022 were RMB19.4 million (2021:
RMB27.1 million).

The remuneration of the directors is evaluated by the
remuneration committee, which also makes recommendations to
the Board. In addition, the remuneration committee reviews the
performance, and determines the remuneration structure, of the

Group's senior management.

The Company operates an employee share option scheme, the
purpose of which is to incentivise or reward eligible individuals
who provide services to the Company for their contributions and
their continuing efforts to promote the interests of the Company,
and for other purposes as the Board may approve from time to
time. The employee share option scheme lapsed in November
2020.

EEEwRED

HEAER
7 o ST s SR
B AEELREAREEE-

ADER

RIE-__F#+"A=+—HB &x&B%AE
106% (CB - —F :213%) 2BES - 1N E
E_Z__F+_A=+—HIEFEEMET
RLA4REE (BIEESHM A ARKI104BE T
(CEBEZ—F: ARB27188T) °

HNEEEERNLESHFMN INEFE
REFEEEER UL/ FHZE G T ERA L
EESREEENRERGFTRENHNG
o

ARBEM—BESBRESE B LUE

RE/ETRDRMHRBOUSERALH
ARABMFHEMRB I BMIEEERRT R
mo UREFE R EAFHENHMEREA - B
EERESNBENR S SF+—AKN-

+AERBERAT T __FER

27



28

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERE AN

Subsequent events

(i)

(iii)

With effect from 9 January 2023, the following directors of

the Company has resigned:

Mr. Chen Wei Dong, non-executive Director;

Mr. Zhou Chang Ren, independent non-executive Director;

and

Mr. Cai Jian Quan, independent non-executive Director.

With effect from 9 January 2023, the following directors of

the Company were appointed:

Mr. Wang Xu, executive Director;

Mr. Chen Ye, non-executive Director;

Mr. Mao Xiangyun, independent non-executive Director; and

Mr. Wei Hong, independent non-executive Director.

With effect from 19 April 2023, Mr. Wong Heung Ming,

Henry was resigned as our independent non-executive

Director.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Prospects

In 2022, affected by the COVID-19 resurgence, the Ukrainian
crisis, the macroeconomic downturn, global inflation and other
factors, the business environment was grim, consumer confidence

was weak, and the market sentiment was at a low level.

With the optimisation and adjustment of the epidemic prevention
and control measures, production and life order have gradually
resumed, coupled with the complete lifting of restrictions
on consumption scenarios, offline consumption of all kinds,
including food and beverage, has rapidly resumed. At the same
time, the current policy of promoting consumption is also
gaining momentum, with certain venues issuing consumption
vouchers and consumption subsidies of varying scales, and
financial institutions increasing their consumer credit allocations.
In addition, part of the excess savings accumulated last year
is also being converted into consumption. These factors have
provided strong support for the rebound in consumption at the
beginning of the year. With the gradual economic recovery,
increase in employment, and the rise of residents’ income,
consumption power will gradually increase. At the same time,
the restrictive effect of the epidemic on consumption over the
past year will gradually be removed, which will be conducive to
releasing consumption potential. Affected by the base factor, the
market generally predicts that it will not be difficult for China’s
economy to achieve growth of about 5% in 2023, and the peak
of economic recovery will be seen in the second quarter, with
year-on-year growth expected to reach about 7% or even higher,
after which the recovery will continue in the third and fourth
quarters, but the growth rate may slow down. Despite the strong
momentum of the post-epidemic recovery in the first half year, we
need to be cautious about the economic development prospect
in the second half year, given the domestic and international
challenges such as pressure on exports due to weak global
demand, the volatility in the global economy and financial markets
caused by the FED's rapid interest rate hikes, the intensification of
geopolitical tensions, and the recovery of the domestic property

market, which has yet to gain momentum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEREAD R

With the rapid advancement of technology and speedy changes
in the market environment, the advertising industry is swiftly
changing its placement model. Traditional media such as
newspapers, radio, and television are gradually declining, while
the mobile Internet and new media are beginning to dominate
a strong lead. According to QuestMobile, a research institution
specializing in the PRC mobile internet market, the scale of mobile
Internet users in the PRC has exceeded the 1.2 billion mark, while
user loyalty has further increased, with monthly per capita hours
and frequency of use exceeding 177.3 hours and 2,633 times
respectively. QuestMobile forecasts that the China advertising
market will grow from RMB798.74 billion to RMB1,165.89 billion
from 2018 to 2023, with a 5-year CAGR of 7.9%, while the
scale of Internet advertising in the PRC is expected to grow from
RMB409.45 billion to RMB792.48 billion, with a 5-year CAGR
of 14.1%.

market is expected to continue to outpace the market size of

The future growth rate of the Internet advertising

the advertising industry, reflecting the continuous trend of online
advertising placement. In terms of content, short video marketing
offers an immersive viewing experience, with greater interactivity,
more focused information, richer content, visualisation and better
integration with the platform ecosystem. In terms of format,
short video advertising time is shorter, and better use fragmented
time. In terms of technology, based on the constantly optimised
recommendation algorithm, short video platforms can recommend
more targeted content to users and improve the accuracy of
placement. With these multiple advantages, more and more
advertisers are choosing to place short video advertising, and
the market size of the short video is expected to escalate from
RMB19.24 billion in 2018 to RMB137.99 billion in 2023, with
market share increasing from 4.7% in 2018 to 17.4% in 2023,
with a 5-year CAGR of 48.3%. The placement cost of short video

advertising is expected to grow by 15.2% in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In view of the rapid growth of the market size of short video
advertising, it is expected to become the second largest media
advertising type after e-commerce advertising. As stated in the
Group’s announcement dated 4 August 2022, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with a short video player
in PRC on 31 July 2022 to acquire an effective 49.95% equity
interest in Baiming (Beijing) Information Technology Co., Ltd. (B
B R EEEMARAT)and its subsidiary. The short video
player operates a video content creation platform namely Xiaozhu
Youban (/\3&1BHRR), which provides content creators with a
simple, fast, efficient, and high-value content open platform for
their creation and distribution of short videos.

According to preliminary statistical data from the National Film
Development Funds Management Committee, benefiting from the
substantial adjustment of the prevention and control policy and
the strong recovery of the Spring Festival season, the 2023 Spring
Festival season was the first core season after the optimization of
the COVID-19 prevention and control policy, which has released
the market demand that was being suppressed in the previous
periods and ushered in the opening of the film market in the PRC.
The data shows that the box office of the film market in the PRC
is expected to reach around RMB15.5 billion in the first quarter
of 2023, laying a solid foundation for the recovery of the yearly
box office. The recovery trend of the film industry is apparent, and
combined with sufficient quality content on the domestic supply
side, expected lower production costs, and shorten production
cycles, normalized creation is expected to resume. The outlook
for 2023 will welcome a box office rebound, with full-year gross
film box office revenue expected to reach approximately RMB54.6
billion, and the revenue recovery reaching 85% of the average box
office level in 2019. At the same time, the market relies too much
on popular slots and the unbalanced situation of the gross film
market still exists. Participants in the film industry have generally
realized and actively conducted in-depth studies to create films
suitable for a certain period of time, so that the film market
trend throughout the year is more balanced and orderly, and also
can effectively cultivate the audience’s consumption habits and
enhance the audience’s film watching frequency, which is also is
the key to restore the yearly box office to the pre-pandemic level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEREAD R

Going forward, these positive factors are expected to drive
the Group to continue to develop its existing businesses
of advertising, marketing and consulting, and agricultural
products. At the same time, the Group will continue to focus
on restructuring its publishing and advertising businesses by
consolidating with cultural and film media businesses in PRC, so
as to broaden the long-term income sources of the Group. The
Group will more actively leverage its experience and resources
in the advertising, film, culture, and media industries to develop
integrated projects on the theme of film or media, and develop
these projects focusing on industry positioning, cultural heritage,
tourism features, eco-agriculture, entertainment and community
functions such as health and wellness, so as to form synergies
with the existing businesses. In addition, the Group will continue
to strive to identify suitable industry partners and investment or
cooperation projects to capture business opportunities which form
synergy with our existing businesses, as well as the transformation
and upgrade that combine the strength of online and offline

activities in the new media era.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Zhi, aged 56, is an executive Director. He is a qualified
accountant as conferred by the Ministry of Finance. Mr. Chen
was a cadre of the Fuzhou Minhou Tax Bureau from 1982 to
1989 (during which he was granted leave from 1985 to 1988
to pursue his studies at Fujian Radio and Television University),
deputy section chief of the Fuzhou Economic and Technology
Development Area Tax Bureau from 1989 to 1993, and
subsequently the section chief from 1993 to 2002. He joined our
Group in 2003 and pioneered our distinctive business model of
cooperating with newspaper partners to provide integrated print
media services to advertisers, undertook the main decision-making
role in the management of our overall operations and oversaw
the strategic development of our Group. He was appointed as the
chairman, chief executive officer and an executive Director of our
Company on 9 December 2009, resigned as the chief executive
officer of the Company on 29 January 2016 and resigned as the
chairman of the Company on 25 February 2016. On 9 October
2019, Mr. Chen Zhi was appointed as the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Chen has accumulated
more than ten years of relevant experience from developing the
business of our Group and possesses a deep understanding of the
PRC print media and advertising industries. Mr. Chen graduated
from Fujian Radio and Television University in 1988 with a
diploma in financial economics. Mr. Chen is one of our controlling
shareholders. He is also a director of TopBig International
Development Limited (“TopBig International”). Mr. Chen is
the brother of Ms. Chen Min, a non-executive Director of the

Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EFEhEREERERE

Mr. Yu Shi Quan, aged 46, is an executive Director and the chief
financial officer. He is a qualified accountant as conferred by the
Ministry of Finance. Mr. Yu was an accountant at Fujian Lan Tian
Tax Accounting Co., Ltd. from 1996 to 1997, the finance director
of Fujian Huanyu Investment Development Co., Ltd from 1997 to
1998 and the finance director of Fujian ShiFang Investment Co.
Ltd. (“Fujian ShiFang”) from 1998 to 2000. He joined our Group
in 2000 and was head of finance of Fujian ShiFang until 2008
when he became the head of finance of Olympia Media, and,
subsequently, vice president of finance of China TopReach Inc.
in 2009, and was appointed as Director of our Company on 20
December 2011. He graduated from Fujian Radio and Television
University in 1996 with a diploma in finance and accounting.
Mr. Yu has gained significant management experience from his
work with the overall financial operations of our Group and was
appointed as the chief financial officer of the Group on 9 June
2014. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in management from
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (online education) in

financial management in January 2019.

Mr. Wang Xu, aged 38, has experience in the internet industry and
copyright industry, and is the legal representative and director of
Zhuoshi Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. AR ER) BIEAF)
(“Zhuoshi”) and the legal representative, chairman of the board of
directors of Baiming (Beijing) Information Technology Co., Ltd. (B
IS (ER) EEHEMARAT) ("Baiming”). Zhuoshi is associated
company of the Company and Baiming is joint venture of the
Company. Mr. Wang studied statistics and obtained a bachelor
of science degree from Jilin University. Prior to founding Zhuoshi
and Baiming, Mr. Wang had previously occupied management
positions in enterprises in China engaged in broadcasting and
copyright businesses. He was appointed as an executive Director

of the Group on 9 January 2023.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Chen Min, aged 51, is a non-executive Director. Ms. Chen is
a professor and doctoral supervisor, and holds a bachelor's degree
of Arts, a master's degree and a doctorate degree. Ms. Chen is
currently a non-executive director of China TopReach (listed and
traded on the OTC Bulletin Board in the United States). She was
appointed as our Director on 20 December 2011. Ms. Chen is the

sister of Mr. Chen Zhi, an executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Chen Ye, aged 30, joined the Group in May 2018 and is
currently a vice-president and investment director of the Company.
Mr. Chen Ye obtained a bachelor's degree in communications
engineering from Gengdan Institute of Beijing University of
Technology. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen Ye had several
years of experience in investment companies and participated
in the various investment projects involving investment targets
engaged in internet and technology, properties and financial
services. Mr. Chen Ye is the son of Mr. Chen Zhi and a nephew of
Ms. Chen Min. He was appointed as a non-executive Director of

the Group on 9 January 2023.
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Mr. Chen Wei Dong, aged 52, is a non-executive Director. He
was appointed as our Director on 1 April 2015 and was resigned
as on 9 January 2023. He is currently served as the managing
Ltd. (EFIHT
RIE 755 ABE/AT), a position with effective since January

1 2014. From January 2010 to October 2017, he served as the

director of Xiamen Siruite Business Consulting Co.,

managing director of Shenzhen China Science & Kingwin Venture
Capital Co., Ltd. He served as the deputy director of business
of Shenzhen China Science & Merchants Capital Management
Group Co., Ltd.,
March 1996 to December 2012, Mr. Chen held the position as
BEFRAT (Xiamen

Huamin Packaging Co., Ltd.). From December 2013 to November

from January 2003 to December 2009. From

an assistant general manager of EFIZEERE &

2018, He has served as the general manager of China Science
& Kingwin Investment Management Limited. In addition, he
also had approximately six years of experience working in the
Local Taxation Bureau of Pingyu County, Henan Province. Mr.
Chen received his Bachelor's degree from the College of Online
Education (now known as College of Continuing Education) of the
Xiamen University in China in 2006, and has been enrolled in the
Executive Master of Business Administration programme of School

of Management of the Xiamen University since September 2009.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
aged 52,
independent non-executive Director. He was appointed as our
Director on 8 November 2010. Resigned as on 19 April 2023.

Mr. Wong Heung Ming Henry (“Mr. Wong"), is an

Mr. Wong was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of E-Home Household Service Holding Ltd. (stock ticker:
EJH) on March 28th, 2023. Prior to this, Mr. Wong was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Sansheng Holdings
(Group) Co. Ltd. (stock code: 2183) and Ostin Technology Group
Co., Ltd. (stock ticker: OST) on August 1st, 2022 and April 26th,
2022,
an independent non-executive director of Helens International
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 9896) and TD Holdings,
Inc. (stock ticker: GLG) since August 30th, 2021 and April 27th,

respectively. Additionally, Mr. Wong has been serving as

2021, respectively.

Mr. Wong is currently serving as the non-executive Chairman and
independent non-executive director for Raffles Interiors Limited
(stock code: 1376), a Hong Kong Mainboard Stock Exchange listed
company, since September 23rd, 2022. Previously, Mr. Wong was

also an independent non-executive director of ShiFang.

With over 29 years of experience in finance, accounting, internal
controls, and corporate governance in Singapore, China, and
Hong Kong, Mr. Wong has helped a number of companies listed in
overseas stock exchanges, including those in the United States and
China Hong Kong. He was the CFO of Metn Holding Group Ltd.
(stock ticker: Metx).
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He has also served as CFO and senior finance executive of various
companies, including Frontier Services Group Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
0500), and Beijing Oriental Yuhong Waterproof Technology Co.,
Ltd., a leading waterproof materials manufacturer in China and
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
2271).

Mr. Wong began his career in an international accounting firm
and moved along in audit fields by taking some senior positions
both in internal and external audits including being a senior
manager and a manager in PricewaterhouseCoopers, Beijing
office and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Hong Kong, respectively. Mr.
Wong graduated from City University of Hong Kong in 1993 with
a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy and also obtained a master’s
degree in Electronic Commerce from The Open University of
Hong Kong in 2003. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Wong began his career in an international accounting firm
and moved along in audit fields by taking some senior positions
both in internal and external audits including being a senior
manager and a manager in PricewaterhouseCoopers, Beijing office
and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Hong Kong, respectively. Mr. Wong
graduated from City University of Hong Kong in 1993 with a
bachelor’'s degree in Accountancy and also obtained a master’s
degree in Electronic Commerce from The Open University of
Hong Kong in 2003. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Mao Xiangyun, aged 61, obtained a master degree of business
administration from the Hong Kong Metropolitan University
(formerly known as the Open University of Hong Kong). Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Mao had over 25 years of experience
working with Fuzhou Economic and Technological Development
Zone (BIMNAERTRAZEE) (“Fuzhou ETDZ"),

management positions responsible for investment attractions,

occupying senior

corporate services and overseeing the management of technology

projects in Fuzhou ETDZ.

Mr. Wei Hong, aged 34, obtained a bachelor’s degree in finance
from Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Wei occupied management positions with
various business enterprises in China including a financing and
guarantee company and an investment fund, having over ten
years of working experience related to data analysis, project
approvals, project management, credit risk assessments, corporate
procedures and internal controls. Mr. Wei is currently the
investment manager of a capital management company and the
general manager of a private equity investment company. Upon
the issuance of conformation letter, Mr. Wei was interested in
490,000 shares of the Company, representing approximately
0.05% of the total issued share capital of the Company. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Group

on 9 January 2023.
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Mr. Zhou Chang Ren, aged 75, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed as our Director on 8 November 2010
and was resigned as on 9 January 2023. He is a qualified senior
economist as conferred by the Fujian Provincial Department
of Personnel. Mr. Zhou was appointed as the chairman of the
Qingliu Country Party Committee in 1990. He was engaged in
the newspaper industry in the PRC and held several positions
including the deputy bureau chief and editorial board member
of Fujian Daily from 1996 to 2002, and the general manager,
senior economist and Party Committee deputy secretary of the
Fujian Daily Newspaper Group from 2002 to 2008. In addition,
Mr. Zhou was the vice chairman, and later chairman, of the Fujian
Province Newspaper Industry Association during the same periods,
before retiring in 2008. He graduated from Fujian Provincial Party
School of the CPC in 1986 with a diploma in politics. Mr. Zhou
has extensive print media experience and expertise with particular

knowledge of the Fujian newspaper industry.

Mr. Cai Jian Quan, aged 60,

Director. He was appointed as our Director on 20 December 2011

is an independent non-executive

and was resigned as on 9 January 2023. He graduated from the
Anhui University of Finance Economics with a bachelor’s degree in
financial accounting in July 1984. Mr. Cai was a finance manager
of the finance department of Shanghai Baihuo Headquarters
Watches and Glasses Branch between July 1984 and June 1992.
He was the general manager of the sales department of Shenyin
& Wanguo Securities Co. Ltd. between June 1992 and June
2002. He has also been the chairman of the board of directors of

Shanghai Guantong Investment Co. Ltd. since September 2002.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Chan Ching Yi, aged 48, is our company secretary. She

is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy and has accumulated more than 20 years of financial
and auditing experience. She is currently the company secretary
of Xinjiang Tianye Water Saving lIrrigation System Company
Limited (stock code: 840), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. She is also the independent non-executive
director of Pak Tak International Limited (stock code: 2668), a
company Listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms.
Chan joined our Group in August 2010.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of ShiFang Holding Limited (the
“Company”) present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the

“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the business of publishing and
advertising (the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

focusing on restructuring its publishing and advertising businesses

“Publishing and Advertising Businesses”) in the

The Group has been

by consolidating with cultural media and film media businesses in

PRC, and diversifying into tourism and integrated developments.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022

are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income on pages 104 to 105.

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development and
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are
provided in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of

this annual report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. Particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in note 40 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the “Financial
Highlights and Summary” section on pages 5 to 6 of this annual

report.

USE OF PROCEEDS
During the year of 2022, the Group had no equity fund-raising

and no unutilised proceeds as of the beginning of period.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year of 2022, the Group had acquired property, plant

and equipment of approximately RMB1.1 million.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year of 2022 are set out in

note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association or the bye-laws of the Company (the “Articles” or the
“Bye-laws”), or the laws of the Cayman Islands or Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis

to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the

year.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has no reserve available

for distribution to the Shareholders.

DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations have been made by the Group

during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year of 2022, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group's five largest customers comprised approximately 65.5% of
the Group’s total sales and the sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer were approximately 41.7% of the Group’s total

sales.

The aggregate purchases during the year of 2022 attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers were approximately 63.8% of
the Group’s total purchases and the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier were approximately 44.6% of the Group'’s

total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any interest in

the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group’s establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC. During the Year, the Group has complied, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, with the relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were as follows:

Executive directors:
Mr. Chen Zhi, Chairman and chief executive officer
(appointed as a Director on 9 December 2009)
Mr. Yu Shi Quan
(appointed on 20 December 2011)
Mr. Wang Xu
(Appointed as on 9 January 2023)

Non-executive directors:
Ms. Chen Min

(appointed on 20 December 2011)
Mr. Chen Ye

(Appointed as on 9 January 2023)
Mr. Chen Wei Dong

(Resigned as on 9 January 2023)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry (Resigned as on 19 April 2023)
Mr. Mao Xiangyun (Appointed as on 9 January 2023)
Mr. Wei Hong (Appointed as on 9 January 2023)
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren
(Resigned as on 9 January 2023)
Mr. Cai Jian Quan
(Resigned as on 9 January 2023)

In accordance with the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Moreover,
the Directors appointed during the year will hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and will be

eligible for re-election.
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management

of the Group are set out on pages 33 to 41.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of its independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of its

independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and the non-executive Director
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years, which may be terminated by not less than six
months’ notice (for executive Directors) or one month’s notice (for
non-executive Directors) in writing served by either party on the
other. Each of the independent non-executive Director has been
appointed by the Company for a term of three years and shall be
terminable by either party by giving not less than one month prior

notice in writing.

During the year, none of the Directors had a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior management
members of the Group was based on their individual performance
as well as market trends and practices. In addition, each of the
executive Directors and the non-executive Directors is entitled
to a discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of
the bonuses payable to all the executive Directors at the sole and
absolute discretion of the Company. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors are set out in note 42 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The emoluments paid to the senior management (excluding the
Directors) during the year ended 31 December 2022 were within

the following bands:
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BEEAH

Nil to HK$500,000 EZF500,0008 7T 5
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 752 1,000,00078 7T 1
Total: 485 6

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Save and except the Convertible Bonds held by TopBig

International (a wholly owned company by Mr. Chen Zhi) which
already lapsed without conversion in April 2022, no Director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries

was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors held any interests in any competing business
against the Company or any of its jointly controlled entities and

subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2022.

EFENAOPHIED

RERFER RSEE2ERBZAD) B
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the directors in the share capital and underlying shares (the
“Share(s)") of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers, were set out as follows:

(i) Long position in the Company

EF Nk KBRS ER R
3

N2 _F+_RB=+—H &FIAAR
B HARMEE (EX REF MG FRHHEXV
) RAERAERERD (ThR7D)) hEA L EN
RIFEE S M ERAEI2RERTAFEN
Faf ARBLHTETAEFETESTR
SHRETRENEG XA T KRB AFTBE
KBS

(i) MEXEHFE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interest
-
EENS B tEmtE iR & B BABE S
Mr. Chen Zhi Interest in controlled corporation 610,835,005 59.22%
and beneficial owner (Note 1)
BRE L REEGFEENEDEREEFIEE (MF5E1)
Mr. Yu Shi Quan Beneficial Owner 223,049 0.02%
ENR e BEmfiEE
Notes: PMEE -

(1) Mr. Chen Zhi (an executive director of the Company)
was deemed to be interested in 610,835,005 Shares and
underlying Shares, comprising (i) 1,758,164 Shares directly
held by him; (ii) 225,440,510 Shares held by TopBig
International Development Limited (“TopBig International”),
a controlled corporation which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen
Zhi; and (iii) 383,636,331 underlying Shares attributable to
the conversion right attaching to convertible preference shares
issued by the Company held by TopBig International.

(2) The percentage interests are calculated on the basis of

1,031,445,978 issued Shares of the Company as at 31
December 2022.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in Shares:
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RIBEZZF+ZHA=+—H UTFTAL (E
EH R AT REITHABRIN KRG KER
B 10 R R SR BRI AR IR 58 55 I BR B R 11 5336
BAREBEFENTRMIERIORA !

RERPEIFE !

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares interest
e g B EEHE BRHOBE HEEBAESL
TopBig International Beneficial Owner (Note 1) 609,076,841 59.05%
TR BEmfBAE (ME1)
Nian Jiaxing Beneficial Owner 132,010,713 12.80%
BREA BERfEE
Forever Joy Investments Limited  Beneficial owner (Note 2) 82,307,493 9.05%
BEmfBAE (H5E2)
Victory Color International Beneficial owner (Note 3) 75,759,903 8.33%
Investment Limited
HEEEREERAT BafraE (3)

+AERBERAT T __FER
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Notes:

(1) TopBig International is a controlled corporation wholly-owned by Mr.
Chen Zhi, an executive Director. TopBig International was deemed
to be interested in 609,076,841 Shares and underlying Shares,
comprising (i) 225,440,510 Shares held by TopBig International; and
(i) 383,636,331 underlying Shares attributable to the conversion right
attaching to preference shares issued by the Company held by TopBig

International.

(2) Based on disclosure of interest filings, Forever Joy Investments Ltd. is a
controlled corporation 90% owned by Shenzhen Energy Gaofei Fund
Management Co., Ltd which is 70% owned by Ms. Xu Dan.

(3) Based on disclosure of interest filings, Victory Color International
Investment Ltd. is a controlled corporation wholly-owned by Ms. Wu

Yufang.

(4) The percentage of interests are calculated on the basis of
1,031,445,978 issued Shares of the Company as at 31 December
2022.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of
any other person (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO as at 31 December 2022.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has entered into the transactions set out below
which will be regarded as continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules and subject to the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Unless otherwise defined,
capitalised terms below has the same meanings as those defined

in the Prospectus.
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The Structure Contracts

Background

Fuzhou ShiFangCe Culture Media Co., Ltd. (“Original WFOE"),
which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company prior
to 24 December 2015, entered into (a) structured contracts
(the “Internet Structured Contracts”) to enable the Group to
capture the economic benefits of and obtain the effective control
over Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science and Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Internet Opco” or “Beijing BaiChuanDuKe"”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Internet Opco Group”); and (b) structured
contracts (the “Publishing Structured Contracts”) to enable
the Group to capture the economic benefits of and obtain the
effective control over Beijing HongXinTu Culture Communication
Co., Ltd ("Publishing Opco” or “Beijing HongXinTu”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Publishing Opco Group”).

Pursuant to the Catalogue of Industries for Guiding Foreign
Investment jointly promulgated by the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC and the Ministry of Commerce
of the PRC, foreign investors are (i) prohibited from investing in
news websites and online publication services; and (ii) restricted
from investing in more than 50% controlling stake in value-
added telecommunication and printing of publications. At the
time of the entering into of the Internet Structured Contracts
and the Publishing Structured Contracts, the Company could
not directly acquire the equity interest in Internet Opco and the
controlling equity interest in Publishing Opco. Therefore, the
Company entered into the Internet Structured Contracts and the
Publishing Structured Contracts to capture the economic benefits
of and obtain the effective control over the Internet Opco and the

Publishing Opco.
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On 17 December 2015, in anticipation of the imminent disposal
of Original WFOE by the Group to an independent third party,
the Internet Structured Contracts were novated from Original
WFOE to another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Fuzhou DingCe Culture Communication Co. Ltd. (“New WFOE" or
“Fuzhou DingCe”). With the disposal by the Group of its equity
interests in Original WFOE, the Group ceased to be interested
in the Publishing Structured Contracts or the Publishing Opco
Group. With the novation of the Internet Structured Contracts
to New WFOE, the Group continues to consolidate the financial
results of the Internet Opco Group through the contractual
arrangements under the Internet Structured Contracts. As
disclosed in the section headed "VIE Arrangements and the
Structured Contracts" in the Company's announcement dated 4
August 2022, supplemental agreements were entered into on 31
July 2022 in respect of the Structured Contracts to better align
with rule changes and containing house-keeping amendments but
without revising any of the key terms. In addition, two spousal
undertakings dated 31 July 2022 were signed by the spouse of Mr.
Xu and the spouse of Mr. Zheng to acknowledge that the equity
interests held by Xu and Zheng in the Internet Opco do not form
part of the matrimonial property and containing a renunciation by
spouse on any right to the Internet Opco. Further details of the
VIE arrangements can be found in the Company's announcement
dated 4 August 2022.

Internet Opco and Internet Opco Shareholders

Internet Opco is a limited liability company established under
the laws of the PRC with a registered capital of RMB1 million
and principally engaged in value-added telecommunication
business, news websites, online publication services and printing
of publications. Internet Opco Group holds a Permit for Internet
Publication (B 48 £ AREFPI5%), an Operation Permit for Value-
added Telecommunication Business (32 1{8 %15 #7548 = 5 0] 58)
and an Operation Permit for News Publication Printing (¥ & & bz
YIEN R AL & FF BT 58) .

The registered capital of Internet Opco is registered as to 60%
in the name of Zheng Bo Ling (“Zheng”) and 40% in the name
of Xu Kai Ning (“Xu”, and together with Zheng, collectively the

“Internet Opco Shareholders”).
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Reasons for the entering into of the Internet Structured
Contracts

The principal reasons for the entering into of the Internet
Structured Contracts were (a) to establish a contractual position
which allows the economic benefits of the businesses and
operations of the Internet Opco Group to flow to the Group; (b)
through the control of the right of nomination of directors of
Internet Opco, to monitor, supervise and effectively control the
business, operations and financial policies of the Internet Opco
Group which in turn ensure due implementation of the Internet
Structured Contracts; (c) to prevent any possible leakage of assets
to the Internet Opco Shareholders; and (d) to enable the Group to
acquire the equity interest of the Internet Opco at an agreed price,
which was fixed as a matter of relatively nominal sums and being

the lowest prices permissible under PRC law.

Save for the foreign investment restrictions described above, the
contractual arrangements under the Internet Structured Contracts

are not related to any other regulations or requirements.

Key terms of the Internet Structured Contracts
In the summary table below, we set out the current status and the

key terms of the Internet Structured Contracts:

Loan Agreement

it #
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MEREHNEMRBAEEAIEENER &
BRYBERR EMEFRZASBETEBAER
BEN 5 (OMEEERNEERERRKET BB
MEEBERABRRNEBER ; RAOEXFEEFEZ
WMEBH (RBHLENEEE  PEER
TAFNREER) BAEBEEEQTNK
o

BRI R ERGIIN BEEEBEEOT
BYE A9 L2 BE B (E (AT E AR 1) 50 AR TE R o

BEBHRARB SN EEZIRR
TRMIEMBERESTHERAT REER

= -
TA -

Date: 17 December 2015 (as supplemented on 31 July 2022)

HEf: _—FH1F+_B+tH R E__FtBA=+—HER)

Parties: New Wfoe (as lender), Zheng and Xu (as borrowers)

SIS LASNEBERE (EREMA) » BREF (FRERA)

Loan sum: RMB600,000 (for Zheng) and RMB400,000 (for Xu)
B - AR ®600,0007T (8F) K AR%400,0007T (5F)

Term: 10 years, automatically renewable for successive periods of 5 years unless terminated

by notice by New Wfoe

FH 05 BRIFRMINBEECEZHBENR L SRIBHEMASRCF

+AERBERAT T __FER
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Equity Pledge
Agreement

RREE PR

No early repayment: Each of Zheng and Xu is not permitted to repay any loan without prior

written consent of New Wfoe.

ARREEN  BRAUATEREHII BBECXRAETARETEEEFNER-

Date: 17 December 2015 (as supplemented on 31 July 2022)
B —Z—HF+__A+tH (W2 "_FtA=+—H@ER)

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as pledgors), New Wfoe (as pledgee), Internet Opco
TR BT (MERERAN) N EBEELE (FRARAN)  EMAEEATR

Pledged assets: 60% equity interest in Internet Opco (by Zheng), 40% equity interest in
Internet Opco (by Xu)
BIREE OHMEENTE60%KE (BEER)  OHMAEELBE40%K#E (BFEH)

Guaranteed obligations: To guarantee the repayment of the loans under the Loan Agreement

and the payment of the service fees under the Service Agreement.

BERET EREEERVE THNERAIUIRBHE THRFE -

Dividends: Pursuant to the Equity Pledge Agreement, New Wfoe is entitled to all of the
benefits arising from the pledged equity interests including dividends.

RE  AEREERBR MW EBEECEARINSEMECERREESNN D (BER
/%\> °©
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Voting Right Proxy
Agreement
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Date: 17 December 2015 (as supplemented on 31 July 2022)
A : —2—a5&+"B+tH KRB "FtHA=+—Hf@R)

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as appointers), New Wfoe (as appointee), Internet Opco

IR I BEREF (FREREN CHIINERELE (FREREAN  EMEEEAS

Power granted: Each of Zheng and Xu granted to New Wfoe and its designee(s) the power to
exercise the rights as the registered shareholders of Internet Opco including but not limited to
those relating to: the right to vote in a shareholders’ meeting, sign minutes, file documents
with the relevant companies registry, and the right to appoint liquidator(s) to exercise all of
the rights of Zheng and Xu and to seize the Internet Opco’s assets upon winding-up of the
Internet Opco for the benefit of the New Wfoe or creditors.

FRIfEED BRHFRERAMIIMEBELEREERERETERESEMEZSELATELIR
R BEEARNENTEEERAEZ  KMRRASLEZE -FEGZCH AEEAR
BEMERIXHHENEN REEBFEATEBRAMEEFN RN EBRESEQNTE
BRAMIBBEECENER AN G ENERHEPEEASEEREF -

Restriction on equity transfer: None of Zheng nor Xu may transfer all or any part of their
equity interest in Internet Opco without the prior written consent of New Wfoe.
REEZRG  BRAGFIEERCEHIBBELCEFAETHRAE TEERENEMAE
EATN IS AT A E 2 B o

+AERBERAT T __FER
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Exclusive Purchase
Option Agreement

BEREEBEEGS

Service Agreement

AR %5 17 5

Date: 17 December 2015 (as supplemented on 31 July 2022)
BEf: “E—AF+"_A+tH MW B _FtA=1+—H#HR)

Parties: Zheng and Xu (as grantors), New Wfoe (as grantee), Internet Opco

SJA75 I BRET (FRREAN HMIINEBRELE (FRARAN EREEEARHT

Option: Each of Zheng and Xu irrevocably granted to New Wfoe or its designee(s) an
exclusive option to purchase, at any time if and when permitted under PRC laws, all or part
of their equity interests in Internet Opco at the agreed price, being the higher of (i) RMB1
million (being its paid up registered capital); and (ii) the lowest price permissible under PRC
laws, and requiring Zheng and Xu to return to New Wfoe or its nominee any consideration
that Zheng and Xu had received from New Wfoe for the acquisition of the equity interests in
Internet Opco.

BEER LK ETATHMOMEMIEEECERNEIERERDBEZBER > LU H
BlZ R AN ERSEAANZBEERE BIOARB 1 B8 T BEBHEMBRA) 5 Ki)PEE
BTITAFNREERMETNRSE) BERSENERESELASNEE S EREDRKE
I BRBRFRAMIIMEBELEINEAGARBERFRNBEMRBEEERTNKREMSD
W EBE CEWENERRE-

Date: 17 December 2015 (as supplemented on 31 July 2022)
HEf: “E—AF+"_A+tH W B "FtA=1+—H#HR)

Parties: New Wfoe (as consultant) and Internet Opco (as appointer)

I S BB R E (FRER) REMMAEERT ((FREEAN)
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Term: 10 years, automatically renewable for successive periods of 5 years unless terminated
by notice by New Wfoe.
FH 105 BRIFRMINEBE LR ELBANR L [RIBFHEHAEREF -

Scope of services: New Wfoe agreed to provide to Internet Opco consulting services including
(i) market research; (ii) business development and market consultation; (iii) consulting services
in respect of labor matters; (iv) construction and maintenance of information networks and
network security; (v) technical support for software and technology; and (vi) other services in
relation to its business operations, at such service fees as are according to the nature of the
service content and time spent on market price.

IRFFHEE : I EmBECEXARREMESEASRHILART  SFEGN)THME ;i)FEH
BRI THEN (VB RABBREARS (VERKREEEARB RFEELZE (VEH KR
REME; RVIEMEBMAEELADEBCENHEMRE  BRARFERBRBASH
MBEKRFIEEREBZHEUE

Service fees: The service fees are according to the nature of the service content and time

spent based on market price.

RBE  RBEERRERBARMERMERBHKRRHESE

Unwinding of the Structured Contracts

The Internet Structured Contract has not been unwound up
to the date of this report. The Company does not intend to
unwind any Internet Structured Contract unless and until the
foreign investment restriction relating to ownership of the equity
interest in Internet Opcos is lifted. When the foreign investment
restriction is lifted, the Company intends to exercise its exclusive
purchase right under the Exclusive Purchase Option Agreement
to acquire the entire equity interest in Internet Opco, so that
the Company can control the Internet Opco Group through the
direct shareholding relationship rather than through the Internet

Structured Contracts.

BWIHRIBEH

BEAKRSAH ERERBEOLRKE
HREREEREMBEEENRENTE
BERAMBINERERGWEE > TRIEAQ
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Accounting policies and financial information

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
information of the Company, its subsidiaries, and structured entity
where the Company is deemed the primary beneficiary. Fuzhou
DingCe (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
the Internet Structured Contracts with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,
whereby Fuzhou DingCe provides consulting services to Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe and is entitled to (1) receive a substantial portion
of the economic benefits from Beijing BaiChuanDuKe; (2) exercise
effective control over Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, and (3) have an
exclusive option to purchase all or part of the equity interests
in Beijing BaiChuanDuKe when and to the extent permitted by
the PRC laws. By virtue of the contractual arrangements under
the Internet Structured Contracts, Beijing BaiChuanDuKe is a
structured entity and deemed as a subsidiary of the Company
under the requirements of IFRS 10 “Consolidated financial

statements”.

When assessing whether to combine a structured entity, the
Group evaluates a range of factors, including whether (1) the
activities of the structured entity are being conducted on behalf
of the Group according to its specific business needs so that the
Group obtains the benefits from the structured entity’s operations,
(2) the Group has decision-making powers to obtain the majority
of the benefits, (3) the Group obtains the majority of the benefits
of the activities of the structured entity, and (4) the Group retains
the majority of the residual ownership risks related to the assets
in order to obtain the benefits from its activities. The Group
consolidates a structured entity if an assessment of the relevant
factors indicates that it controls the structured entity. Based on the
contractual arrangements under the Internet Structured Contracts,
the Company consolidated the results, assets and liabilities of
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe in the consolidated financial statements of

the Group.
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PRC laws strictly prohibits foreign investment in, and ownership
of, companies engaging in news websites and online publication
services, and place significant restrictions on foreign investment
in, and ownership of, companies engaging in the value-added
telecommunication business (Chinese parties as controlling
shareholders) and printing of publications (Chinese parties as
controlling shareholders). The Company is considered as a foreign-
invested enterprise, and is required to comply with the PRC laws
and regulations applicable to foreign-invested enterprises. Due
to such restrictions, the Company are not permitted to have
and does not have direct ownership of any interest in Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe as Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, together with its
subsidiaries, holds a Permit for Internet Publication (B B#48 KR
FFA]EE), an Operation Permit for Value-added Telecommunication
Business (J& (B B (5 ¥ #5548 & 5T 0] 5%) and an Operation Permit for
News Publication Printing GHTRE H AR ENRI &L & 55 AI5%) . Instead,
the Company conducts the above operations in China principally
through contractual arrangements among its subsidiary Fuzhou
DingCe on the one hand, and Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its
shareholders, on the other. These contractual arrangements permit
the financial results of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to be consolidated
with and effectively all of the economic benefits of its business to
be transferred to Fuzhou DingCe. The contractual arrangement is
not related to any regulations other than the restriction on foreign

investment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue generated
from the printing and online services businesses through Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe amounted to RMB4.2 million and nil (2020:
RMB4.1 million and nil) respectively, which accounted for 1.6%
and 0% of total revenue (2020: 3.3% and 0%) of the total
revenue; and the assets of Beijing BaiChuanDuke and the relevant
businesses amounted to RMB16.0 million (2020: RMB28.7
million). As Beijing BaiChuanDuke and the relevant businesses
have not contributed any significant profit to the Group in the
past, Beijing BaiChuanDuke and the relevant businesses were
insignificant to the Group respectively, of total revenue. The
Company relied on and expects to continue to rely on contractual
arrangements with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its shareholders to
operate the printing and online services business components in
China. The PRC legal advisor has advised the Company that the
contractual arrangements are in compliance with and enforceable
under the relevant PRC laws. However, there exist uncertainties
regarding the interpretation and application of PRC laws and
regulations regarding the performance and enforcement of such
contractual arrangements. As such, there can be no assurance
that the relevant PRC regulatory authorities will not, in the future,
determine that the contractual arrangements are in breach of
applicable PRC laws. If the contractual arrangements are found
to be in breach of any existing or future PRC laws, the relevant
PRC regulatory authorities would have broad discretion in
dealing with such violations, including revoking the business and
operating licenses held by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, restricting or
prohibiting any transactions between the Company and Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe, imposing penalties or other requirements with
which the Company may not be able to comply, or requiring
the Company to restructure the relevant ownership, control or
operating structure of the Company or its business. The imposition
of any of these penalties or requirements could result in a material
and adverse effect on its business, and could even result in us
being required to cease the printing and online services businesses

completely.
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In addition to the possibility of administrative penalties or other
requirements being imposed upon us due to the relationships
with Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and its shareholders, the Company
may not be able to effectively enforce such contractual
relationships in a cost-effective manner or at all. Under the current
contractual arrangements, if Beijing BaiChuanDuKe or any of
their shareholders fails to perform their respective obligations
under these contractual arrangements, or are required to incur
substantial costs to do so, the Company may be forced to incur
substantial costs and resources to enforce such arrangements
or to rely on PRC law to obtain remedies, including specific
performance or damages, and we may not be successful in
obtaining such remedies or obtaining such remedies might be cost
prohibitive. In the event the Company is unable to enforce these
contractual arrangements, its business, financial condition and

results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

Fuzhou ShiFang Printing Co., Ltd. and Guizhou ShiFang Printing
Co., Ltd, which are subsidiaries of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,
currently hold Operation Permits for News Publication Printing (&
B AR ENRI 48 & 5F 0] 55) . Xiamen DuKe Information Science
& Technology Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of Beijing BaiChuanDuKe,
currently holds a Permit for Internet Publication (& B 48t A 5F 7]
£8)and a Operation Permit for Value-added Telecommunication
Business (BEBEX B K EHFAE) for the operation of
www.duk.cn. Pursuant to the Catalogue of Industries for Guiding
Foreign Investment (S & & & 2458 B #%) jointly promulgated
by NDRC and MOFCOM, news websites and online publication
services are classified as industries in which foreign investors are
prohibited from investing, and value-added telecommunication
business (Chinese parties as controlling shareholders) and printing
of publications (Chinese parties as controlling shareholders) is
classified as an industry in which foreign investors are restricted
from investing. These views have been confirmed by our PRC legal

advisor.
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The Directors believe that the Company’s structure whereby
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe’s financial results are consolidated into
the Company’s financial statements as if it was a wholly-owned
subsidiary and the flow of economic benefits from its business to
the Company, places the Group in a special position in relation
to the connected transactions rules. Accordingly, notwithstanding
that the transactions contemplated under the Structure Contracts
technically constitute continuing connected transactions for
the purposes of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the Directors
consider that it would be unduly burdensome and impracticable
and would impose unnecessary administrative costs on us to be
subject to strict compliance with the requirements set out under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of these continuing
connected transactions.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, in relation to the transactions
regarding Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, the Company has applied
for and the Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from strict
compliance with the reporting, announcement, independent
shareholders’ approval, annual cap and agreements with fixed
term of no more than three years requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected
transactions under the Structure Contracts for so long as the

Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
In accordance with the relevant Structured Contracts, no dividends

or other distributions has been made by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to

their shareholders.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the

Structure Contracts and the above continuing connected

transactions.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive

Directors:

(i)

(iii)

the continuing connected transactions carried out during
the year are in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group and have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Structure Contracts so that
the revenue generated by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and the
subsidiaries of the Company have been mainly retained by

the Group;

the continuing connected transactions were entered into
either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there
is no available comparison, on terms that are no less
favourable to the Group than terms to or from independent

third parties;

no dividends or other distributions have been made by
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to their shareholders; and
any new Structure Contracts entered into, renewed or
reproduced between Beijing BaiChuanDuKe and the
Company during the relevant financial period are fair and
reasonable, or advantageous, so far as the Company are
concerned and in the interests of our shareholders as a

whole.
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Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, to report
on the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
PricewaterhouseCoopers has reported the results and their work
to the Board, confirming that the transaction has received the
approval of the Directors, has been entered into in accordance
with the relevant Structured Contracts and that no dividends or
other distributions has been made by Beijing BaiChuanDuKe to its

Shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 24 January 2019, the Company entered into the convertible
bond subscription agreement with TopBig International (a
wholly owned company by Mr. Chen Zhi, the Executive Director
and a shareholder of the Company), pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to issue, and TopBig International
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, the 3% Convertible Bonds
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$250,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB215,750,000). The subscription was completed on 23 April

2019.

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is HK$0.24
per conversion share (equivalent to HK$0.06 per share prior to the
Capital Reorganisation), subject to adjustment. The Convertible
Bond matures at the day falling on the third anniversary of
the date of issue of the convertible bonds and the conversion
period covers the period commencing on the date of issue of the

Convertible Bonds and ending on maturity date.
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On 22 April 2022, the conversion option of convertible bond
remained unexercised and it was lapsed. The Group and the
subscriber entered into a loan agreement where the outstanding
convertible bonds were replaced by a 2-year loan from Top
Big International Development Limited with face value of
RMB187,310,000 at an interest rate of 3% p.a (the “shareholder’s
loan”).
measured at fair value of RMB144,483,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$174,363,000). A gain of RMB42,826,000 have

been recognised in the Group's profit or loss.

The shareholder’s loan was recognised and initially

Conversion of convertible bonds

Based on the conversion price of HK$0.24 per Share, 185,600,000
Shares (the “Conversion Shares”) were allotted and issued by the
Company to TopBig International on 21 May 2019 (the "Partial
Conversion”).. As a result of the Partial Conversion, the issued
share capital of the Company has increased from 571,999,030
Shares to 757,599,030 Shares. The Conversion Shares rank
pari passu with all the existing Shares in issue as at the date of
allotment and among themselves in all respects. The 185,600,000
Conversion Shares represent: (a) approximately 32.45% of the
issued share capital immediately before the Partial Conversion;
and (b) approximately 24.50% of the issued share capital as

enlarged by the Partial Conversion.

Conversion of convertible preference shares

On 30 July 2022, the Group and TopBig International
Development Limited entered into the Loan Capitalisation
Agreement where the Company conditionally agreed to issue, and
TopBig International Development Limited agreed to subscribe
for 383,636,331 convertible preference shares (the “CPS") at
the subscription price of HK$0.57 per CPS, to settle the entire
outstanding balance (including the principal and interest) of the
shareholder’s loan. The completion of the Loan Capitalisation is
subject to satisfaction of conditions precedent. Hence, loss of
RMB72,719,000 was recognized for the difference between the
carrying amount of the shareholder’s loan and the initial fair value

of the contingently convertible loan.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERT

RIEZZFMABZ+-H > A RES
NEREEREDRTEEERAN - AER
BRBAGTLERBGZ MBEAARE
187,310,0007T ~ FF) X3ER 2K B 7 T EI R

BRERATDNMEMER (MRREM) A
HARITETBRRES RRERBAAREBEA

EE#£144,483,00070 (FHE 1 49174,363,0007%8
7o) ETRBRAFTE - ERAEE BT FE
S A R #42,826,0007T ©

BT ES
ARBERIB-—AFEEAZ+—BHEESK
BR130.24B TR E M 7 FE R R &
#7185,600,0008% i1 (AT ARG A& 17 1) (TEB 5
i) c-AEZBLER ARFNEETR
REH571,999,0308& & 45 1€ £757,599,030
R D o AT AR R D B E BT BIRA
BETROERFLEZEES A EAZEREH
fiI © 185,600,0004% P #1 i R (D B & 10 (a) B 45
ZE D BRI E BT A#32.45% ; K(b)
BN EIRE AN B BITRA424.50% ©

B HIREER
RIEZZFtRA=1+H ZxEEHFFTH
RERBRARGIUEMRERCHE BIL
RABBRGEEAREIT MATFERERE
[RABIBKRHRERIBESRISRELR
(T'CPS1) 0.578 T8 H8383,636,3318%CPS>
MEBRREMZ 2B REERE (BiFFE
RFE) c EMEXCAFIREHEERE
FEEM B mEREERNREERARE
AR ERMIRA N EZ BN EERDES
BARM72,719,0005T

+AERBERAT T __FER

65



66

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERT

The issuance of the CPS was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company at a special general meeting on 4
November 2022 and the Loan Capitalisation was approved by
the stock exchange on 9 November 2022. Therefore, contingent
convertible loan was remeasured on 9 November 2022 and fair

value loss of RMB25,350,000 was recognised.

On 11 November 2022, 383,636,331 Convertible Preference
Shares were allotted and issued to the TopBig International
Development Limited under the Convertible Preference Shares
Specific Mandate at the subscription price of HK$0.57 per
Convertible Preference Shares, in full and final settlement of
the entire outstanding balance of the TopBig International
Development Limited’s Loan (including principal and interest)
owed by the Group to the TopBig International Development

Limited.

Other than disclosed above, there was no other transaction which
needs to be disclosed as connected transaction in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2022.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDER

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner
while balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including
customers, suppliers and employees. Through regular stakeholder
engagement via different channels, the stakeholders are
encouraged to give their opinions regarding the environmental,

social and governance policies of the Group.

This includes providing quality services to customers, developing
effective and mutual beneficial working relationships with its
suppliers, and offering competitive remuneration package with

safety working environments to employees.
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The details of environmental, social and governance policies
and performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which is available
on the Company’s website (www.shifangholding.com) and on the

website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chen Zhi

Executive Director (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Hong Kong
31 March 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance and value of achieving
high standards of corporate governance practices. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is an essential element
in maintaining and promoting shareholder value and investor

confidence.

Corporate Governance

The Company has adopted the principles and complied with the
former and revised code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of
corporate governance since the date of the listing of the shares
of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 3
December, 2010, which shall also be revised from time to time
in accordance with the Listing Rules. Saved as disclosed below,
the Board considers the Company has complied with the code

provisions as set out in the CG Code.

Apart from the corporate governance aspect, which will be further
discussed in this report below, the Company has prepared and
published its first environmental, social and governance report
(the "ESG Report”) in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), which
sets out information regarding the year from 1 January to 31
December 2022, which is available on the Company’s website
(www.shifangholding.com) and on the website of the Stock

Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company fully
complied with the Code Provisions in the CG Code save for the
from code provisions B.2.3 and C.2.1, which are explained in the

relevant paragraph below.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Set out below the corporate governance principles and the
practices adopted and observed by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

THE BOARD

The Board provides effective and responsible leadership for the
Company in setting the strategic decision and overseeing the
Company’s overall operations. The Board meets regularly and each
Director has to make decisions objectively in the best interests of

the Company and its shareholders.

Board Composition

At the date of this report, the Board comprises 8 Directors, of
which three are executive Directors, Mr. Chen Zhi, Mr. Yu Shi and
Mr. Wang Xu, two are non-executive Directors, Ms. Chen Min and
Mr. Chen Ye and three are independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Wong Ming, Henry, Mr. Mao Xiangyun and Mr. Wei Hong.
The Composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having extensive knowledge, experience and expertise relevant
to the business operations and development of the Group. The
biographies of all Directors are set out on pages 33 to 41 of this
annual report. Ms. Chen Min is the sister of Mr. Chen Zhi. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors has any
other financial, business, family or other material or relevant

relationships among members of the Board.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2014. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board of the Company which includes but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee made an annual review on the structure,
size and composition of the Board and where appropriate, made
recommendations on changes to the Board that are relevant to the

Company'’s business growth.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. During the year
under review, the position of chairman was vacated before 9
October 2019, while Mr. Chen Zhi was appointed as the Chairman
and the CEO of the Company on 9 October 2019.

The Board met regularly to consider and review the major and
appropriate issues which may affect the operations of the
Company arising from the overlap of Chairman and CEO and/or
the vacancy of chairmanship. As such, the Board considers that
the sufficient measures had been taken and that either the overlap
of chairman and CEO and/or the vacancy of chairmanship should
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board

and the management.

During the report period, the Chairman also met the Independent
Non-executive Directors each year without the presence of other

Directors in accordance with Corporate Governance Code.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed three independent non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. The Company has
received from each of its independent non-executive Directors
the written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board, based on such confirmation,

considers all independent non-executive Directors independent.

Access to Independent Views and Opinions by the Board

The Company has put in place a mechanism to ensure that the
Board has access to independent views and opinions and reviews
the implementation and effectiveness of the mechanism every
year. All independent non-executive Directors are identified as
such in all corporate communications containing the names of the

Directors.
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Board Proceedings

The Company will hold at least four board meetings at
approximately quarterly intervals and will also meet at such other
times when necessary. Formal agenda of all Board meetings are
distributed to the Directors for comments and approval, generally,
at least 14 days before the meetings. Adequate time and sufficient
resources will be provided to all Directors to discharge their duties
at which the Directors actively participate and hold informed
discussions. All minutes of Board meetings will be recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions

reached.

During the year, the Board convened 2 shareholders’ general
meetings, 5 board meetings, 4 Audit Committee meetings, 1
Remuneration Committee meeting and 1 Nomination Committee
meeting respectively. The attendance of individual Directors at
general meetings and meetings of the Board, Audit Committee,

Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee is as
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follows:
Meeting attended/held
HE/ BT8RN
Shareholders'
General Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination
Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
BRAE B%x® EBKZE® §HWZEe ReZEe
Executive Directors iﬂﬁ§§
Chen Zhi (Chief Executive Officer) & (TH##)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer of (i?_ E-NF+EAH
9 October 2019) BZEATREH) 0 5/5 NA R 171 11
Yu Shi Quan (Chief Financial Officer) revik (BEIEE) 0 5/5 NA R NA R NA TR
Wang Xu (aopointed as on 9 January 2023) ETL (RZFZ=F—ANHEZH) NA REH NA REH NA REH NA R EH NA R EH
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Chen Min R 1n 55 NA RER NA R NA RER
Chen Wei Dong (7esigned as on 9 January 2023) BER (K -F_=F-FAAHFTD 112 5/5 NA REH NA REH NA AEH
Chen Ye (gppointed as on 9 January 2023) WG (R ZEZ=F-FNHEZF) NA R H NA R H NA R EH NA REH NA REH
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Wong Heung Ming, Henry =1L 22 5/5 4/4 1”n 1”n
Zhou Chang Ren (resigned as on 9 January 2023) BEC(WZE-ZF-AAA#T) 072 5/5 404 17 NA R
Cai Jian Quan (resigned as on 9 January 2023) BEE K _E-_ZF-AAHFET) 12 5/5 474 NA R 17
Mao Xiangyun (@ppointed as on 9 January 2023) ENE(RZEZF-FAAEEHF) NA R H NA R H NA REH NA R EH NA REH
Wei Hong (appointed as on 9 January 2023) Woh (WZFZ=F—-FNHEZH) NA REH NA R EH NA R EH NA R EH NA REH
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All the Directors have access to relevant and timely information.
They also have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company, who is responsible for providing the
Directors with Board papers and related materials. Where queries
are raised by the Directors, prompt and full responses will be given

if possible.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder of the Company or a Director arise, the matter will be
discussed in a physical Board meeting, as opposed to being dealt
with by a written resolution. Independent Non-Executive Directors
with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings dealing

with such conflict issues.

Independent Non-Executive Directors are identified in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors. An
updated list of the Directors identifying the Independent Non-
Executive Directors and the roles and functions of the Directors is
maintained on the website of the Company and the website of

the Stock Exchange.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success and
interest of the Group through its leadership and supervision. The

principal tasks of the Board are to:

(i)  provide entrepreneurial leadership for the Company with a
framework of prudent and effective controls which enables
risks to be assessed and managed;

(i)  set the Company’s strategic aims, ensuring that the

necessary financial and human resources are in place for the

Company to meet its objectives and review its management

performance; and
(iii) set the Company’s values and standards and ensure that its

obligations to its shareholders and others are understood

and met.
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The Directors, after making due enquiries and considering the
basis of management'’s projections and after taking into account
the reasonably possible changes in the operation performance,
believe that there will be sufficient financial resources available
to the Group at least in the coming twelve months to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fail due. Accordingly,
the Directors consider that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements set out in the audited financial
statements on pages 102 to 257 of this annual report on a going

concern basis.

Skills, knowledge, experience and attributes of Directors

All Directors of the Board served in office during the year. Every
Director commits to give sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company. The Directors also demonstrate their
understanding and commit to high standards of corporate
governance. The Executive Director brings his perspectives
to the Board through his deep understanding of the Group's
business. The Non-Executive Directors and the Independent Non-
Executive Directors contribute their own skills and experience,
understanding of local and global economies, and knowledge
of capital markets to the Group's business. The Company is
responsible for arranging and funding suitable continuous
professional development programmes for all Directors to hone

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Induction and training

Each newly appointed Director, executive or non-executive, is
required to undertake an induction program to ensure that he
has a proper understanding of his duties and responsibilities.
The induction program includes an overview of the Group’s
business operation and governance policies, the Board meetings’
procedures, matters reserved to the Board, an introduction of
the Board committees, the Directors’ responsibilities and duties,
relevant regulatory requirements, review(s) of minutes of the
Board and Board committees in the past 12 months, and briefings

with senior officers of the Group and site visits (if necessary).
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Pursuant to the Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the year, all Directors had participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by ways of
attending training and/or reading materials relevant to the
Company's business or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
In addition, all Directors have been updated on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. A summary of
training recovered by Directors for the year ended 31 December

2022 according to the records provided by the Directors is as

RIFEEEATANTFIMENCI4 PRBEE
ER2EFBEHESR ERUFNEH
EREfgE UWBRRETEEE2EEARTER
ENERTHESSELEM -AFEEAN PRI
EEZEEE2MElk ABEBERAR
BEBAEETHEREENME2EBEN
FHEEEERTH I PMEESSEIEM
R EmRAREMEREEREN R E
BRER URRETREARSEHRIFEE
EARABHNRAA - ZRBREFRBNLCER ES
REE_E__FE+"A=+—HIEEEH
ZHEIIENT

follow:
Training on
corporate
governance,
regulatory
development
and other
relevant topics
BERtEER
EEERER
HtERRE
Director = ope=H
Executive: 1T !
Chen Zhi (CEO) (appointed as CEO on 9 October BRE (FTEAEE) (I —F—4F
2019) +HA N AEZEHTTEAER) v
Yu Shi Quan REFHE 4
Wang Xu (appointed as on 9 January 2023) B (R ZEZ=ZF—FANHEZT) N/AT 3
Non-executive: FEHIT !
Chen Min I B 4
Chen Ye (appointed as on 9 January 2023) [REE (W ZEZ=F—HNLHEZT) N/AZ 7 FB
Chen Wei Dong (resigned as on 9 January 2023) RIER (P ZEZ=F—HF/HFH#T) 4
Independent Non-executive: BILIEHIT :
Wong Heung Ming, Henry = MR 4
Mao Xiangyun (appointed as on 9 January 2023) ENE (R ZEZ=F—HNLHEZF) N/AT 3
Wei Hong (appointed as on 9 January 2023) Bsh (W —E_=F—FANHEZ) N/AT 3
Zhon Chang Ren (resigned as on 9 January 2023) BEIZ (R ZEZ=F—HLHFF) v
Cai Jian Quan (resigned as on 9 January 2023) KER (R _EFE_ZF—HNHEFT) v
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Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers in respect of legal actions
against the Directors. Throughout 2022 no claim had been made

against the Directors and the officers of the Company.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of
three years, which may be terminated by not less than six months’
notice (for executive Directors) or one month’s notice (for non-
executive Directors) in writing served by either party on the other.
The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for
a term of three years and shall be terminable by either party giving
not less than one month prior notice in writing. The Directors have
power at any time and from time to time to appoint any person
to be a Director, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the existing Directors. Any Director so appointed shall hold office
only until the next annual general meeting of our Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting. In accordance
with the Articles or Bye-laws of the Company, at every annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being or, if the number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to, but not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Relationships and associations among the Directors

Ms. Chen Min is the sister of Mr. Chen Zhi. Save as disclosed,
there was no relationship between members of the Board
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant

relationship(s)).

Company secretary

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) is responsible for keeping detailed minutes of each
meeting of the Board or the Board committees including any
dissenting views expressed by the Directors, which should
be made available to all Directors for inspection. She is also
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures comply with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board on
corporate governance matters. All agenda, relevant materials and
document are required to be sent out at least 3 days prior to the
intended dates of the Board meetings or meetings of the Board
committees. It is the responsibility of the Company Secretary to
send the draft minutes of the meetings of the Board or the Board
committees to all Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the aforesaid meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings
of the Board or the Board committees are also required to be sent
to all Directors for record. All Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board

procedures and all applicable laws are followed.
Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all
Directors updated on the Listing Rules, regulatory requirements, as

well as internal codes of conduct of the Company.

During the Year, the Company Secretary had confirmed that she

had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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Model Code for Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by the Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set forth in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct for dealing in securities by the directors of the Company.
Specific enquiries have been made with all the incumbent
directors of the Company and all of them confirmed and declared
that they have complied with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code during the year ended to 31 December 2022.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
has been established on 8 November 2010 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three members, all being independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry (Chairman),
Mr. Mao Xiangyun (Appointed as on 9 January 2023) and Mr. Wei
Hong (appointed as on 9 January 2023). Mr. Zhou Cheng Ren and
Mr. Cai Jianquan were resigned as Audit Committee member on 9

January 2023.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are:

- To make recommendations to the Board on (i) the

appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditors; (ii) the audit fee and terms of engagement of the
external auditors; and (iii) any questions of resignation or

dismissal of that auditor

- To review and monitor the external auditors’ independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in

accordance with applicable standards
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- To monitor the integrity of the financial statements of
the Company and the Company's annual report and
accounts, interim report and quarterly financial highlights,
and reviewing significant financial reporting judgements

contained in those reports

- To review the adequacy and monitor the effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, internal control and

risk management systems.

- To review the financial reporting system, risk management

and internal control system.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in
conjunction with the external auditor, the annual results and
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022, including the accounting policies and practice adopted by
the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee
had performed their primary duties to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and the internal control procedures of
the Company. The Audit Committee has also held meeting with
the Company’s external auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers
("PwC") without the presence of executive Directors and
management, to discuss matters arising from the auditing
and report to the Board on material issues, if any, and make

recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. Latest terms of reference of the Audit
Committee can be viewed on the website of the Company and the

website of the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) has been established on 8 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. Wei Hong (Chairman) (appointed as on 9 January 2023),
Mr. Chen Zhi,

Xiangyun (Appointed as on 9 January 2023), the majority of which

Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry, and Mr. Mao

being independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Zhou Chang Ren
was resigned as Remuneration committee member on 9 January
2023. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
evaluate and make recommendations to the Board regarding the
remuneration packages to the Directors and senior management
which will be determined by reference to the performance of
the individual and the Company as well as market trends and

practices.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are more specifically set out in its latest
terms of reference, details of which can be viewed on the website

of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the year:

(@) formulating and recommending the policy and structure of
the remuneration of the Directors and senior officers of the

Group to the Board;

(b) assessing individual performance of the Directors and senior

officers of the Group;

(c) reviewing specific remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior officers of the Group with reference to the
Board's corporate goals and objectives as well as individual

performances; and

(d) reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on

compensation-related issues.
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Nomination Committee
The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) has been established on 8 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
Chen Zhi (Chairman), Mr.

Mr. Mao Xiangyun (appointed as on 9 January 2023), and Mr. Wei

namely Mr. Wong Heung Ming,
Hong (appointed as on 9 January 2023), the majority of which
being independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Cai Jianquan
was resigned as Nomination Committee member on 9 January
2023. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.
The Nomination Committee selects and recommends the
candidates for directorship shall base on the criterion including
professional knowledge, competence, experience, independence

and integrity.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties. The current duties and responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee are more specifically set out in its latest
terms of reference, details of which can be viewed on the website

of the Company and the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2014. The policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board of the Company which include but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional experience. The
Nomination Committee will review annually the structure, size
and composition of the Board and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board that are relevant to the

Company’s business growth.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the

Nomination Committee during the year:

(@) reviewing and evaluating the composition of the Board
with reference to certain criteria. These criteria included
qualifications required under the Listing Rules or any other
relevant laws regarding characteristics and skills of the
Directors, professional ethics and integrity, appropriate

professional knowledge and industry experience, as well as

ability to devote sufficient time to the work of the Board and
its committees and to participate in all Board meetings and

shareholders’ meetings;

(b) reviewing and recommending the re-appointment of the
retiring Directors for re-election at the previous general

meeting; and

(c) assessing independence of the Independent Non-Executive

Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee had performed their primary duties to review and
make recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, including its diversity, based on a
range of perspectives with reference to the Company’s business
model and requirements, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualifications,
skills,

Committee considered that the current composition of the Board

knowledge and regional experience. The Nomination

is balanced in terms of diversity and is able to meet the objectives
of the Board.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 which reflect true and fair view of the financial position
of the Company and the Group and in compliance with relevant
law and disclosure provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is
responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required

under the Listing Rules.

The Group appointed PwC as the Group's external auditor. The
statement by PwC regarding their reporting responsibility to the
shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 89

to 101 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration
paid or payable to PwC for audit services and non-audit services
amounted to RMB4,800,000 (2021: RMB3,474,000) and nil (2021:

nil) respectively.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems, and for reviewing their
design, operational adequacy, and effectiveness on an ongoing
basis to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the assets
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group through the Audit
Committee. The Board engaged an internal audit team which
carries out the analysis and independent assessment of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's risk management
and internal control systems and reports to the Board. Review of
the Group’s internal controls cover major financial, operational
and compliance controls as well as risk management functions of
different systems has been done on a systematic basis based on
the risk assessments of the operations and controls. The scope
of review for the year had been determined and approved by the
Audit Committee. Saved as disclosed below, no major issues but
areas for improvement have been identified. The Board and the
Audit Committee considered that the key areas of the Group’s

internal control systems are reasonably implemented.

The Company recognises that the overlap of chairman and CEO
and/or the vacancy of chairmanship may affect the operations of
the Company. The Board has met regularly to consider and review
the major and appropriate issues. As such, the Board considers
that the sufficient measures had been taken and the overlap of
chairman and CEO and/or the vacancy of chairmanship should not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and

the management.
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The Company has set up certain procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information in
relation to the disclosure of inside information. The Directors,
supervisors, management and employees of the Company are
required to comply strictly with the statutory requirements,
rules and regulations in relation to the duty of confidentiality of
information and the Company’s internal regulations on inside
information to ensure that the disclosure of inside information
complies with the requirements of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy which is
designed to encourage all stakeholders of the Group to express
their concerns or report any actual or suspected misconduct
in relation to the Group through confidential whistleblowing
channels. The Group will handle such reports prudently and will
address the concerns raised by the whistleblowers in a fair and

appropriate manner.

The Company has incorporated anti-bribery provisions into its staff
handbook and provided practical guidance in accordance with
section 9 of the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Corporate governance functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate

governance duties as required under the CG Code:

(a)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices

on corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior officers

of the Group;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the codes of conduct

applicable to employees and the Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board considered the following corporate

governance matters:

(i)

(ii)

review of the compliance with the CG Code; and

review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and
risk management systems of the Group through the Audit

Committee.
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INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of effective communication
with shareholders and continues to act in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Company keeps shareholders
and investors informed of its business performance and strategies
by adopting a transparent and timely disclosure policy which
complies with the Listing Rules and provides all shareholders
equal access to such information. The Company also publishes all

documents on the Company’s website at www.shifangholding.com.

The Board reviews the shareholder communication policy on an
annual basis to ensure a good relationship with shareholders and
compliance with the relevant rules and Corporate Governance
Code.

The annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM") also
provides a forum for the Board to dialogue and interact with the
Shareholders directly. The Directors and the committee members

are available to answer questions during the AGM.

Notice of AGM, annual report, financial statements and related
papers were posted to shareholders of the Company for their
consideration at least 20 clear business days prior to the AGM.
AGM proceedings of the Company are continually reviewed in the

light of corporate governance best practices.
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Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders

of the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the

mandatory disclosure requirements under Paragraph O of the CG
Code which is effective from 1 April 2012.

(a)

Convening of general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

General meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of any one or more members of the Company
to the Board or the Secretary of the Company deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that
such requisitionist(s) held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist,
provided that such requisitionist held as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting

at general meetings of the Company.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting to be held within further 2 months of the deposit
of such requisites, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

(b) Procedures for putting forward proposals at a

Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to put forward
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981 or the bye-laws of the Company.
However, Shareholders who wish to put forward a resolution
may request the Company to convene an special general
meeting following the procedures set out above.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available on the Company’s
website.

(c) Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board in
writing to the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the
enquiries.

Constitutional documents

During the year, there had been no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents. The New Memorandum
of Continuance and Bye-Laws was adopted conditionally at an
Extraordinary General Meeting held at 25 February 2019 with
effect from the date of continuance of the Company under the
laws of Bermuda.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

=
pwc

To the Shareholders of ShiFang Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and redomiciled and

continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of ShiFang Holding Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set

out on pages 102 to 260, comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the

year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year

then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then

ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our

report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (“IESBA
Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of
RMB167,915,000 and a net cash used in operating activities of
RMB11,645,000 during the year ended 31 December 2022 and,
as at 31 December 2022, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by RMB58,200,000 while the Group had cash
and cash equivalents of approximately RMB46,025,000. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2.1 to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified

in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit

matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

follows:
o Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, other intangible assets and long term

prepayments for Yongtai Township Development Project

o Valuation of the Group's properties held for sale
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Key Audit Matter
MREEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, other intangible assets and long term
prepayments for Yongtai Township Development Project
XER/NAFEBEENYE BEMARE - FRAEEE -HM
B EE RRAEMRBENRE G

Refer to note 2.9 (Accounting policies), note 4(a) (Critical
accounting estimates and assumptions), note 7 (property,
plant and equipment), note 27 (lease), note 9 (Intangible
assets) and note 11 (prepayments, deposits and other
receivable) to the consolidated financial statements.
F2EEHM B RENE2.9 (FETBER) Mistsa) (REE
GthEt KRR ~WEE7 X BEKRRHE) KizE27 (1
5) ‘M (BEEE) KM (BARIE-REREME
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM EA A RERARESEE

Our procedures in relation to management'’s

impairment assessment included:

ZPEEERENENEFEE

(i)

(ii)

Obtaining an understanding of the management'’s
internal control and assessment process
of impairment assessment and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement
by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors;
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Evaluating the outcome of prior period
assessment of impairment assessment to
assess the effectiveness of management'’s
estimation process;
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Key Audit Matter
RREEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, other intangible assets and long term
prepayments for Yongtai Township Development Project
(Continued)
XER/NEREBEENY X BMEAREB EREEE -HM
B EERRARMRIENRESE (8

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, other intangible
assets and long term prepayments related to the Yongtai
Township Development Project were approximately
RMB28,719,000, RMB1,880,000, RMB24,704,000 and
RMB20,785,000 (2021: RMB27,914,000, RMB2,142,000,
RMB25,410,000 and RMB20,785,000) respectively before
the impairment charges for the year ended 31 December
2022. Accordingly, management considered that there was
indicator of potential impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, other intangible assets and
long term prepayments due to certain delays in the project
development.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BANE

(iii)

(iii)

(iv)

(iv)

(vi)

(vi)

St RRERMRE S EE

Evaluating the independent external valuer's
objectivity, capability and competency to
perform the valuation;
TEBIUIIIELERZES
EETEE

SEB-BAENDRE

Evaluating management’s assessment on
identification of CGU;
FHEEEHHHNIREEEBEMUIFEHNT
=

Considering the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies used based on our
industry knowledge and relevant market
practice;
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Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology adopted and the reasonableness
of key assumptions used in determining the
recoverable amount with the involvement of
our internal valuation expert;
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Key Audit Matter
MREEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, other intangible assets and long term
prepayments for Yongtai Township Development Project
(Continued)
XER/NEREBEENY X BEASREB EHREEE -HM
B EERRARMRIENREST G (8

The Group has performed impairment assessments to
compare the recoverable amounts of the cash generating
unit (“CGU") to which these assets belong, based on
discounted cash flow projections using fair value less costs
of disposal (“FVLCD") or value in use (“VIU") calculations,
to their carrying amounts. The key assumptions used in
the valuation including revenue compound annual growth
rate, post-tax discount rate and forecasted revenue. Based
on the impairment tests performed, no impairment charges
was recognised against property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, other intangible assets and long term
prepayments for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
2021, respectively.
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We focused on this area due to the significant management
judgment involved to determine the assumptions used in the
impairment assessment.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM EA A RERARESEE

(vii)

(vii)

(viii)

(viii)

Assessing the reasonableness of key
assumptions used in the valuation by
comparing assumptions such as post-tax
discount rate, revenue compound annual
growth rate and forecasted revenue against
the approved budget, latest development of
projects, relevant market data and industry
information;
BRANLEREBMRR - WABSFEREXR
FEAWASRZELHETERE BB RTH
ZRA T EBTHBEBERITEER sHE
EFffEERREESE;

Considering management’s sensitivity analysis
with respect to variations of key assumptions
adopted, to evaluate the extent to which
reasonably possible changes, both individually
and in aggregate, would result in material
changes in the assessment on impairment.

ZREEEAMMREMIZRREHOHR
E o UESEA] 178 E AT &8 R R
B 7] e R BT S N E KSR P AE &£ o

Based on the above, we found management’s

judgements and assumptions involved in the

impairment assessment were supported by available

evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
RREEE

Valuation of the Group's properties held for sale

EEERFHENENGE

Refer to note 2.11 (Accounting policies), note 4(d) (Critical
accounting estimates and assumptions) and note 14
(Properties held for sale) to the consolidated financial
statements

F2REHTHERRMEE2.11 (FETEER) ~
BEMEST RBRR) K14 FEHEYE)

By EE4(d) (RAR

The Group owns certain properties held for sale which are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. The net carrying value of the Group’s properties
held for sale was RMB15,097,000 (2021: RMB22,793,000)
as at 31 December 2022.

EEEREETHFLEYE ZSYERREERRAAE
BEERAREETR EEERFFHEYER T
F+ZA=+—HNREFESARE15,097,0007T (ZF
——&F: AR#22,793,0007T) °

Management engaged an independent external valuer to
appraise the value of the properties held for sale using the
direct market comparable approach and income approach.
Management assessed the appropriateness of methodologies
and assumptions underlying the valuations performed by the
independent external valuer.

EIRELZEE I INEEEMRAEETIS BRI AE
TS FHEMENEE EEE E%WE?%E%%ME%EWE
THERNERL ZRBRRESEE

MR PR Gl

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN BRI EERRETSFE

Our procedures in relation to management'’s
judgement and estimates used to determine the
fair value less costs to sell of the Group's properties
held for sale included:

BEMMEEERUEE EERFFEHEYENR
AEREDERANEIEREHE REGFFTERER S
EE

(i) Obtaining an understanding of the management'’s
internal control and assessment process of
valuation of properties held for sale and assessed
the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors;

() THREEEHFFLHEVERETHENRT
EHI R s RA2 > W E 8 E (st AE
E R B At E B R bR F R KT LT E KR
BRILAYE A R

(i)  Evaluating the outcome of prior period
assessment of valuation of properties
held for sale to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process;

(i FEFIFHEMEGENRIATMGEER XU
MO EREE M EENE R ;

(iii) Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
objectivity, capability and competency to
perform the valuation;

(i) FFEJBILIBEEMNES
EEITEE S

ER -AEAORBE

(iv) Considering the appropriateness of the
valuation methodologies used by the
independent external valuer with reference
to the nature and purposes of the Group’s
properties and relevant market practice with
the involvement of our internal valuation
expert;

vy, 2R B£EEYVENULERBRUKNERAT
BB ARMANVAESGLEERZEATER
BN ERMFTAREER EZREEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B\IZHENR S

Key Audit Matter
MREEE

Valuation of the Group’s properties held for sale (Continued)

EEERFHENENGE B

We focused on this area due to the significant management
judgement and estimates used to determine the fair value
less costs to sell and, consequentially, the provision for loss
for the Group's properties held for sale.
RAFILLRERENEE SEEEFFLREYENAR
BEREHENARALGENGEEGER EEREREERE
FI R R (5t o

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KM EA A RERARESEE

(v)

(vi)

(vi)

Discussing with management the
appropriateness of the selection criteria of
comparable properties and the adjusting
factors used in the independent external
valuer’s valuation under market comparable
approach having regard to the location, size
and nature of the properties; and

HEEEN RO LR ERPERER RIE T
SNEBIEERIIRIBE R IBLEBUEMYEMLE - K
NNRUEEFANAERRRREEE &

Assessing the reasonableness of key
assumptions used in the valuation under
income approach, including expected rental
income, growth rate and discount rate,
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry and comparing with relevant market
data;
BERMBAEBEBRITENNS > FEHR
BUWACEETEERPTANRERERR (B1EE
HETWA-BEXRUREX) ZE55E I
BT R EUREITHEE ;

Based on the above, we found management’s

judgements and assumptions involved in the

impairment assessment were supported by available

evidence.
BER XA RMERAETER S ROEEE
FIE RS A A RE X o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in ShiFang Holding Limited Annual Report
2022 (the

statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained

“annual report”) other than the consolidated financial

some of the other information including Corporate Information
and Management Discussion and Analysis prior to the date of
this auditor’s report. The remaining other information, including
Financial Highlights and Summary, Chairman's Statement,
Directors and Senior Management Profile, Directors’ Report,
Corporate Governance Report and the other sections to be
included in the annual report, is expected to be made available to

us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not and will not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report the fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included
in the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to the Audit Committee and take appropriate action considering

our legal rights and obligations.

MR PR Gl
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B+AERERABD SR (TF
| RREHVBRRREMANZBEMRE
SAMIFTAERER - RFABER AR S B
AIEATENKEREmADNESET
HtER B TITHNEMEECREMERER
BME - FTEREE - EZRaREEBERE -
EERG CETARBRERBOEEERN
HMEHm BBASERZEMBRE HER

2,

N

EMEEHUBRIRNBER L AREHEME
B BMBEAORAEZEEMESERME
fjﬂ/_tgj%_ﬂg‘u A ©

EERMESHUBEREROES RANE
TERBLAFRER LELBER EE
HthEE RSB HUBRERAKXMER
BREPATERNBEIFEENEERE LT
FHEEARERBRABER

Hﬂ%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ@%ﬁ¢5%%ﬂ1m
tMESFMATHIF IRRMAIBA/ZFH
thEEFAEENERRL  HABERSZ
BoaELhE HfIREEARS-

ERMREEFRABFTHMES R NRK
PHRSEREEERERRL  HAESE
WMEREAEZZEGEE UERBHME
RRANNEZHERNEENTH -

+AERBERAT T __FER

97



98

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B\IZHENR S

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

MR PR Gl
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B\IZHENR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Ho Chun Yu.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED

MR PR Gl
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

BHEERER

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022
R=BEsE L~ 5 =F—H

2022 2021
—E-- T4
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
i AR®FT ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- R REE 7 30,735 39,822
Investment properties s d—L7/ES 8 29,204 =
Right-of-use assets EREEE 26 2,738 3,241
Intangible assets EIL B E 9 28,720 36,958
Prepayments, deposits and FEMRIERE R
other receivables HhgE W zIE 11 20,785 20,785
Investments accounted for AT EARNEE
using the equity method 10 - -
112,182 100,806
Current assets RENEE
Biological assets EMEE 12 185 119
Inventories E5 13 371 917
Properties held for sale FIEHEYE 14 15,097 22,793
Financial assets at fair value NABERIETRARN
through profit or loss ETMEE 15 4,376 7,432
Trade receivables — net B 5 RUGRIE—#58 16 14,518 7,004
Contract assets — net BRBE— P 5 260 2,419
Prepayments, deposits and other FENMIE-EEk
receivables Hh W sRIa 11 63,697 62,088
Restricted cash ZREIIRE 578 935
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRIE€EEER 17 46,025 8,851
145,107 112,558
Assets classified as held for sale NEAFEHESE 38 = 26,681
Total assets mEE 257,289 240,045
EQUITY ¥
Equity attributable to owners TAFIFREEREGER
of the Company
Share capital (&N 18 261,475 8,065
Share premium R iaE 18 109,546 55,796
Other reserves Hith B 19 185,662 191,702
Accumulated deficits HEtE 4t (550,997) (381,189)
5,686 (125,626)
Non-controlling interests JEERER 20(d) 32,270 6,106
Total equity/(deficit) W (B4 4858 37,956 (119,520)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

BHEERER

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022
K — e = = e 5

2022 2021
- B £
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

By 5E ARBFT ARETT

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Loan from a shareholder
Amount due to a joint venture
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables, accrued expenses and
contract liabilities

Financial guarantees

Lease liabilities

Loan from a shareholder

Borrowings

Convertible bonds

Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Current income tax liabilities

Amount due to a joint venture

Amounts due to related parties

Total liabilities

Total equity/(deficit) and liabilities

afE|

FERBERE

HE&R
KE—BRENER
BN —HaEEERE
EIEFRERAR

nBaR

B EA™RIA

HAE A RIE Bt R
GBHaR

B ER

HE&R

RE—BRENER
RN

ARG

NAREEBERARA
THRAR
BIEAFR SR E R

N —BaELENEA

EAREALREA

mefE
R (B4 haBEEE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31
March 2023 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

Chen Zhi
BRE

26 4,315 4,694
35(d) 2,919 1,500
23 8,792 3
21 - 888
_____ . 082

22 26,508 12,790
22 107,817 123,764
851 865

26 2,126 2,036
35(d) 1,500 L
23 - 6,350
24 - 181,356
25 25,690 -
5,868 5,851

9,080 -

37(c) 23,867 19,471
B 3°2483
219,333 359,565

257,289 240,045

KEEEN _E_—F=-RA=+—HLAEXK
BT THTNEERRESTEE

Yu Shi Quan
REFHE

Director

EF

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Director

EF

tHGHEEERRARBHNNE—HREE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

aBHEERTR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
i ——= = =)

2022 2021
—E-C B —F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
NS ARETF T ARBEEFT
Revenue A 5 129,321 265,158
Cost of sales HE A 28 (118,492) (243,429)
Gross profit EH 10,829 21,729
Selling and marketing expenses HE M EHBX (9,556) (26,253)
General and administrative expenses — R RATE R (23,884) (40,833)
Impairment loss of properties FIEHEYMERERIE
held for sale 14 (5,323) -
Gain on conversion of convertible bond ] #2i% 5 % 8 A IG R & AT
to shareholder loan W= 24 42,827 =
Loss on conversion of shareholder loan &5 &Rk Aol A A] g
to contingent convertible loan EREE 18 (72,719) =
Fair value change of contingent AR ERN A REEE
convertible loan 18 (25,350) -
Net fair value (loss)/gain on financial NAEKEGZRARNEHME
assets at fair value through profit or ENANE (BB W358
loss 15 (3,056) 868
Provision for impairment of trade BEBRRIBERENEERE
receivables and contract assets, net B 558 28 (1,609) 1,796
Provision for impairment on property, — Y12~ = K R B (B B 5
plant and equipment 7 - (8,818)
Provision for impairment on right-of-use fFAEE E R E G
assets 26 - (1,550)
Provision for impairment on goodwill andf 28 & E fhE 12 & E B E & HE
other intangible assets 9 (7,148) (161,318)
Other income Haug A 27 109 950
Other gains — net Hhm — 958 27 14,404 119
Operating loss T ETig ____(_8_0_,‘}26_) ___£2_1_3_,§1_Q)
Finance income P UA 31 16 53
Finance costs MR A 31 (13,125) (19,959)
Finance costs — net AR — 558 31 ~(13,109)  (19,906)
Share of loss of investments accounted G AET EAEMNEEEE
for using the equity method 10 (75,034) -
Loss before income tax FREFISTAIRS1E 28 (168,619) (233,216)
Income tax credit Frigfig e 32 704 44,352
Loss for the year FrkEsE (167,915) (188,864)
Loss attributable to: T5HIEEELEE :
— Owners of the Company —KRREIEE (169,809) (187,468)
— Non-controlling interests —JEER S 1,894 (1,396)
(167,915) (188,864)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SHEEBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
= S =S B

2022 2021
—E-C BT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AREFT AREBT T
Other comprehensive income Hth2mia=
Item that may be reclassified HEB B 7 E IR mAREEE
subsequently to profit or loss
Currency translation differences B E £ (6,040) 1,724
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREMZE (§i8) Ik
fortheyear 0 (6,040) 1,724
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREEREEEEEE
for the year (173,955) (187,140)
Loss and total comprehensive loss  F3IIEH ELEE K
attributable to: S EESIEASEE -
— Owners of the Company —RAFIPREE (175,849) (185,744)
— Non-controlling interests —JEER R 1,894 (1,396)
(173,955) (187,140)
Loss per share for loss attributable ZARQTFREEEGHEEN
to owners of the Company SRE5E
— Basic (RMB per share) — 2K (EBRARE 33 (0.1668) (0.2029)
— Diluted (RMB per share) -8 (BRAR) 33 (0.1668) (0.2029)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B EREER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
i ——= = =)

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRTMEEER
Convertible Capital Non-
Share Share bonds  redemption Capital Contributed  Exchange Revaluation  Statutory Accumulated controlling Total
Capital ~ premium reserve Teserve  reserves surplus  reserves surplus  Reserves deficits Total interests equity
BE:
Ry ROER  A5HE RABEHEE  ASHE  REEBE  EREE  EMER  IERE  RHE4 @i ekEE  RERE
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
M ABETn ARETR ABKTn ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETn ARETR ABKTn ARETR ARBTR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2022 RIS_ZE-R-BN&E 8,065 55,796 33,135 997 41,297 96,890 3,609 2,629 13145 (381,189)  (125,626) 6106 (119,520
Loss for the year ERER = = = = = = = = - (169,809)  (169,809) 189 (167,915)
Other comprehensive income Eth2ERE
Currency translation differences EEREZE - - - - - - (6,040) - - - (6,040) - (6,040)
Total comprehensive loss 2EERLE - - - - - - (6,040) - - (169,809  (175,849) 1894 (173,955)
Transactions with owners AREEANRS
Appreciation of statutory reserve BETITHE - - - - - - - - 57 (57) - - -
Disposal of equity interest in a subsidiary HEMEBATRE - - - - - - - - - - - 9,405 9,405
Conversion of convertible bonds to BRTRRESAEER
preference shares 18(a) 252,608 - - - - - - - - - 252,608 - 252,608
Capital injection from non-controlling ~ REMBASFERRENTE
shareholders of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - 14,865 14,865
Acquisition it 18(b) 802 53,750 = = - - - - - - 54,552 - 54,552
Totaltransactions with owners AEEANLREE B340 53750 - - - - - - 57 (57) 307,160 24210 331431
Balance at 31 December 2022 RIS-ZE+ZA=+-HNGR 261,475 109,546 33,135 997 41,297 96,890 (2431) 2,629 13202 (551,055) 5,685 32,210 37,956
Attributable to owners of the Company
FARMEEENR
Convertible Capital Non-
Share Share bonds ~ redemption Capital  Contributed ~ Exchange  Revaluation  Statutory Accumulated controlling Total
Capital ~ premium Teserve Teserve Teserves surplus Teserves suplus— Resenves deficts Total  interests equity
B
kxR E5HE BARDGRE EAHE  REBE  EREE  BABH  iREE  BHEY & FEREE  REEE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ME ARETr AR%Tn ARETn ARBTR ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2021 RIEZ-F-F-BHEH 7,769 48,820 34,519 997 41,297 96,890 1,885 2,69 13,146 (193,722) 54,230 7,502 61,732
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - - = - (e (8468)  (139%)  (188864)
Other comprehensive income HEth2ERE
Currency translation differences EEREEE - - - - - - 1724 - - - 1724 S 1724
Total comprehensive loss 2EFRLEE - - - - - - 1724 - - (187,468)  (185,744) (1396) (187,140
Transactions with owners AEHANRS
Appropriation of statutory reserves BRTITHR - - - - - o S o 0] 1 - - -
Conversion of convertible bonds 2RIRRES 18(0) 2% 6,976 (1,384) - - - - - - - 5888 - 5,888
Total transactions with owners SEEANRREE 29% 6,976 (1,384) - - - - (1) 1 5,888 S 5,888
Balance at 31 December 2021 RIEZ-F+ZB=+-HNES 8,065 55,796 33,135 997 41,297 96,890 3,609 2,69 13,145 (381,189)  (125,626) 6,106 (119,520)
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be TR EE R BN —HRE

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=
EHEERER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
= S =S B

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operations
Interest received

Interest paid

Income tax paid
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and

equipment

Additions of intangible assets

Refund of prepayment for property,
plant and equipment

Return of prepayment for township

development

Down payment received for asset
classified as held for sale

Proceeds for disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Acquisition of subsidiaries,
net of cash received

Dividend received from investments
accounted for using the equity

method

Net cash generated from investing

activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Capital injection from non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary
Repayment of bank borrowings
Principal payment of lease liabilities
Drawdown of loan from a joint venture
Drawdown of bank borrowings
Drawdown of loan from a shareholder

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

REETHFRSRERE
MEXTARE

BUF =2
BEFME
BIER

KERFFARE P

REZHRSRERE
L ERNGEYE i AN RN

NEETLEE

Y R R R TR

TIRR

NEIE B R ENRNRIBRR

BN ERFIFHEBEERN

ERNESE]

HENE -BERRE

PRSRIA

U BB I B A ) I BRFRT

WENIR &

BEAREEARRERE

i3S

REEBFMSHEEFER

MEETBMSREME
BB AR IFER

RERAEE
EEIRITER

HESENAEMIA
RIRKRE—HEELREN

RERITIER

RERE —2REER
MEEBME (FTA) REPH

2022 2021

—=E-= =T

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
5 AR®EF T AREFIT
35(a) (11,186) (4,676)
16 53
(309) (548)

(166) (256)

____(11.645) (5,427)

(1,045) (1,578)

9 = (35)

= 5,306

11(3)) = 900
38 = 8,539
8,000 =

3,905 —

15,135 =

_____ 25995 13,132

14,865 =

23 (6,350) (12,110)
(910) (1,680)

12,300 =

23 = 600
37 2,919 1,500
_____ 22,824 (11,690
+HERERAT — T _FFWR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHRERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

EvE— e S — Sl

2022 2021
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
i AR®FT ABBTIT
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERFEZEIER
cash equivalents o, GeioL) 328 37,174 (3,985)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#MNEERIEEHEHIER
of the year 17 8,851 12,889
Exchange gains on cash and cash ReEkReFEEENMERT
equivalent = (53)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FXRNRERIREEHEER
the year 17 46,025 8,851

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in A HIRERERBEBHME—HEE-

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

ShiFang Holding Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the business of publishing and
advertising (the “Publishing and Advertising Businesses”) in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Group has
been focusing on restructuring its publishing and advertising
businesses by consolidating with cultural media and film
media businesses in PRC and diversifying into tourism and

integrated developments.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands
on 9 December 2009 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (2009 Revision
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified) of the

Cayman Islands.

The Company changed the domicile of the Company from
the Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of discontinuation
in the Cayman Islands and continuation as an exempted
company under the laws of Bermuda. The change has been
effective on 18 March 2019 (Bermuda time). The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda after the change of domicile.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 are presented in thousands of units
of Renminbi (RMB'000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023.

B HRRMEE

—REH

THERERRR (TIARFI) #—M
REERAT MEKNBAR #HiE I
£F0) FERFEARENER (T4RE)
HEEMEESES (THRKEESE
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NIEBERERERER SHA LK
MREEERE WERRERESER

ERBR_ZBZNF+_RABEHRE
BEERBEASHEERAE (TTETAE
fEEThR > &EMEE] ~ MR S A H th 75 &
B0 MBI R ERRBRAT -

ARBBBHENHERENTME
REGRELAAUERER2ANER
FE RALASHBESEEEMER
RE-ZBFHA_ZT—HAEF=A+/N\H
(BEFRERBE S -REME &2
Bk E M I A Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda°

ERABRDNREBBMERZAAERAF
EREe

BRARBERBEIIN BE_Z-__F+
B=+—HLEFENKTEHMBRERIN
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T &0
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of ShiFang
Holding Limited have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared

on a historical cost basis, except for below:

o financial assets and liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss — measured at fair value;

o investment properties — measured at fair value;

and

o biological assets — measured at fair value less

costs to sell.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’'s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note
4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 BEAGSERME (B)
2.1 MHEE ()

Going concern

For year ended 31 December 2022, the Group reported
a net loss of RMB167,915,000 and had a net cash
outflow from operating activities of RMB11,645,000.
As at 31 December 2022, the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB58,200,000
while the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB46,025,000.

The above conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
about the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern.

The directors of the Company have assessed the
appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis
for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022. In
order to improve the Group's liquidity and financial
position, the directors of the Company have been
implementing various measures as follows:

(i)  The Group has successfully obtained a borrowing
facility of RMB20,000,000 from a company
wholly-owned by a major shareholder of the
company on 1 August 2021. RMB1,500,000 had
been drawn in 2021 and a further RMB2,919,000
had also been drawn in 2022. The borrowing
will be repayable in two years from the date
of drawdown with an interest rate of 5% per
annum. On 6 March 2023, the repayment period
of facility was extended from repayable in two
years to repayable in four years from the date of
drawdown. In addition, the major shareholder
has issued a letter of financial support to the
Company for a period of eighteen months
from 31 December 2022 to enable the Group
to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due
and to carry on its business without a significant
curtailment of operations;

FERE
BE_T-_"_#+-HB=+—H
EFE AERRBEHRIHEA
E#167,915,00070 K &8 = 55 8 IR
SRHFEEAR®E11,645,0007T ©
MR-BE__F+t_H=+—H"'=&
EENRBAEEBHERBEE
AR #58,200,0007T > M 4s £ B #Y
ReERBREEEBBEAAARKE
46,025,0007T ©
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BAE
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ENBEEE ANSAEERNRH
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2EBRBANABBSERRAM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group has obtained written confirmations
from the directors and related parties which
confirmed that they will not demand the Group
for repayment of the amounts due by the Group
in aggregate of RMB23,867,000 for the next

eighteen months from 31 December 2022;

The Group is closely monitoring the progress of
the Group's tourism project in Yongtai County
in the PRC. As there were certain delays in the
preparation work, the Group has revised the plan
and anticipates the construction of the project
will be commenced in 2023 and the project will
be ready for commercial operation in 2025. The
directors are confident that the Group would be
able to commence the commercial operations
of the tourism project in Yongtai County in
2025 which would start to generate income and

operating cash inflows to the Group;

The Group is in negotiation with certain potential
investors to raise fund to finance the capital
investments for its tourism and integrated

development projects;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 EXRGFERBE (@)

2.1 RANBE ()

Going concern (Continued)

(v)  The Group is maximising its efforts to dispose its
properties held for sales with a carrying amount
of approximately RMB15,097,000 as at 31
December 2022 and expected to collect the sales

proceeds within the cashflow forecast period;

(vi) The Group will continue to take initiatives to
implement cost control measures, including
adjustment to management remuneration and

streamlining administrative costs; and

(vii) The Group will continue its efforts to implement
measures to strengthen its operating cash flows
and working capital position, including expediting
collection of outstanding trade receivables,
obtaining additional sources of financing and
deferring discretionary capital expenditures,

where necessary.

The directors have reviewed the Group's cashflow
forecast prepared by management which covers
a period of not less than twelves months from 31
December 2022.

The directors, after making due enquiries and
considering the basis of management ‘s cashflow
forecast described above and after taking into account
the reasonably possible changes in the operation
performance, believe there will be sufficient financial
resources available to the Group at least in the coming
twelve months after the balance sheet date to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due.
Accordingly, the directors consider that it is appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

2 BEARESERBE (B8)

2.1 RUNEBE (@)

FHEEE (8)

Notwithstanding the above, a material uncertainty

exist as to whether management of the Group is able

to achieve its plans and measures as described above.

Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going

concern would depend upon the Group’s ability to

generate adequate financing and operating cash flows

through achieving the below plans and measures:

(i)

(iii)

Successful draw down of financial resources
from the above-mentioned (i) borrowing facility
from the company wholly-owned by the major
shareholder and (i) financial support from the

major shareholder, as and when required;

Successful implementation of measures to
complete the preparation work and commence
the commercial operation of the Group’s tourism

and integrated development projects as planned;

Successful in raising funds to finance the Group’s
capital investments for its tourism and integrated

development projects;

Successful in disposal of its properties held for

sale and collection of sales proceeds as planned;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(v)  Successful implementation of measures to
control operating costs, expedite collection from
customers, obtain additional sources of financing
when needed and deferring discretionary capital
expenditures where necessary, so as to improve

the Group's cash flow position; and

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to write
down the carrying values of the Group's assets to
their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the

consolidated financial statements.

B HRRMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 New and amended standards

(i)

Amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amendments

to standards for the first time for the annual

reporting period commencing 1 January 2022.

Amendments to
IAS 16

Amendments to
IAS 37

Annual
improvement
project
(Amendments)

Amendments to
IFRS 3

Amendment to
IFRS 16 (March
2021)

Amendments to
AG 5

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards 2018-
2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30
June 2021

Merger Accounting
for Common Control
Combinations

The Group has assessed the impact of the

adoption of these amended standards and

considered that there was no significant impact

on the Group’s results and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 New and amended standards

(ii)

New standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the
Group

Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are
not mandatory for 31 December 2022 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group. These standards are not expected to have
a material impact on the Group in the current
or future reporting periods and on foreseeable

future transactions.

2.3 Principal of consolidation

(a)

Subsidiaries

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date

that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and

consolidated balance sheet respectively.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
It means the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements
of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Structured entity

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company,
its subsidiaries, and structured entity
where the Company is deemed the primary
beneficiary. Fuzhou DingCe Culture, one of
the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries,
entered into contractual agreements with Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe (the “Structural Agreements”),
where Fuzhou DingCe Culture provides consulting
services to Beijing BaiChuanDuKe, and is entitled
to (1) receive a substantial portion of the
economic benefits from Beijing BaiChuanDuKe;
(2) exercise effective control over Beijing
BaiChuanDuKe, and (3) have an exclusive option
to purchase all or part of the equity interests in
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe when and to the extent
permitted by the PRC laws. By virtue of the
contractual arrangements, Beijing BaiChuanDuKe
is a structured entity and deemed as subsidiary of
the Company under the requirements of IFRS 10
“Consolidated financial statements”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Structured entity (Continued)

When assessing whether to combine a structured
entity, the Group evaluates a range of factors,
including whether (1) the activities of the
structured entity are being conducted on behalf
of the Group according to its specific business
needs so that the Group obtains the benefits
from the structured entity's operations, (2) the
Group has decision-making powers to obtain the
majority of the benefits, (3) the Group obtains
the majority of the benefits of the activities of the
structured entity, and (4) the Group retains the
majority of the residual ownership risks related
to the assets in order to obtain the benefits from
its activities. The Group consolidates a structured
entity if an assessment of the relevant factors

indicates that it controls the structured entity.

Based on the contractual arrangements, the
Company consolidated Beijing BaiChuanDuKe's
results, assets and liabilities in its consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control,
generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after
the date of acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is

accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’'s share of post-acquisition profit or
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the
If this

is the case, the Group calculates the amount

investment in the associate is impaired.

of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its
carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of losses of associates’
for using equity method in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(c)

Associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by

the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

(d) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied IFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under IFRS 11 investments in
joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor. The Group has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to
be joint ventures. Interests in joint ventures are

accounted for using the equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Principal of consolidation (Continued)

(d) Joint arrangements (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests
in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
and movements in other comprehensive income.
The Group’s investments in joint ventures include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint
venture, any difference between the cost of the
joint venture and the Group's share of the net
fair value of the joint venture’'s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill. When
the Group’'s share of losses in joint ventures
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint
ventures (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred

obligations or made payments on behalf of the

joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interests in the joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of the joint ventures have been changed

where necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for

2 EXRGFERBE (@)

2.4 FHEHENIERBEE (HHE

sale and discontinued operation

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell,
except for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial assets and
investment property that are carried at fair value and
contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are

specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group)
to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for
any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell
of an asset (or disposal group) but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A
gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of
the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is

recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are of a
disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held for sale. Interest
and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale continue to be

recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for

2.5

sale and discontinued operation (Continued)

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the
assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale
are presented separately from the other assets in the
balance sheet. The liabilities directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale or of a disposal group
classified as held for sale are presented separately from

other liabilities in the balance sheet.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity
that has been disposed of or is classified as held for
sale and that represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, is part
of a single coordinated plan to dispose of such a line
of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results of
discontinued operations are presented separately in the

profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
The

CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and

the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM").

assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors (the “Board”)

that makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive

income.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within ‘general and

administrative expenses'.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial positions of foreign

operations (none of which has the currency

of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have

a functional currency different from the

presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate

at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on

the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2 EXRGFERBE (@)

2.6 SMNEBE ()

(c) Group companies (Continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment
in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or

loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and

translated at the closing rate.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the financial period in

which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 40 years
BF 404

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

2 BEARESERBE (B8)

2.7 ME - -BERRE (&)

ME - BERRFEITENERZE
st SRR F R A2
BEHRREE - AREHRUT

Leasehold improvements

5-10 years or the remaining term

of any non-renewable lease, whichever is shorter

HEYEEE SEN0FERATEEBEENGF TFHR UBEERE)
Machinery 5-10 years
as S5E104
Fixture, furniture and equipment 5 years
HE R RRE 54

Motor vehicles 5-10 years
AE S5E106F
Exhibition animals 5 years
EEBEY 54

Bearer plants 15-25 years
EEMEY 15F 255

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of

each reporting period.
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TEHEREE o

The Group’s golden camellia trees qualify as bearer
plants under the definition in IAS 41 “Agriculture” and
are therefore accounted for under the rules for plant
and equipment. Golden camellia trees are classified
as immature until the produce can be commercially
harvested. At that point they are reclassified and
depreciation commences. Immature golden camellia

trees are measured at accumulated cost.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

FEBNEZERBSERDER
B ERBMNRIREIFFARAENE
EMEY AILRBERRERA
ABR o STERBI I BE E £ 7 F W
BIDERARMANEEEEY - H
rEWETOBRAGTIRITE
REUAEERT IR RS A AE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

2.8

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

For transfer of property, plant and equipment to
investment properties because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
surplus. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation surplus will be

transferred to retained earnings.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within ‘General and administrative
expenses’ in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally freehold office
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is
initially measured at cost, including related transaction
costs and where applicable borrowing costs.

Subsequently, they are carried at fair value.

Changes in fair values are presented in profit or loss as

part of other income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair

value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored

at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as

an expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

2 EXRGFERBE (@)

29 BMEEE (8)

Trademarks and licences

Separately acquired trademarks and licences are shown
at historical cost. Trademarks and licences acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the

acquisition date.

Trademarks and licences have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of trademarks and licences

over their estimated useful lives of seven years.

Contractual customer relationships

Contractual customer relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The contractual customer relations
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate over the
expected life of the customer relationship of three

years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)
Computer software and web site
Costs associated with maintaining computer software
program and web site are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable
and unique computer software and web site controlled
by the Group are recognised as intangible assets when

the following criteria are met:

o It is technically feasible to complete the computer
software and web site so that they will be

available for use;

o Management intends to complete the computer
software and web site, and use or sell them;

o There is an ability to use or sell the computer
software and web site;

o It can be demonstrated how the computer

software and web site will generate probable

future economic benefits;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)
Computer software and web site (Continued)
o Adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell
the computer software and web site are available;

and

o The expenditure attributable to the computer
software and web site during their development

can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part
of the computer software and web site cost include
the software development employee costs. Other
development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense

are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Remaining computer software and web site costs
recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated
useful lives and the terms of validity granted by

corresponding authorities, which are three years.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

Right to a land lease

Right to a land lease represents the operating lease
with favourable terms relative to market terms as
acquired in a business combination that is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The right to a land
lease has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected useful

life of 41 years.

Township operation right

Township operation right represents a 40-years’
exclusive operation right to develop, construct, manage
and operate commercial activities in the operation site.
The township operation right are shown at historical
cost. It has a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected useful

life of 40 years.

Subsequent expenditure on capitalised intangible
assets is capitalised only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised as

an expense as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EAREHHBEHBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued) 29 BREE (8)

Exclusive operation rights

Exclusive operation rights represent the exclusive rights
arising from its contractual agreement as acquired in a
business combination and are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The exclusive operation rights
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less

accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated

BREE#
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using the straight-line method to allocate over the BAEBRAN7TFRNETDR -
expected life of the exclusive operation rights of
approximately 7 years.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets FEMEERE

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life or intangible assets not ready to use are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting

date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Properties held for sale

Properties are classified as properties held for sale
when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell if their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than

through continuing use.

2.12 Biological assets

Biological assets are measured at fair value less
cost to sell, see note 12 for further information on

determining the fair value.

Costs to sell include the incremental selling costs,
including commission and estimated costs of transport
to the market but excludes finance costs and income

taxes.

The golden camellia trees are bearer plants and are
therefore presented and accounted for as property,
plant, and equipment (Note 7). However, the golden
camellia flowers growing on the trees is accounted for
as biological assets until the point of harvest. Harvested
golden camellia are transferred to inventory at fair

value less costs to sell when harvested.

Changes in fair value of golden camellia flowers on
trees are recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Farming costs such as labour costs and fertiliser costs

are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets

2 EXRGFERBE (@)

213 RERHMERMEE

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or

through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets

changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit

or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and

interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gain. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement

of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI|. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in other gain. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Net foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in general and administrative expenses
and impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)
Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has

been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be

recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

For other financial assets at amortised cost, the Group
measures the impairment as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is measured as

lifetime expected credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a "loss event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets

that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss

include:

o Significant financial difficulty of the obligor;

. A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments,

. The Group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that

the lender would not otherwise consider;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

It becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial

difficulties; or

Observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolio of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets

in the portfolio, including:

(i)  adverse changes in the payment status

of borrowers in the portfolio; and

(i)  national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the

assets in the portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective

evidence of impairment exists.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Investments and other financial assets

(Continued)

Impairment (Continued)

(a)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. If a loan
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market

price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the

Company or the counterparty.

2.15 Financial guarantees

Financial guarantee are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at

the higher of:

° the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under IFRS 9 Financial

Instruments and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third

party for assuming the obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Financial guarantees (Continued)
Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables
of associates are provided for no compensation, the
fair values are accounted for as contributions and

recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

2.16 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises
of newsprint paper and printing consumables. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable

selling expenses.

2.17 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. See note 16 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and
note 3.1(b) for a description of the Group’s impairment

policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three

months or less.

2.19 Restricted cash
Bank deposits which are restricted to use are classified
as "restricted cash”. Restricted cash are excluded
from cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated

statement of cash flows.

2.20 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,

from the proceeds.

2.21 Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.
Trade payable are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to

be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising
from investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a

net basis.

2.23 Employee benefits

(a)

Shortterm obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave
that are expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service are
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as current accrual and other payables in the

consolidated balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

Pension obligations

Full time employees of the PRC entities
participate in a government mandated
multiemployer defined contribution plan pursuant
to which certain pension benefits, medical care,
unemployment insurance, employee housing
fund and other welfare benefits are provided to
employees. Chinese labor regulations require the
Company to accrue for these benefits based on
certain percentages of the employees’ salaries.
Management believes full time employees who
have passed the probation period are entitled to

such benefits.

The Group contributes to Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF"”) for eligible employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF are held
in a separate trustee administered fund. The
Company’s contributions to the MPF are expensed

as incurred.

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is

available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

2 EXRGFERBE (@)

223 BERF (8)

(b) Pension obligations (Continued)
There were no forefeited contributions (by
employers on behalf of employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to offset existing contributions

under the defined contribution schemes.

(c) Bonus plans
The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on performance and takes
into consideration the profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive

obligation.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be

small.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.24 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.

2.25 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over

the period of the facility to which it relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EAREHHBEHBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Borrowings (Continued) 2.25 & (88)

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income as

other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.

2.26 Convertible bond

The fair value of the liability portion of a convertible
bond is determined using a market interest rate for a
non-convertible bond with similar terms. This amount
is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion, early redemption
or maturity of the bonds. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option. This
is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity or
derivative liability according to the conversion feature
embedded. Any directly attributable transaction costs
are allocated to the liability and equity or derivative
liability component in proportion to their initial carrying

amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of a convertible bond is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component of a convertible bond is not re-
measured subsequent to initial recognition except on

conversion or expiry.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition
The Group determined when to recognise revenue
and how much revenue to recognise through a 5-step
approach: (i) identify the contract(s) with customer; (ii)
identify separate performance obligations in a contract;
(iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate
transaction price to performance obligations; and (v)
recognise revenue when performance obligation is

satisfied.

(i)  Newspaper and public vehicles advertising
The Group renders services for the creation,
production and placement of advertising
materials through certain newspaper publishers
and public vehicles operators. Revenue from
providing the advertising services are recognised

at a point in time when the services are rendered.

The Group’s role in the provision of services
on newspaper and public vehicles advertising
is that of a principal. When deciding the most
appropriate basis for presenting revenue or costs
of revenue, both the legal form and substance
of the agreement between the Group and its
business partners are reviewed to determine each
party's respective role in the transaction. Hence,
revenue from newspaper advertising services is
recognised on a gross basis when services are

rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

Marketing and consulting services

Revenue from marketing services comprised (i)
revenue from provision of marketing planning
and consulting services and (ii) commission from

sale of properties.

Revenue from marketing planning and consulting
services is recognised over time when the services
are rendered. Revenue are recognised over the

respective contract terms.

Commission from sale of properties is recognised
at a point in time when the services are rendered
and the customer (i.e. property developer) has
entered into the sales and purchase agreement

with the buyer.

Customers are invoiced based on the payment
schedule. If the services rendered by the
Company exceed the payment, a contract asset is
recognised. If the payments exceed the services

rendered, a contract liability is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii) Printing services

(iv)

(v)

Printing revenue is recognised at a point in time
when printing services are rendered and the
legal title of the newspaper is transferred to the

customers.

Sales of agricultural products

Revenue from the sales of agricultural products is
recognised at a point in time when control of the
goods has transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the goods to the customer. Delivery
occurs when the goods have been placed at
the customer’s disposal (generally at the seller’s
premises), the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer, and either the
customer has accepted the goods in accordance
with the sales contracts, the acceptance provision
have lapsed, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been

satisfied.

Others

Other revenue mainly includes rental income,
agency commission and other miscellaneous
income. Rental income are recognised on a
straight-line basis over the respective lease terms.
Revenue from agency commission is recognised
at a point in time when sale transaction of
service pack is completed, while the Group does
not take control of the service pack sold. Other
miscellaneous income are recognised at a point
in time when the respective control on goods or

services are transferred to the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Government grants

2 EXRGFERBE (@)

2.28 BT #HED

Grants from the government are recognised at fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with

all attached conditions.

Government grants are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate. Government grants
relating to expenses are shown separately as other

income.

2.29 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased

asset is available for use by the Group.

The Group leases properties and land as lessee. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 41

years but may have termination options.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s

useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.29 Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease

payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group

under residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that

option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that

option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in
the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment with similar terms,

security and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.29 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising

the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives

received

o any initial direct costs, and

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of use assets is

depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company's shareholders or directors,

where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.31 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in

the period in which they are incurred.

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk and cash
flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group has not used
any derivative financial instruments to hedge its risk

exposures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates principally in the PRC.
Majority of recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB and majority of
transactions are settled in RMB. Foreign
exchange risk mainly arises from cash
and cash equivalents, deposits and other
receivables balance and other payables
denominated in Hong Kong dollar (“HKD").
The Group does not hold or issue any
derivative financial instruments to manage

its exposure to foreign currency risk.

As at 31 December 2022, if HKD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would have
been RMB436,000 lower/higher (2021:
RMB453,000 lower/higher), mainly as a
result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of HKD denominated cash
and cash equivalents, deposits and other

receivables balance and other payables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK. MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(i1)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from
bank borrowings and bank deposits. Bank
borrowings obtained at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk which is partially offset by bank

deposits held at variable rates.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rate risk on its variable rate bank
borrowings and bank deposits at the
balance sheet date and prepared assuming
the amount of bank borrowings and bank
deposits outstanding at each balance sheet

date was outstanding for the whole year.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
does not have any interest-bearing financial
assets or liabilities at variable rate. Hence, it

is not exposed to interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, trade receivables,
contract assets, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties, restricted
cash, and cash and cash equivalents included in
the consolidated financial statements represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets. The objective of
the Group's measures to manage credit risk is
to control potential exposure to recoverability

problem.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade
receivables, contract assets, other financial assets
at amortised cost (including deposits and other
receivables and amounts due from related parties)
and financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Management considers the Group has
limited credit risk with its banks which are
leading and reputable and are assessed as
having low credit risk. Majority of bank
balances are deposited with reputable
banks. The Group has not incurred
significant loss from non-performance by
these parties in the past and management

does not expect so in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK. MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i1)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group trades only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis with the result that the
Group's exposure to bad debts is not

significant.

The Group applies the simplified approach
to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by IFRS 9, which permit the use
of lifetime expected loss provision for trade

receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
expected credit loss rates are determined
based on historical credit losses and also

incorporated forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i1)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the balance of
loss allowance in respect of these trade
receivables was RMB9,212,000 (2021:
RMB7,498,000) based on expected credit
loss rates up to 100% (2021: up to 100%)
applied on different groupings.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
expected credit losses also incorporated
forward looking information. The Group has
identified the GDP of the countries in which
it sells its goods and services to be the most
relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the
historical loss rates based on the expected

changes in this forward-looking factor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK. MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i1)

(iif)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(Continued)

When trade receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account
for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are

credited against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

For other financial assets at amortised
costs, the Group considers the probability
of default upon initial recognition of asset
and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis

throughout each reporting period.

Management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment
on the recoverability of the balances
based on historical settlement records,
past experience and forward-looking

information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iir)

Other financial assets at amortised cost
(Continued)

To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares
the risk of default as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. Especially the following

indicators are incorporated:

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the

debtors’ ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes

in the operating results of debtors

o significant increases in credit risk on
other financial instruments of the
same debtor

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of
debtors, including changes in the
payment status of the debtor in the
Group and changes in the operating
results of the debtor
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iif)  Other financial assets at amortised cost

(iv)

(Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost
have low risk of default and it is not
expected any losses from non-performance
by the counterparties. As at 31 December
2022, the Group assessed that there is no
significant increase in credit risk for these
balances from the end of previous reporting
date and the expected credit loss rate for
these financial assets is immaterial under 12
months expected credit losses model.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

The Group is also exposed to credit risk
in relation to debt investments that are
measured at fair value through profit or
loss. The maximum exposure at the end of
the reporting period is the carrying amount
of these investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements for
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. The
Group invests surplus cash in time deposits
and money market deposits with appropriate
maturities. The Group reported net loss of
RMB167,915,000 and operating cash outflow
of RMB11,645,000 during the year ended
31 December 2022. As at the same date,
the Group held cash and cash equivalent of
RMB46,025,000 (2021: RMB8,851,000) (Note
17), trade receivables of RMB14,518,000 (2021:
RMB7,004,000) (Note 16) that are expected
to readily generate cash inflows for managing

liquidity risk and to fund the Group's operations.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has no
mortgage loans with a repayable on demand
clause amounted (2021: RMB5,900,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HBERERE @)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBREEZE (B)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) REBEERME (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TERLBREHRHGEEHLDES
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based AEER I ERERIAB &K
on the remaining period at the balance sheet SENEMAEE 25 EE
date to the contractual maturity date. The EIEAH AN DT o R
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BENEEAGORMARE
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within e HRMIBHNEELRK R
12 months equal their carrying balances, as 128 B R B A& REER
the impact of discounting is not significant. HIEfEmA&AF -ARms B8R
Specifically, for bank and other borrowing HEHFINBITENEE
which contain a repayment on demand clause REBERAWBITREME
which can be exercised at the discretion of the FoOUTRMmARIRERE
counterparties, the analysis shows the cash ELUEBERERMNR
outflow based on the earliest period in which the NEFHRAER
entity can be required to pay.
Less than More than
1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years Total
—ENR —EME RMELE EEME st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTr ARETr AR®TxT ARETR
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZ&+ZH
=+-g
Trade and other payables BEREMERNTIE 116,535 - - - 116,535
Amounts due to related parties FEREEALTHIE 23,867 - - - 23,867
Convertible bonds R ES - - - - -
Loan from a shareholder RE-2RENER - - 4,640 - 4,640
Financial guarantees MR
(maximum amount guaranteed) (BEEREH) 1,521 3,070 1,630 - 6,221
Lease liabilities HEEE 587 443 768 4,988 6,786
Amount due to a joint venture EN—HEEELERE - - 12,300 - 12,300
Financial liabilities at fair value through A 2 BB & & A KK
profit or loss Eay=N = 25,690 - - - 25,690
168,200 3,513 19,338 4,988 196,039
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-F+Z8
=+-g
Trade and other payables BEREMENTIE 99,930 - - - 99,930
Bank borrowings RITEZ 6,429 = = = 6,429
Amounts due to related parties FERAE A LR 19,471 - - - 19,471
Convertible bonds iR ES 186,089 - - - 186,089
Loan from a shareholder KE—LRENER = 1,575 = = 1,575
Financial guarantees MBER
(maximum amount guaranteed) (BEEREH) 2,726 3,048 4,020 - 9,794
Lease liabilities HE&HE 1,084 480 1,446 5,588 8,598
315,729 5,103 5,466 5,588 331,886
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BMHBEAKREIRE (&)

(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

3.2 BXEKEER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an

optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total assets, as shown in the consolidated

balance sheet.

Gearing ratio as at 31 December 2022 is 21.2% (2021:
81.6%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(Continued)

3.3 Financial instruments by category

MHERRERE (&)

3.3 REMBINEMIA

2022 2021
—E-C BT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREFT
Assets as per balance sheet EEBRRMAINEE
Financial assets at fair value through NAERIBRRARDY
profit or loss ETREE 4,376 7,432
Other financial assets at amortised cost:  $%#84 A A5 BRBY
HEmMEE
Trade receivables, deposits and other BSERRE-ZE K
receivables HhpE W IE 76,656 66,608
Restricted cash ZREIRE 578 935
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEBIER 46,025 8,851
Total #ast 127,635 83,826
Liabilities as per balance sheet BEERAERMIINEGHE
Financial liabilities at fair value through AR ELETRARNERE
profit or loss =R 25,690 =
Other financial liabilities carried L H Rl AR S BRBO EL fth 5 Rl
at amortised cost: a&:
Trade and other payables B 5 kEMENRIE 116,535 99,930
Borrowings EEN - 6,350
Amounts due to related parties fE{TRAE A 18 23,867 19,471
Convertible bonds AR ES - 181,356
Financial guarantees R 851 865
Lease liabilities HEaRE 6,441 6,730
Loan from a shareholder KE—HRENER 4,419 1,500
Amount due to a joint venture EN—BEaEhxERE 9,080 =
Total et 186,883 316,202
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.4 Fair value estimation

3 MBEREERE (B

3.4 ARfEME

The carrying amounts of the following financial assets
and financial liabilities approximate their fair values
as all of them are short-term in nature: cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, trade and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties, trade
and other payables, bank and other borrowings,
amounts due to related parties, financial guarantees,
lease liabilities and convertible bonds. The fair value
of other financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is
available to the Group for similar financial instruments,

unless the discounting effect is insignificant.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
there are certain financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss measured at value in use using discounted
cash flow method which approximate their fair values.
See note 15 for disclosures relevant to financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2022, there are certain financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss using direct
market comparable approach which are approximate to
their fair values. See note 25 for disclosures relevant to

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
there are certain properties held for sale measured
at fair value less cost to sell using direct market
comparable approach and income approach which
are approximate to their fair values. See note 14 for

disclosures relevant to properties held for sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.4

3.5

Fair value estimation (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, there are certain investment
properties measured at fair value less cost to sell
using income approach which are approximate to
their fair values. See note 8 for disclosures relevant to

investment properties.

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021,
there are certain biological assets measured at fair
value less cost to sell using discounted cash flow model
which approximate to their fair values. See note 12 for

disclosures relevant to biological assets.

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

No disclosure of the offsetting of financial assets
and financial liabilities is made as there is no netting

arrangement in place during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Impairment of assets

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” to determine when assets are impaired,
which requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the duration and extent to which the recoverable
amount of assets is less than their carrying balance,
including factors such as the industry performance
and changes in operational and financing cash flows.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest level for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (a CGU). The
recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
higher of value in use or fair value less cost of disposal.
These calculations require the use of estimates,
including operating results, income and expenses of
the business, future economic conditions on growth

rates and future returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
Management of the Group has performed goodwill
impairment review annually. Details of goodwill

impairment review are disclosed in note 9.

Changes in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of the assets is based could
significantly affect the Group’s financial position and

results of operations.

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

The Group owns an investment in a movie income
right and a network drama which have been classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
The management performed an assessment on the fair
value of the balance based on discounted cash flow
model which required significant estimates, including
the streams of income which the Group is entitled,
determination of appropriate discount rate and
expected timing of settlement. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the financial assets
at fair value in the period in which such estimate has

been changed.

Valuation of investment properties
The fair value of investment properties is determined
by using valuation techniques. Further details of the

judgements and assumptions made, see note 8.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(d)

(f)

Valuation of properties held for sale

The Group owns certain properties held for sale which
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. In absence of current price in
an active market for similar properties which is the best
evidence of fair value, the management determined
the amount within a range of reasonable fair values
estimates. In making its estimates, the management
considers information from the valuations of properties
performed by external professional valuer by (i)
direct market comparable approach, including the
assumptions of the adjusting factors regarding to the
location, size and nature of the properties; and (ii)
income approach, including the assumptions of the
expected rent income, growth rate and discount rate to
determine the fair value. Had the Group used different
inputs or assumptions, the fair value of the properties
would be different and thus caused impact to the
consolidated income statement. Details of the valuation
of properties held for sale are disclosed in note 14.

Impairment of trade and other receivables and
contract assets

The Group recognises impairment provisions based
on expected credit losses model. The model involves
the assessment on the probability of default on the
balances based on historical settlement records,
past experience and forward-looking information.
Impairment is determined by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes. The identification of probability of
default requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Details of key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in note 3.1.

Income taxes

The Group is principally subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
income tax provision and deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination
is made.

B HRRMEE

4 FARGsHES KRR (B)

(d)

(f)
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REVENUE

Revenue from external customers are mainly derived from
the provision of newspaper and public vehicles advertising
services to advertisers in the PRC, the provision of marketing
and consulting services, printing services and sales of
agricultural products. Other revenue mainly includes rental
income, agency commission and the miscellaneous income.
The total sales amount of the Group’s five largest customers
is RMB84,527,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: RMB141,687,000). An analysis of the Group's

revenue for the year is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

KA

REIBEENBAETERRAFEH
BELEEFRFRERAABHEEESR
%o URIBMEEHEREHRY - EDRIAR
BRIHFEERER - HMBKAZTEGRE
HEWA-REBEASRBEEBEBRA -HE
TR ZE+ZRA=t+—HILEEE>
FAEBREAZAMGHEREAAR
84,527,000 (T _—F : AR
141,687,0007T) ° "EBFRUA DT
mE

2022 2021
ot e 2T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARBTT
Newspaper and public vehicles advertising RERBESEREES 6,478 13,299
Marketing and consulting services EHH & RS 54,142 75,243
Printing services MRl AR 75 2,959 4,180
Sales of agricultural products HEERE S 61,304 171,654
Others HAth 4,438 782
129,321 265,158
Timing of revenue recognition ST i 520 R

— At a point in time — FE RS 128,609 263,373
— Over time —PBEBRF S 104 1,470

— Under IFRS16 —IRIRER R F5 ¥Rk & 2R
E165% 608 315
129,321 265,158

During the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue
derive from Customer A of the Group amounted to
RMB53,863,000 which accounted for more than 10% of the
Group's revenue (2021: RMB66,930,000 from Customer A).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE (Continued) 5
Assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers

The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities

B HRRMEE

WA (48)
BERGNERANEERER

FEBERIBUTERTRGNERNEA

related to contracts with customers: ENEE
2022 2021
- —E 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Contract assets (Note (i) HBHEE (MEE>)) 278 2,542
Less: Provision for impairment (Note (ii)) R EREE (MTEEG)) (18) (123)
Contract assets — net BHNEE—FRE 260 2,419
Contract liabilities (Note (iii)) aHa /| (ki) 5,242 19,194

Notes: st -

(i) Contract assets represent the Group’s right to consideration
in the exchange for services that the Group has transferred
to customer. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the right to bill the customer has established
and receipt of the consideration is conditional only on the

passage of time.

(i)  The Group expects that contract assets have the same risk

characteristics as trade receivables.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses. As at 31 December 2022, a provision
of RMB18,000(2021: RMB123,000) was made against the

gross amount of contract assets.

(i)

GHEEEFTERNNOE R EER
BUESABRER - ER= B R
BAMERIBEERRAEBNEES
BRERYE SNEEHEEEEES
P& WRRIE o

FEBRBHRANEERE S RWRIE
BEMERNERER-

AEBMERB A BHREEEIEE
LEB RS F+-BE=+—
B mEeNEERBEEEARARE
18,0007¢ (ZZZ—4£ . AR#123,000
7T) B9 o

+AERBERAT T __FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

5 REVENUE (Continued)

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with

customers (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii)  Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance of non-

refundable payments made by customers.

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue, which
was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning
of the year, recognised during the year relates to carried-

forward contract liabilities.

Revenue recognised that was included in the
contract liability balance at the beginning of

the year

(iv)  Unsatisfied performance obligations

The following table shows unsatisfied performance obligations

resulting from newspaper advertising services contracts:

[ & R

Advertising services

Management expects there are no unsatisfied contracts will
be recognized as revenue during the next report period as
the unsatisfied performance obligations are from a subsidiary

which was disposed during 2022.
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5 WA (#8)
BEERENERANEERER (B)

MisE : (48)

(i) BHNEEEERFRELATREMN
R A0 U B A RRIE

HENaBEEANERIKA
TRIITERNFEDAEESNER
HRENKATE Bt AFVENERE

StAFEV BN EEERD
[SLiELTON

KR o
2022 2021
—E-C ZEZ
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBETT
12,563 2,421

(iv) HERBITHBEHEE

TRIINTHEESRBZEOELENH

REBITHBHNEE:
2022 2021
—E-C B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR#FT
- 7,417

HRHEARBETHROEERBENR S
ETTHEHEN-BRBARE WEHE
EBEABEEBARETHAAORNT—
BREREAER DA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a)

Description of segments and principal activities

The Executive Directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM").
Management has determined the operating segments
based on the information reviewed by the CODM for
the purposes of allocating resources and assessing

performance.

The Group has two business segments, namely (i)
Publishing and advertising segment and (ii) Tourism and

integrated developments segment.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of
the operating segments based on a measure of
earnings before interest, other income, other gain
and income tax. This measurement basis excludes the
effects of non-recurring expenditure from operating
segments. Loss on conversion of shareholder loan
to contingent convertible loan, gain on conversion
of convertible bond to shareholder loan, fair value
change of contingent convertible loan, share of losses
of investment accounted for using the equity method,
impairment loss of properties held for sales interest
income and finance cost are not allocated to segment.
No analysis of segment assets and liabilities is regularly

provided to the Executive Directors.

As the CODM considers most of the Group's
consolidated revenue and results are attributable to the
market in the PRC and the Group’s consolidated assets
are substantially located in the PRC, no geographical

information is presented.

B HRRMEE

6 SHEEH

(a)

PEREEEFHHRA

HTEFHRRERBFEEERRA
(TEFE8RRA) - EEEDR
REEREEERRAB/DEER
RAGEEMERNERNEEL

REBEERMEETDLE BI>)H
MR BEE DR Rkl KRB G %
Ro%E-

HITESRIEGANE S HMBA
HMRE R ERANETHE
AEEENENRE -ZFEEE
BRCEDENFECREERXE
E-RIEERBRANENBRKE
M EE AT RRESERARER
BRIl @ A BRBRERHA
HEEE - DERBEDEARD
REBE FIFLEYERNRERBS
BB WA K BE A A I & 53 Be
ENR -UARTEHRARITESRM
BERADBREEMRGENDMN -

HREERRARDETEB K
DEHBAREERBPETS
BXxEBREHEEARMUNRSE:
B 2@ E R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Segment revenue and segment results

As at 31 December 2022, the Executive Directors

considered the nature of the Group’s business and

determined that the Group has two reportable

operating segments as follows:

(i)

(i)

Publishing and advertising segment, which mainly
included provision of the advertising services,
marketing and consulting services, printing
services and agency commission from sales of

service pack.

Tourism and integrated developments segment,
which mainly included provision of tourism and
integrated services through its media, resort and
eco-tourism integrated development projects
and sales of agricultural products, including the
Yongtai Distinctive Town Project and Cooperative

Project in YongFu Town.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Segment revenue and segment results

(Continued)

The table below shows the segment results and other

segment items provided to the Executive Directors

for the reportable segments for the year ended 31

(b)

6 DEEH (&)
DERARDEFEE (8)

TRIIRBE_ZE-__F+_H8
—t—BLEFEREZRDEARHE
FTHRATESNOEXBEREMD

December 2022. $HIEH o
Tourism and
integrated  Publishing and
developments advertising Total
RERESERE HRR E S st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT
Segment revenue from REINEEFH
external customers DEBA 61,304 68,017 129,321
Timing of revenue recognition LONEE
for revenue
At a point in time FERE 61,304 67,305 128,609
Over time FE B ] - 104 104
Under IFRS16 RERRHMBRS
ERIE16%% - 608 608
Segment results DEEE (11,719) (22,705) (34,424)
Loss on conversion of shareholder loan BB EXEAAT
to contingent convertible loan Bk EmHEE (72,719)
Gain on conversion of convertible bond  FI# R ESEHRA
to shareholder loan RERETH W= 42,827
Fair value change of contingent FBEARKRERN
convertible loan NRBEES (25,350)
Share of losses of investment accounted {5 R B %5 AR
for using the equity method KEEE (75,034)
Impairment loss of properties FELENERESSE
held for sales (5,323)
Other income ECullgN 109
Other gain Hitnlaa 14,404
Finance costs — net MBMA—FE (13,109)
Loss before income tax MRETBIR AR (168,619)
Income tax credit FrIERER 704
Loss for the year EREE (167,915)
+AERERAT —_T_FEF5H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 SDEEF (@
(b) Segment revenue and segment results (b) DEWMARDEES (@)
(Continued)
The table below shows the segment results and other TRITNBE_E-_—F+_-H
S+ HLEFEEMERDEHEMS
FTHRITEESNHDEEEREMD

segment items provided to the Executive Directors

for the reportable segments for the year ended 31

December 2021. 1B o
Tourism and
integrated Publishing and
developments advertising Total
RERERER R E S szt
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®T ARETT
Segment revenue from external REMBEEN
customers ESTION 172,103 93,055 265,158
Timing of revenue recognition for W\ FE 3 R
revenue
At a point in time B AR 172,103 91,270 263,373
Over time e B = 1,470 1,470
Under IFRS16 REERHHRS
ZHIE165% - 315 315
Segment results E S (188,940 (25,439) (214,379)
Other income ECullON 950
Other gain Henlza 119
Finance costs — net MM A — 35 (19,906)
Loss before income tax MR RAIEE (233,216)
Income tax credit PR3t s 44,352
Loss for the year FREE (188,864)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are

the same as the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CC

PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Fixture,

Construction Leasehold fumiture and
Buildings ~in progress  improvements Machinery ~ equipment vehicles Total
B RR
i &2 HRIR HENEEE HE e ks BE®Y ELEEY  EGEEY @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZBC-£
tZB=t+-ALEE

Opening net carrying amount ENRESE 10,649 15,598 4,165 = 2423 510 2432 5173 10,048 51,058
Additions HE = 1,398 = = 180 = = - - 1578
Disposals HE - - - - (123) - - - - (13)
Depreciation (Note 28) & (s) (505) - (1,559) - (543) (140) (859) (274) - (3,880)
Impairment Al (3.216) (5,602) - = = = = - - (8.818)
Currency translation differences HHAEER - - - = = 7 = = = 7
Closing net carrying amount EXEESE 6,928 11,394 2,606 - 1,937 437 1,573 4,899 10,048 39,822

At 31 December 2021 RZE_-£+ZA=1+-H
Cost A 17,638 17,832 10,699 32123 23541 125 4293 5,585 10,048 128,884
Accumulated depreciation RithE (2,185) o (1.120) (28,591) (20,638) (6.414) (2,720) (686) - (68,358)
Accumulated impairment losses RitHEBE (8,525) (6,438) (969) (353 (966) (274) = = = (20,704)
Net carrying amount RAFE 6,928 11,39 2,606 - 1,937 437 1,513 4,899 10,048 39,822
+HERERAT T _FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

7 ME- -BERsE (&)

(Continued)
Fixture,
Constructionin  Leasehold furniture and Motor  Exhibition Mature Immature
Buildings progress improvements  Machinery  equipment vehicles animals bearer plants bearer plants Total
2B \GIR it} RELH
BF  KEIR BENEEE B# & AE  BEBY EGREN  ELRED st
RMBO00  RMB000  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZZ-C
tZAZ+-ALEE
Opening net carmying amount EREFR 6,928 11,39% 2,606 - 1,937 21 15713 4,899 10,048 39,822
Additions HE - m - - 29 106 - - - 1,057
Disposals HE (5,147) - - - (12) 11 - - - (5.170)
Disposal of subsidiary HERBAT (1,607) - - - - - - - - (1,607)
Depreciation (Note 28) E (Wis) (174) - (1,058) - (961) (@) (858) (274) - (3367)
Closing et carrying amount FREEFE - 12316 1,548 - 993 490 715 4,625 10,048 30,735
At 31 December 2022 KZB-ZE+ZA=+-A
Cost ik 9,539 18,755 10,699 013 3,32 3376 4293 5,585 10,048 17,744
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (1,014) - (8,181) (28,579) (20,904) (2613) (3578) (960) - (65,829)
Accumulated impairment losses ZitAERE (8,525) (6,439) (970) (3,544) (1,429) (1) - - - (21,180)
Net carrying amount REFE - 12,316 1,548 - 993 490 5 4,625 10,048 30,735
Depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and equipment AEENME - BEERREBINEE®RT
has been charged to the consolidated statement of HAHEXREHE2EWR ARG !
comprehensive income as follows:
2022 2021
—E_C T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT
Cost of sales HE A 342 274
General and administrative expenses — R RITE R 3,025 3,606
Total 485 3,367 3,880
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation expense of RMB342,000 (2021: RMB274,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 has been included in
cost of sales. Depreciation expense of RMB3,025,000 (2021:
RMB3,606,000) for the year ended 31 December 2022 has
been included in administrative expenses.

The directors carried out an impairment assessment on the
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment of
Yongtai Township development project with carrying amount
of RMB28,719,000 (2021: RMB27,914,000) as a result of
the delay in project development for the year ended 31
December 2022. The recoverable amount is calculated based
on a valuation performed by Valplus Consulting Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer. Key assumptions
for the fair value less cost to disposal calculation include
revenue compound annual growth rate, post-tax discount
rate and forecasted revenue.

The key assumptions are as follows:

B HRRMEE

ME BB Rtk (8)

HE_E_—_H£1+ZH=+—HIE
ErinERSZ ARK342,000T (Z =
——4 . AR#274,0007T) BEt AHE
BAE o REBEE_E-_—_F#+-_H=+—
HIEEE  ER ARE3,025,0007
(Z=2——%: ARE#3,606,0007T) B
u‘l‘)\ﬁﬂlf’;ﬁi‘i"

HREE_ S _—_F#+-_HA=+—HI1
FEEERMASTEE EECHMKR/NE
HEERREEAS ARK28,719,0007T
(ZBZ—%F : AR¥27,914,0007T) B9
ME BB MRENTIRE S EEETHE
B oW ESBLREBEBILSGER
S GEMEBABEMAERATETHG
BtE - ARBEREERSTEIREHE
BREBEWAECEEREER REBILRE
TR FERIWA o

RBR=RWMT

2022 2021

ot e B —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTT AR®ETT

Forecasted revenue at the year of HEBBEERARA 0.35% 0.12%
commencement of the project of Fuzhou of Fuzhou
visitors visitors

B EEE R & M3 = Y

0.35% 0.12%

Revenue compound annual growth rate WABEFEREE 14% 31.5%
Post-tax discount rate MEBAMIRE 19.5% 15.6%

The recoverable amount of the CGU would equal its carrying
amount of the key assumptions were to change as follows:

HEARRREUATHXES REELE
BUr OISR FRNEREE :

2022 2021
—E_C BT —F
From To From To
E B ES
Revenue compound annual ERNEERREERABRAN
growth rate based on forecasted WABEFERE
revenue at the year of
commencement of the project 14.0% 13.9% 31.5% 30.5%
Post tax discount rate ke JTLRS 19.5% 19.8% 15.6% 18.8%
+AERERAT T _F5HK
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Management has determined the recoverable amount of
the Yongtai Township development project by assessing
the fair value less costs of disposal of the CGU. The
recoverable amount of the CGU is RMB28,205,000 (2021:
RMB58,416,000) and the carrying amount of the CGU is
RMB27,211,000 (2021: RMB39,208,000). Management has
considered the reasonably possible impact brought by the
project delay by reducing the revenue compound annual
growth rate to 14% (2021: 31.5%) and increasing the
post-tax discount rate to 19.5% (2021: 15.6%), resulted in
headroom of RMB994,000 (2021: RMB19,208,000). Based
on the results of the assessment, the directors are of the
opinion that there was no impairment of property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2022.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

ME BB Rtk (8)

EEEARTEREELEUNARE
BEERAEEKS/NEREERNA
WElEE-REEFEMNOIWE S8
A ANR128,205,0007 0 (Z B - —4
AR158,416,00070) RIREEL BN
MEEEmEAARE27,211,000T (ZF
——&F . ARI839,208,0007T) c EIEE
W%FIEELE’“XWAIET@‘E%:; )
BIMAESFEEXRERE14% (ZF
T—£:31.5%) R ERIBEREMN
F195% (T2 ZT—F115.6%) ' EEH
ErEEA AR M994,0007 0 (B —F :
AR#&19, 208 0007T) ° IRIFFFHER

EERH NIETHFE+ZA= +—
H> TEEE#FLF@% T B2 Ko iR HIR BB ©

REME

2022 2021
—E--F —E T4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT
Fair value RAE
At 1 January w—HB—H - 26,681
Transfer to assets classified as held BREDEAREHEEE
for sale (Note 38) (FF5E38) = (26,681)
Transfer from assets classified as held BEBDEARIEHEERE
for sale (Note 38) (F5E38) 26,681 =
Fair value change RAEEH 2,523 -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 29,204 -

Rental income derived from investment properties amounted
to approximately RMB608,000 (2021: RMB315,000) during
the year.

Valuation process of the Group

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value.
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2022 has been determined on the basis of
valuation carried out by Fuzhou Mingshi Asset, Appraisal
Real Estate Land Appraisal Co., Ltd., an independent
qualified valuer.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

FRO REVENESBRANA AR
608,0007t (&2 ——%: AR 315,000
7T) ©

TEENKERR
FEERAAEFERREDE K&
ERENEN_S__F+_B=+—
HHAARBEDRBEHE LS ERGER
ENRBEETLEMEIMGHEERR
AEETHEEEE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement using significant
unobservable inputs

The table below analyses investment property carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been

defined as follows:

o Quoted price (unadjusted in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included with level that
are observable for the asset or liability either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from

prices) (Level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).

The Group’s investment properties are categorised as Level 3.

Fair value of the Group's investment properties is derived
using the income approach, by taking into account the
unobservable inputs included expected rental income,

growth rate and discount rate.

B HRRMEE

rREME (@)
RAEXTABRROABBETH
QAREE

FREMEESEDHUA BRI
BYE - FRAERAEMT :

s REEEEHHRREHEREE
HERETHEE E—R -

s KEREHRINBEN BETE
BREE (HER) HHEE (HER
15 FTERBARE (B2R) -

s EBENERNBAREBILIFER
BT HHE TIREERAY
B E=M) -

FEENREYEDBRE =R
FEBREVENRAEDES RAH

BReAYE (BERAES WA ER
RRATRR) FARAESH -

+AERBERAT T __FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

= T4 S
9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 0 mMEEE
Township  Exclusive
Computer Non-compete Customer Rightto  operation  operating
software  agreement  Goodwill relationships ~ Trademark ~ Web site aland lease right right Total
IMEER
Elaf  THREGE HE  EREA i f  THEEE GEE RBREEE @
(Note a) (Note b)
(Ki3ka) (Hizkb)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RIMB'000
AEBTE ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2021 HECEC-£
TZR=t+-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount ENRETE 55 - 11,208 - - - 159,208 26,117 5220 201,808
Additions AE 35 - - - - - - - - 35
Amortisation (Note 28) #38 (zoe) 8 - - - - = (1.982) (707) (870) (3.567)
Impairment HE = = (4,092) - - - (157,228) - - (161319)
Closing net carrying amount EXEASE 82 - 7,116 - - - - 25,410 4,350 36,958
At 31 December 2021 K-2_-%+-A=+-A
Cost wA 3,181 11,500 89,839 14,500 9,400 8,476 193,439 28,000 5,582 363,917
Accumulated amortisation it (2,688) (11,500) = (14,500) (7,135) (8,476) (14,667) (2,590) (1,232) (62,788)
Accumulated impairment losses ZHEEER (@11) = (82,723) = (2,265 - (1181 = - (64171)
Net carrying amount RESH 82 = 7,116 = = = = 25410 4350 36,958
Year ended 31 December 2022 HECECZE
tZR=+-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount ENREFE 82 - 1,116 - - - - 25,410 4,350 36,958
Disposal tE (12) - - - - - S S S (12)
Amortisation (Note 28) B () () - - - - - - (706) (363) (1,078)
Impairment AE - - (3,161) - - - - - (3,987) (7,148)
Closing net carrying amount EXREFR 61 - 3,055 - - - - 24,704 - 28,720
At 31 December 2022 RIBZZE+ZAZ-H
Cost WA 3,159 11,500 89,839 14,500 9,400 8,476 193,439 28,000 5,582 363,895
Accumulated amortisation ZitEs (2687)  (11,500) - (14,500) (7,135) (8476)  (14,667) (3.29) (159)  (63:856)
Accumulated impairment losses B (411) - (85,884) - (2,265) - (178,772) - (3.987) (271,319
Net carrying amount ke 61 - 3,955 - - - - 24,704 - 28,720

The amortisation of intangible assets has been charged in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)  For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been

allocated to the cash generating units as summarised below:

B HRRMEE

BREE (&)
GE

(a)

REASRMNS  BEEDEE TR
EEEB:

Net
Carrying
Opening Impairment amount
F9 A {E IREFE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR ARETT ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2022 BEZTC-ZF
+ZA=+—HLEE

Public vehicles advertising project in Fuzhou BINEBEEESER
(Note (i) (M%E(G)) 3,161 (3,161) =
Cooperative project in Yongfu Town (Note (ii)) KBEEEEE (M) 3,955 = 3,955

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-ZT--—F
+ZA=+—HLEE
Public vehicles advertising project in Fuzhou BNBHEERESEE
(Note (i)) (E3E())

Cooperative project in Yongfu Town (Note (i)

XBERERE (HEKi)

Public vehicles advertising project in Fuzhou

Goodwill amounting to RMB7,253,000 was recognised
as a result of acquisition of Fuzhou Mobile Media
Co., Ltd in 2020. Goodwill has been allocated to the
CGU that engaged in provision of the public vehicles
advertising services for the purpose of impairment
testing. The recoverable amount of the CGU determined
based on the higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs of disposal was higher than the carrying
amount of the CGU.

As at 31 December 2022, due to termination of the
contract of vehicles advertising projects in Fuzhou,
management determined to make a full provision
for impairment of goodwill of RMB3,161,000 (2021:
RMB4,092,000).

7,116 (3,161) 3,955

7,253 (4,092) 3,161
3,955 = 3,955

11,208 (4,092) 7,116

EBMNEHEEESER

RIZEZEE ARERMNBEERES
RAFEREE AR7,253,0007T °
HREANRMNS BEEPRERER
HEHEEESRENIBEESLE M-
RIEFEAEERR R ERLE R4
RetEENREELEBUNAKRE
SHEEPRSEEEMNIREE-.

R_E__—H#+"_A=+—H @8R
BIEENEBESHBEEEEEESHN &
EERT2BIREASREREAR
13,161,000 (ZEZ—F : AR
4,092,0007T) °

+AERBERAT T __FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

2

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

(i)  Cooperative project in Yongfu Town
Goodwill amounting to RMB3,955,000 was recognised
as a result of acquisition of Zhang Ping Nong Bo Hui
New Specialized Farmers’ Cooperative in 2019.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, management of
the Group determined that there was no impairment of
the CGU to which the goodwill has been allocated.

The Group entered into an operation right agreement with
the Yongtai Government for the acquisition of a 40-years’
exclusive operation right to develop, construct, manage and
operate commercial activities such as tourism, sightseeing,
resort, culture, sports and entertainment in the operation
site at a consideration of RMB28,000,000. The directors
carried out an impairment assessment on the recoverable
amounts of township operating right with carrying amount
of RMB24,704,000 (2021: RMB25,410,000) as a result of
delay in project development for the year ended 31 December
2022. Details of impairment assessment for intangible assets
are disclosed in note 7.
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CERC)

(i) XBEEGFEE
R_Z—nF AEBETER
ERAREEXESIFHEIRE
AR 13,955,0007T °

N EFERIE—F+
B=+—H x&5EEEEBEERTE
MEESEEENREELBN
HIRRME

ZNEE [ Bk R BAB T 5T 3L — 1B A A
W NEBRNBIOFBRCE R
DU AR B bt R 1T B FE IR 38 ~ B~
EEMN X1t -BEKRIBEENNE
E-ER - BEERERBEELETH B
A AR28,000,0007c AR EZE—
2+ ZBA=+—HILFEIEHE
HELTER EEEHMEEEAARE
24,704,000 (ZE-_—F : AR
25,410,0007T) B9/NEIE B & E R A]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 10 SRAEDZEARNKE
THE EQUITY METHOD

On 14 October 2022, the Group completed the acquisition RIEZ-HF+HB+HH > AEEER
of 100% equity interest in Zhongxing Hongye (Beijing) E—BIUE=HWEFESAZE (JE5)
Enterprise Management Co., Ltd (“Zhongxing”), 3% TrEEEFRAT (THE]) B9100%/
equity interest in Baiming (Beijing) Information Technology BB (R EEEMABRAR (116
Co., Ltd. ("Beijing Baiming”) and 35% equity interest in RAR) N3%REREARE R A
Zhuoshi Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Zhuoshi”) from an RAF (M A]) B935%REHE o 5% 15 1% M
independent third party. The details are disclosed in note F20(NIEEE
20(f).
(a) The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (@ NREHEEEBBEXREINTHEN
sheet are as follows: TS
2022
—E-C
RMB’'000
AR%FT
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H
Joint venture EEhE -
Associate & AT -
(b) The amounts recognised in the consolidated income (b) MEHHURFTERNEBUT !
statement are as follows:
2022
—E-=
RMB’000
AR%TT
For the year ended 31 December BHEt+ZA=+—HLEE
Joint venture EETE (34,912)
Associate & AT (40,122)
(75,034)
(c) Interest in a joint venture (c) R—REEELENESR
Set out below is the joint venture of the Group as at 31 TXHEINAERR -
December 2022 which, in the opinion of the directors, +ZR=+—HEERAHAE
is material to the Group. The details of the joint EMEBEANGELE B
venture are disclosed in note 20. SELENFBNMEF20#E -

+rERERAS —z-——s4x% 195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 10 AR EARNRE (@)
THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(c) Interest in a joint venture (Continued) (c) W—HEEELENEDS (B
The amount recognised in the consolidated balance REeEHEEAEREINEEN
sheet is as follows: TS

2022
B
RMB’'000
AR Tt
At 14 October 2022 RIB__H+A-+HEH
Acquisition of interest in a joint venture WE—EaBEhERER 44,047
Share of losses during the period from BE_ZE2__F+A+MHBE
14 October 2022 to 31 December 2022 _E_ &+ "HA=+—H
HARIR 518 (34,912)
Additional investment during the period from 14 “ETTHF+HA+TIEAE
October 2022 to 31 December 2022 _E_ &+ "A=+—H
HAEIEEIME B 6,000
Dividend distribution i B 9Kk (15,135)
At 31 December 2022 R _&#+”"RH=+—H -
The Group's share of a joint venture's commitments ZNEEE(E S E b HE A RIE =
Notes: Mo sE -
() The joint venture is a private company and there is no Hn B‘aE %%—Fﬁﬂ\)\ﬂj HE
quoted market prices available for its shares. It FE T 3G R E
(i)  There is no contingent liability relating to the Group's (i) WEEAKEERGELFENER
interest in a joint venture. MEENREaE.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 10 SRAEDZEARNKE (8)
THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(c) Interest in a joint venture (Continued) (c) W—HEEELENEDS (B
Summarised financial information for a joint —HEEEENUHFERERE
ventfure

2022
—E-C
RMB’'000
ARMFT
Assets and liabilities as at 31 December R+ZA=+—HHNEER&HE
Current assets MEEE
Cash and cash equivalents REKRIREEBIEE 450,802
Other current assets HMtREh&EE 23,266
Total current assets ERBEE 474,068
Non-current assets ERBEE 11,596
Current liabilities mEad
Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) B =LE
(FEIEE ZEARIE) 3,000
Other current liabilities Hitngha& 318,830
Advance receipt of content purchase cost rebate FBWARBITEERY
from content creators PR TREE Bl AR B 1,180,233
Total current liabilities e’ 1,502,063
Net liabilities BEFE (1,016,399)
Note: Advance receipt of content purchase cost rebate from MiEE - FER AR B RMEE NN B ERE R A
content creators would be recognised in profit or loss BB BERANRRIIEE KE
of the joint venture when the contents are purchased NERFRZEBELENEBRAR
from respective content creator and net with the cost of o W BREREE AL AN o
purchase.
The advance receipt of content purchase cost rebate AU A BB A AR B IR R A
would be fully utilised over the service contractual RAMEETABEAREL LR
period of 1 year or the estimated usage period based 1FERB ARGl EA
on the content creator behavior patterns and historical AR AR BIEE R E A -

record by content creators.
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10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(c) Interest in a joint venture (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

10 RAEEZARNKRE (&)

(c) M—BEELENED (B)

Summarised financial information for a joint —HEEEENUHFERRE
venture (Continued) (&)

2022
RMB’'000
AR®FT
Revenue WA 513
Cost of service (Note) AR %5 AL A (P 5T) (254,565)
Interest income A E WA 142
Depreciation e (722)
Income tax expense FriSiRf sz =

Losses for the period from
14 October 2022 to 31 December 2022

Total comprehensive losses

Note:

The amount represented cost of subsidy, net off with purchase

rebate and commission fee.

Reconciliation of summarized consolidated
financial information

—E__HF+A+HBAE
—2-—%+-A=+—H

HAE BV ES 18 (270,813)
PHEEIBAEZE (270,813)
BT :
SHEABEREA MR RBRYERES
Eo
EHEFEERBENHIR

2022
ZEIHE
RMB’'000
AR Tt
Consideration for acquisition of a joint venture WEE—EEBErENRE 44,047
Share of fair value of net liabilities of a joint EE—EeErERWER
venture at acquisition date (23%) BEFENRADER3I%) 167,805
Nominal goodwill EEmE 211,852
Net liabilities as at acquisition date RS H & m %58 (729,586)
Losses for the period from 14 October 2022 _EC_F+B+HIAEZE
to 31 December 2022 B2 _F+”-H=+—H
HARSI Y RS 18 (270,813)
Dividend distribution %22k (30,000)
Share capital injection e AF A 14,000
Closing net liabilities HREEFEE (1,016,399)
Interest in a joint venture (23%) N—EEERENER23%) -
Nominal goodwill HEEE 211,852
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10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(d)

Interest in an associate

Set out below is an associate of the Group as at 31
December 2022 which, in the opinion of the directors,

B HRRMEE

10 RAEDZEARNKE (B)

(d) M—FHEBEATNER
TXHEINAEEBR _T -
TZRA=+—HEERXRHEE

is material to the Group. The details of the associate EMEBEANBERE - BRZ

are disclosed in note 20.

BERBBEFIBIR W 203K EE

The amount recognised in the consolidated balance REHEEEBERBEINEEN

sheet is as follows:

s <

2022

—_— ——

RMB’000
ARBTR

At 14 October 2022
Acquisition of interest in an associate
Share of losses during the period from

14 October 2022 to 31 December 2022

At 31 December 2022

The Group's share of an associate’s commitments

RZE-__F+HB+WlA

W —EE AR R 40,122
BHE_E-__F+HA+HUBEE
TECE+"A=+—H

HAE P ES 18 40,122
W& _F#+_-_A=+—H -
AN EE B E (L — BB A B BRI -

Notes: P 5E

(a) The associate is a private company and there is no (@ HMERABDR—EHARE HE
quoted market prices available for its shares. 334 IR RE

(b)  There is no contingent liability relating to the Group's (b) HIEAAEERHELSINER
interest in an associate. HENSE &

+AERBERAT T __FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(d)

Interest in an associate (Continued)
Summarised financial information for an
associate

10 RAEEZARNKRE (&)

(d) R—EBEQRNED (B)
—HBEATNMBERESE

2022

—E-_F

RMB’000

AR¥T T

Assets and liabilities as at 31 December B+-—BA=+—HWEERERE

Current assets MENEE

Cash and cash equivalents RBERREEEIER 10,190

Other current assets HiUREh&EE 617

Total current assets ERBNE E 10,807

Investment in an associate R—E#MEAENKRE 14,865

Other non-current assets HMIERSEE 214

Total non-current assets BIERHEE 15,079
Current liabilities mENAaE

Financial liabilities (excluding trade payables) THEefd FEREZENTE) 30,780

Other current liabilities HRshaE 2,603

Total current liabilities EREEE 33,383

Net liabilities BEFHE (7.,497)
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10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(d)

Interest in an associate (Continued)
Summarised financial information for an

B HRRMEE

10 RAEDZEARNKE (B)

(d) R—REBEARNED (B)
—HBEQABNMBEREE

associate (Continued) (&)
2022
ZEICHF
RMB’000
AR%FT
Share of losses of a joint venture FEh—EaEhERBE (117,812)
Losses for the period from —E”FE+A+HmBEE
14 October 2022 to 31 December 2022 —E__F#+”-RA=+—H
HARIRYAS 4R (121,585)
Total comprehensive losses PHEEIBAEEE (121,585)
Reconciliation of summarized consolidated EHUBERBENHIER
financial information
2022
RMB’000
ARBETT
Consideration for acquisition of an associate WiE—E B E AR NRE 40,122
Share of fair value of net assets of an associate at &L —RI B = AT R UEE B
acquisition date (35%) BEFENADEGBSY%) (39,931)
Nominal goodwill EEmE 191
Net assets as at acquisition date RIEHEEFE 114,088
Losses for the period from 14 October 2022 to 2 CHF+B+TIHEE
31 December 2022 B+ "HB=+—H
HA RIS 18 (121,585)
Closing net liabilities HREEFEE (7,497)
Interest in an associate (35%) RN—E#E QB ER(35%) =
Nominal goodwill EEmE 191
+AERERAT —_T_FEF5H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

11 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 11 ARRIE-HEREMERKR
RECEIVABLES I8
2022 2021
—g_C T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT
Non-current portion eI )
Prepayment for township development NEMBEIBEENTENMRIE
(Note (i) (M =E(0)) 16,100 16,100
Prepayment for property, plant and equipment #1% i RE &2 E BN RIE
(Note (i) (B 5E()) 4,685 4,685
20,785 20,785
Current portion TMENER
Prepayments AR 1,559 2,484
Rental deposit MEeZs 500 899
Deposits and other receivables & K B M E WG IE 9,638 6,705
Deposits for marketing and EHEMBERSONEZES
promotion contracts (Note (ii) (B 5% (ii)) 52,000 52,000
63,697 62,088
The carrying amounts of the Group's prepayments, deposits AEBENEMRIE 2 REMEIR
and other receivables are denominated in the following ENEREEU T EEEE -
currencies:
2022 2021
—ECHF B4
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREFT
RMB AR 84,482 82,474
HK$ BT - 399
84,482 82,873
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(i)

Prepayment for township development

Pursuant to the framework agreement entered into by
the Group with Yongtai Government on 15 September
2017, Yongtai Government agreed to form a long-term
strategic cooperation with the Group regarding the
development and operation of the Township Project.
Under the framework agreement, the Group shall pay
a deposit of RMB50,000,000 to Yongtai Government,
which was intended to be utilised for participating in
open tender auctions to be organised by the Yongtai
Government for land use rights, assets, grant of lease
and/or operation rights circulation within the project site.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
entered into an operation right agreement with the
Yongtai Government for the acquisition of a 40-years’
exclusive operation right to develop, construct, manage
and operate commercial activities such as tourism,
sightseeing, resort, culture, sports and entertainment
in the operation site at a consideration of
RMB28,000,000. The consideration of RMB28,000,000
was deducted from the RMB50,000,000 refundable
deposit placed by the Group with Yongtai Government
under the framework agreement. The prepayment of
RMB28,000,000 had been utilised upon completion of
the acquisition on 19 April 2018. RMB5,000,000 and
RMB900,000 had been refunded by the Government
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2021
respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the remaining amount of
RMB16,100,000 (2021: RMB16,100,000) is intended
to be utilised for township development and is
classified as a prepayment for township development.
As at 31 December 2022, RMB4,685,000 (2021:
RMB4,658,000) represented prepayment for property,
plant and equipment of Yongtai Township development
project. Details of impairment assessment for
prepayment for township develop and prepayment for
property, plant and equipment of Yongtai Township
development project are disclosed in note 7.

B HRRMEE

11 FAfIFRIA ~ ¥ e H UK
1A (%8)

(i)

NEFRIERMNTAEMRIE
REAEBEKFHRBENR S
—tEAB+EBTIINEZR
FEOAEBRBNRERMAZE LRSS
NEIEEHHEAE BT L RARE
HEEMGFE -RIBFIERGRE 5%
EEAAKERBENZMEEAR
#50,000,0007% ° # AR 2k
BB REROMIEE EIRND
THIFERAE - EE - HER TR
W ERTENARBIERE -

REE_ZE—+tF+_B=+—
BIEFE > A& B HE KRBT
T—IERERERGE NABRWE
AOFBRCER > U KRS E
PETERERE R B/
X -BRERBEITARNREE Z
R BEMHEEE T RES
AR #28,000,0007cc FLEBARYE
28,000,000 cfE B A £ BRI IE
BipZEEAKEFRBNEZGHA
BiEHE$ AR ¥50,000,0007t F30
o FE{IFIB AR 128,000,0007T
RIE—NEMNBE+HBHKESE
EEMBEA - AR5,000,000
TR ARH900,000 2 BIREE
“E-NERIZEZ—%+ZAH
=+—HIEFEHBNRE -

RIEZZHF+ZA=+—H &
T&2AR¥16,100,0007T (ZF
——&: AER%16,100,0007T) #t
AR/NEEERE  UHEEA N
HHEEBEENRAAREB- RE
—ZHE+ZBR=+—H' AR
4,685,0007t (ZZEZ—F . AR
4,658,0007T) 15k F/NEMEIEE
HNE-BERLEENRE-F
Rk Z/NEREIBEE/)VERE
FENMEUERYE - BEREETE
1 FRIE R (B ST B 1B S B 51 74

Zo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

11 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(i)

Deposits for marketing and promotion contracts
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, deposits for
marketing and promotion contracts represent cash paid
by the Group to a property developer in the PRC in
relation to exclusive marketing and promotion services
agreements between the Group and the property
developer. Pursuant to the agreements, the Group has
obtained rights as the sole marketing and promotion
services provider for two real estate development
projects owned by the property developer for terms
of 3 years over the selling period of the real estate
development projects. These deposits will, amongst
other terms and conditions, be repayable to the Group
after the Group meet the sales target as stated in the

agreements.

11 FAfITRIE ~ ¥ K H fh UK
15 (#8)

(ii)

EHRTBERESONESE
RIBZ_FR-FZ—F+=
AR=+t—H EHKATGERSH
NRESEAEERAEREYE
MEBI UNBREHRTHE
BRZB &R E— LY X%
BAXUHNRE -REZFWHHE &
EEMYMEREEAIEANWE
FEHERZEEBEESFEABUME
MEBREHEENBNE-—ZHK
mIGHEERFIRHEEOES > B8
ZE - RAEEREINZFHES
HANHEBRR ZFHER (U
RIRBEMARR R ) BE T
ESE

12 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 12 EYEE
Biological assets comprise golden camellia flowers growing EMEECRERH EERNESIESR-
on trees.
2022 2021
—®-C BT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE®TT AREFT
At 1 January w—A—H 119 211
Transfer to inventories EBEERFS (119) (211)
Changes in fair value due to biological BEREMEEERN
transformation RABEE 185 119
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H” 185 119

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has

harvested flowers amounted to RMB119,000 and transferred
to inventory (2021: RMB211,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (Continued)

The Group's biological assets as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 were valued by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting
Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer who

holds a recognised relevant professional qualification.

The fair value of golden camellia flowers is determined using
a discounted cash flow model based on the expected flower
yield by certain management estimates and judgments
after allowing for harvesting costs, and other costs yet to
be incurred in getting the flowers for sale. Estimates and
judgement in determining the fair value of the golden
camellia growing on trees include the volume and stages
of maturity of the golden camellia flowers, expected selling

price and the discount rates.

The biological assets were classified as Level 3 under the fair
value hierarchy. There were no transfer between any levels

during the year.

The Group’s management reviewed the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes.
The management reported directly to the directors.
Discussions of valuation processes and results were held

between management and the valuer.

The management and the directors verified major inputs to
the independent valuation reports and held discussion with
the independent valuer on the valuation basis, processes and

results.

B HRRMEE

12 EMEE (&)

RARBRIEXERNBIEXSE
BREEMRANEEFERERERAE
(S N SE T —y- S
E+"A=+T—HHEYEEETH
Be

EERNLAANEERETEERS AR
ERARWERFHERRFEENH
fth Bl s £ HH B9 5 £ 18 1F 1 B9 5t R 1 iR
MHBERTERR@ER  ERMKIERERE
BEABE EEEARELERNE

M2
ERANERIEENGEF RAEEES
TERNEBE R NAPEE  FBERE B KA
S

EVMEEDBBAABERBERNE=
Ao FRERERB I EEE

MMBHREENME  cEEBEERERE
ERBIUGEMETHHE-EEEE
BEoEERE -ERERAGEMEG®E
B RERETR

EEEREEIRER/IUIMGEMRSNE
EHRAMBN B (EEMIRGER
E %Er—&/vlﬂ%o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

13 INVENTORIES 13 &
2022 2021
- —T--=&
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARBTT
Newsprint and printing consumables R AR K2 ED Rl VE #E om 41 706
Golden camellia flowers FIEH 330 211
371 917

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in “Cost of sales” amounted to RMB1,208,000 (2021:
RMB1,875,000)(Note 28).

14 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

The Group's properties held for sale include the following:

14

BRARLTMA HEREINES
KA ANREE,208,0000 (ZE - —F
AR #1,875,00070) (MizE28) ©

FFLEE
AEENFEHEYEBEUTES

2022 2021

- BT £

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBETF T

Properties held for sale REHEYE 15,097 22,793

The properties in the PRC were received in exchange of
advertising services to real estate developers in the PRC. The
Group’s intention is to sell these properties and, accordingly,
such rights are recognised as properties held for sale upon
the completion of the advertising sales transaction if the

related properties are ready to be sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (Continued)

Management assessed the fair value less costs to sell of
the properties with reference to their market value with
the assistance of an independent property valuer. Valuation
methodologies used in the valuation included direct market
comparable approach and income approach which are within
Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy respectively.
For direct market comparable approach, observable inputs
other than quoted prices within Level 1 included market
price of comparable properties adjusted having regard to
the location, size and nature of the properties (Level 2). For
income approach, unobservable inputs included expected
rent income, growth rate and discount rate (Level 3). There
were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for recurring
fair value measurements during the year. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the management compared the carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell of the properties and
made impairment provision of RMB5,323,000 (2021: Nil).

14

B HRRMEE

FIEHEYE (8)
EEETEBIIMEGHEMNGE T2R
MENTETHEEAABREHER
Ko EFTANGEELEZEERETS
EEBE RN E > Th DR BRARELR
BEBRNE_BRE=ZR-REETH
LEBEM S > AR W AR (B —4&
NRRERI) BRETELERMEN™T
B EREMMEMIE - KNREEE
B (BETMR) ol EmIEM S > Rl #R
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RITIRE (F=ZHR) -ASEME R EE
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15 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

15 RR(EKE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

T R AMREY & Al
BE

2022 2021

—g_C 2T

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT

Investment in a network drama —EEER N E 4,376 7,432

On 8 May 2018, the Group acquired an investment in a
network drama through the acquisition of subsidiaries.
Pursuant to the investment agreement on 22 May 2017,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Supreme Glory Limited
acquired 20% of the income right in a network drama for a
consideration of RMB6,000,000.

The fair value estimation of the investment was based on
the cash flows discounted using a rate based on the market
interest rate and risk premium specific to the investment.
Significant unobservable inputs involved in the fair value
measurement included the expected timing of settlement
and discount rate, which are within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
for recurring fair value measurements during the year ended
31 December 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, a fair value loss of
RMB3,056,000 relating to the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss was recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (2021: a fair value gain
of RMB868,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES - NET

B HRRMEE

16 BHEURIE—F4E

2022 2021

—$-—& C"B--—%

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTF T AREETF T

Trade receivables 85 W EIE 23,730 14,502
Less: provision for impairment of B B2 RWRIBE R ERE

trade receivables (9,212) (7,498)

Trade receivables — net B2 RWRIE— 88 14,518 7,004

The payment terms with customers are mainly cash on

delivery and on credit. The credit periods range from 30

days to 365 days after the end of the month in which the

relevant sales occurred. Aging analysis of the Group's trade

receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

ERTEREINRERULKRARN
Mo EEHNFIFLBERBEEERER
B30 E365H A F - AEEME ZEUL
MIARBERARNRE DTN T -

2022 2021
—g_C T —F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBT T
1-30 days 1£230H 13,925 4,949
31-60 days 31F260H 714 1,466
61-90 days 612900 - 53
91-180 days 91%180H 888 731
181-365 days 181E365H 1,099 393
Over 1 year —EE 7,104 6,910
23,730 14,502

Less: provision for impairment of B BREWEIERERE
trade receivables 9,212) (7,498)
Trade receivables — net B2 EWHRIE— 2% 14,518 7,004

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are

denominated in RMB.

AEBEZBUIENREEUAR

stEo

THEERERAR

T FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES — NET (Continued) 16 B RIRIE—F%E (4)

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract

assets.

As at 31 December 2022, trade receivables of
RMB9,212,000 (2021: RMB7,498,000) were impaired and
provided for. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
amounts of the provision credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income were RMB1,714,000
(2021: the amounts of the reversal of provision credited to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income were
RMB1,800,000).

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their
carrying amount is considered to be the same as their fair

value.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, written-off trade
receivables of RMB425,000 were credited (2021: written-
off trade receivables of RMB35,000 were credited) to the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment on

trade receivables are as follows:

AEBERBEKRMFRSEREI
BIEn st ERAEEBE MM E
SRBRERGNEEERBERRRES
BEE-

R _FE+B=1+—H EBEZE
WHIE AR #9,212,0000 (Z&E - —
£ ANR17,498,00070) BRE KR
BE-BE_E__#+_A=+—H
LHFEE s AGHIZERERNEES
A ARME1,714,0000T (ZE - —£F ¢
SAGHEZENRERNBEELSES
AR #1,800,0007T) °

MR ER UGB EMMEE  HIRE
BERKEEREAREHEF-

RBEE_ZE-__F#+-B=+—81L
FE ERaHI2E NGRS A M
B2 EKARIEARKE425,0000T (22
TFIHANHEESRERIBEBARE
35,0007T) °

FEEEZRERRRERENEE
T

2022 2021

—®-C BT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AREBTT AREFT

At 1 January w—B—H 7,498 9,298
Net change in provision for impairment BRI R ERE

of trade receivables )P EE 1,714 (1,800)

At 31 December R+_-_B=+—H 9,212 7,498
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE RECEIVABLES — NET (Continued)

The provision for impairment of trade receivables have been
included in “General and administrative expenses” in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are denominated in

the following currencies:

16

17

B HRRMEE

85 BRI — 38R ()
ERRERERERECHALHRE
U3 2 19 T — AR R T B RS2 o

AEE A A TR R ERR
ReEkREFEER

AEENRSRRESEEEDUT
EEHE

2022 2021
—EfF B —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTF T AREF T

Cash at bank and on hand: IRITRFEIRE .
Denominated in RMB MARMStE 45,974 8,808
Denominated in HKD M#ETEtHE 45 38
Denominated in USD HUETHE 6 5
46,025 8,851
Maximum exposure to credit risk EaEERR 46,025 8,823

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rate. The carrying amounts of the cash at

bank approximate their fair values.

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

RITHEERERRTEREFERAXRNF
HHXRFR - RTREVKRAERAR
AERE-

U RESHERNGER RS INE UK
RARMUINESHERNRITERRREE
th o BRI 78 38 T AR B U 1R A RO AR B SN BB
ERIRA KRG

+AERBERAT T __FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

18 SHARE CAPITAL 18 RgZs
Equivalent
Nominal nominal
Number of value of value of
ordinary/ ordinary/ ordinary/
preference preference preference Share
shares shares shares premium Total
BE/ g/ BE/
Bxk%E BEkEE BERSEDE RirEE Mzt
HK$ RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Authorised: AT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZEZ-£—F-B
at 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, - -#+"RA=z1+-RAk
and 31 December 2022 “ECCE+CAZ+-AR

SRAEOETHERR  100,000,000,000 0.01

Non-voting Convertible Preference Shares of RZEZ_&+-F=+—HHK

HK$0.01 each at 31 December 2022 SREEETNERZRE

(note (a)) nERELR (1) 10,000,000,000 0.01
Issued ordinary shares: BRETEER:
Ordinary shares at 1 January 2021 R —F—-A-HANZER 909,118,836 9,091,188 7,769 48,820 56,589
Issuance of shares upon conversion of RBRTRREFRETRG

convertible bonds (Note (b)) (M3 (b)) 34,320,000 343,200 296 6,976 7272
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZEZ—F+ZA=+—-Hk

“S-"%-B-H 943,438,836 9,434,388 8,065 55,796 63,861

Issuance of shares upon conversion of RBRATRREFRETRA

convertible bonds (Note (b)) (HE(b) 88,007,142 880,071 802 53,750 54,552
At 31 December 2022 RZE__#+_A=+—-H 1,031,445,978 10,314,459 8,867 109,546 118,413
Issued convertible preference shares: BRTERELR:

Convertible preference shares at 1 January  R-E-—F—F—H»
2021, 31 December 2021 and 1 Januay ~ —“E-—&F+-A=+-Hk

2022 “E-"F-H-HH
oERELR - - - - -
Issuance of convertible preference share {7 ERBLIR (H:E@)
(Note (a)) 383,636,331 3,836,363 252,608 - 252,608
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_F+-F=1—H 383,636,331 3,836,363 252,608 - 252,608
At 31 December 2022 RZE__E+-F=+-H
Ordinary shares LER 1,031,445,978 10,314,459 8,867 109,546 118,413
Convertible preference shares ERELR 383,636,331 3,836,363 252,608 - 252,608
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ-E+ZA=1-H
Ordinary shares LER 943,438,836 9,434,388 8,065 55,796 63,861

212  SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

(a)

On 30 July 2022, the Group and Top Big International
Development Limited (the “Shareholder”), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Chenzhi, an executive Director and
a Shareholder of the Company, entered into the Loan
Capitalisation Agreement where the Company conditionally
agreed to issue, and the Shareholder agreed to subscribe for
383,636,331 convertible preference shares (the “CPS”) at the
subscription price of HK$0.57 per CPS, to settle the entire
outstanding balance (including the principal and interest)
of the shareholder's loan. Please refer to details note 24 for
details. The completion of the Loan Capitalisation is subject to
satisfaction of conditions precedent. Before the fulfilment of
all conditions, this arrangement was recognised as contingent
convertible loan and loss of RMB72,719,000 was recognised
for the difference between the carrying amount of the
shareholder's loan and the initial fair value of the contingent

convertible loan.

On 4 November 2022, the issuance of the CPS was approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at a special
general meeting and the authorised share capital of the
Company has increased to HK$1,100,000,000, comprising: (a)
100,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each; and (b)
10,000,000,000 non-voting Convertible Preference Shares of
HK$0.01 upon the resolution passed at the Special General
Meeting. The Loan Capitalisation was approved by the
stock exchange on 9 November 2022. Therefore, contingent
convertible loan was remeasured on 9 November 2022 and

fair value loss of RMB25,350,000 was recognised.

On 11 November 2022, 383,636,331 Convertible Preference
Shares were allotted and issued to the TopBig International
Development Limited under the Convertible Preference Shares
Specific Mandate at the subscription price of HK$0.57 per
Convertible Preference Shares, in full and final settlement of
the entire outstanding balance of the TopBig International
Development Limited's Loan (including principal and interest)
owed by the Group to the TopBig International Development
Limited.

B HRRMEE

18 fgas (48)

MyEE

(a)

RIEZZE+tA=+H > AEBEHA
KRABHTEESERRRESEELRE
BEENRTRERERARAR (TRR])
S ERERCHRE BRIt XATAE
FRERRET MRREEGREHRRZES
BESRATERELR (TCPS) 0.57748
TT5085383,636,33 18 CPS ' LUBEIRER
ERZ 2 EARERGE (BFEAE KA
B) cHIEFE2HME24 - BRER
HISE AL B RE ST R IR EIERM B 5 Al
BoREMFB KRR thZ R A
FAEABRKRER MR ERERNERE
BEFBUBRBRERNIBERAREZ
B E R EBARKE72,719,000

I o

o

BITCPSHR_EBE__F+—AMHAX
REREFNAYG FERQAT BRI
HEOBRBRRFINAGBEBBRAZERE K
NEEERABIEIMZE 100,000,000
#B7T0 B3 (a) 100,000,000,000
REREEIOIBTHNEZER &
(b)10,000,000,0008% & A EI1E0.01 87T
HEKE ERAEIRERR ERERL
RIZBZZHF+—BAHEBRZMM#H
HoRALL RBABMRERN T
F+—ANBHEWHE URIBANE
518 AR 25,350,0007T ©

NZEZZF+—HA+—H R
BRELERFIEERERTERESS
fRO.S7TBTHREERR FEMKRERE
BRABAEE K E17383,636,3318 7]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

18 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Note:

(a)

(Continued)

The Group’s contingent convertible loan was valued by
Valplus Consulting Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer who holds a recognised relevant professional
qualification. Management assessed the fair value of
contingent convertible loan as at 30 July 2022 with reference
to total market capitalisation of the Group, fair value of
shareholder loan and control premium. Management assessed
the fair value of contingent convertible loan as at 9 November
2022 with reference to total market capitalisation of the
Group and control premium. The contingent convertible loan
was classified as Level 3 under the fair value hierarchy. There

were no transfer between any levels during the year.

The Group’s management reviewed the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes.
The management reported directly to the directors.
Discussions of valuation processes and results were held
between management and the valuer. The management
and the directors verified major inputs to the independent
valuation reports and held discussion with the independent

valuer on the valuation basis, processes and results.

On 14 October 2022 and 15 November 2022, the convertible
bonds with carrying amount of RMB27,063,000 and
RMB27,490,000, respectively, were converted based on the
principal amount of HK$30,803,000 and HK$30,803,000 at
the conversion price of HK$0.7 and HK$0.7, respectively. As a
result, 44,003,571 and 44,003,571, respectively, new shares

were issued and allotted.

On 27 July 2021, the convertible bonds with carrying amount
of RMB5,888,000 were converted based on the principal
amount of HK$8,237,000 (equivalent to RMB7,108,000) at
the conversion price of HK$0.24. As a result, 34,320,000 new

shares were issued and allotted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 RESERVES

The details of movement in the Group’s reserves are set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page

106:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve relates to the
redemption and cancellation of the Company’s own

shares.

Capital reserves

Capital reserves primarily represent capital
contributions to certain subsidiaries of the Group
and the differences between the consideration
and proportionate carrying value of the subsidiary
disposed of where the Group still retains control of the

subsidiary.

Statutory reserves

The statutory reserves represent reserves of the PRC
incorporated companies which are set aside for
future development purpose in accordance with the
regulations in the PRC. The allocation is based on
certain percentages of these companies’ profit for the

year, as reported in their statutory financial statements.

B HRRMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

19 RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Statutory reserves (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC regulations and the companies’
respective Articles of Association, each of the Group
companies is required to transfer 10% of its profit for
the year, as determined under the PRC Accounting
Regulations, to a statutory common reserve fund until
the fund balance exceeds 50% of the Group company’s
registered capital. The statutory common reserve fund
can be used to make good previous years’ losses,
if any, and to issue new shares to shareholders in
proportion to their existing shareholdings or to increase
the par value of the shares currently held by them,
provided that the balance after such issue is not less

than 25% of the registered capital.

Each of the Group companies is also permitted to
transfer a certain percentage of its profit for the year
as determined under the PRC Accounting Regulations,
to a discretionary common reserve fund. The transfer
to this reserve is subject to approval at shareholders’

meetings.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out

in note 2.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

19 f#fE (&)

(c)

(d)

EEME (B
RIBEFEER R ASEBWAAES
ERMA REEBE TS AR ER
BRAEgARMEENENR
FMHI0%BAZELTEES BEEZ
ABEEGBBEAEEZETA
BFEMEAMNS0% EEATEET
BRREUEEESE WA) 78
ARBEEFRLEAETHR TR
RN RIBREMSRANE
B HETENERTT DR M
B ARR25% ©

AEEETEAR AR RPE
SR ERABEENERNENNE
TEALBAERRAER ZEE
AR ANGHE -

ERHE
ERH#EEERREBIETYE
WERFTEEN—VIERER - #E
THIRIEM sE2Fr 8 & ST IUR R 12 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 RESERVES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the share premium amounts and the
accumulated deficits of the Group pursuant to the
cancellation of share premium account and the capital

reorganization effected on 10 April 2019.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to

pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium accounts.

Convertible bonds reserve

Convertible bonds reserve represents the value of the
conversion rights related to convertible bonds of the
Company, details of which are shown in note 24. The
reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium accounts upon the conversion of convertible
bonds. For details of the conversion during the year,

please refer to note 24.

Revaluation surplus

The revaluation surplus relates to the increase in
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
upon transfer to investment properties at its then fair

value.

B HRRMEE

19 f#f& (&)

(e)

(f)

(9)

BRI RR
EREGERNEERAETER
RE_ST-—NENA+HETH
RN EERFIHEIREAEEEE
MRSt A 2 BRI ZEER

BREBEERE-—NAN—F(QEE)

(1EF]) » A RBNE AR
Btk o AT > fif IR T 518
ARl B NN R NI Q=1
B FARREZBFTFELD
ik

iy RIEHEZRRNERSE
1) BEIENEGE; &

(i RBDEEMTERER DR
Haf BETREARKD
i BARBIABA]

AR E S E

MR ESFEEREERARQRTN
BERESHENRAKEBE 56
BRI sE24 o A E R L AT IR AR
BHREMEFBARIKRE G &E
R-BRFEANERNFT FL2H
MizE24 0

EMERR

EfREBEREAYNE BERRKBRE
ERNAAEBRARBEYERIR
HERENAER -

+AERBERAT T __FER

217



218

and an associate of the Company as at 31 December 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

20 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES 20 X EMB AT - & & &% K
AND AN ASSOCIATE

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries, a joint venture

=F/NT
TRHEINARIN I BE__ER_E
T —EFE+A=Z+—HHNETEWEA

and 2021: ERELERBMERT
Principal activities
Place of incorporation and and place of Issued or registered/ Effective interest held
Name kind of legal entity operation paid up capital as at 31 December
e . ) R+=A=+—H
o ERRAEEY-FINF] TEEBREENE EROAZM/EHRE RENERER
2022 2021
—E_C _ET-F
(a) Subsidiaries
(a) HEBAR
(i) Directly owned subsidiary
ERRFHERR
Dragon Soar Ltd. The British Virgin Islands, Investment holding, usD1 100% 100%
) Limited liability company the PRC
EDBRRT HERUES BEREARE REZR 1E (B
Ysolde Group Limited Samoa, Limited liability company  Investment holding, UsD50,000 100% 100%
the PRC
+HEREERRAH BEL BAREEAF REZR FE 50,0005 7T
Graceful Universe Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands, Limited ~ Investment holding, usb1 100% 100%
liability company the PRC
EEZERBRAT HERUHES EREANE RERR 1E (B
ShiFang Expert Company Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability Human resources, HKD1 100% 100%
company Hong Kong.
THEFBRAT 58 BREEAH ANER &% AT
Glory Peace Limited Samoa, Limited liability company  Investment holding, UsD1 100% 100%
Hong Kong
ERBRAF BEL BREEAF REER & 1£7
Supreme Glory Limited Samoa, Limited liability company  Investment holding, USD43,521 100% 100%
Beijing, the PRC
ERERAT BED BEREMFAT REZR REIR  43521FER
(ii) Indirectly owned subsidiaries
(N EEEREAR
Fuzhou DingCe Culture Communication Co. Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability ~Provision of full- line  USD200,000 100% 100%

BNRRXLBEERAT

Fuzhou ShiFang Printing Co., Ltd.

BT AEBERRAR

Fuzhou ShiFangYuan Advertisement Co., Ltd.

BEtHRREERAR

company

mEEN ARETAH

Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability
company

RERN BREEAF

Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability
company

mEEMN ARETAH

o
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advertising agency
services, Fuzhou, the
PRC
REXFUESERE 200,007
R REEMN

Provision of printing RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
services, Fuzhou, the

PRC
TRAENRIARE > PEIEM AR %10,000,0007T

Provision of full- line  RMB5,000,000 100% 100%
advertising agency
services, Fuzhou, the
PRC
REZAFABESAE  AKKS5,000,0007
FR% FREIE M



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

20 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES

AND AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

—FNCINE))

Principal activities

20 FEMBAR - aBEE R

Place of incorporation and and place of Issued or registered/ Effective interest held
Name kind of legal entity operation paid up capital as at 31 December
R+ZB=+—H
iR ERRAEEYFINL] ITEEBRESME  EROAZM/BERE RENERER
2022 2021
ZBICE ZBT-F
Fujian DaFang Advertisement Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Provision of full-line RMBS5,000,000 - 100%
company advertising services, (note a)
Fuzhou, the PRC (Mizta)
BRAFESRRAHT REGN EREERT Rt FUESRYE> ARKS,000,0007
HEIRRM
Xiamen DuKe Information Science & Xiamen, the PRC, Limited liability Provision of technology RMB11,000,000 55% 100%
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xiamen Duke") company promotion and (note b)
consultancy services, (MtzEh)
Xiamen, the PRC
EMAZESREERAR (EMEE) REEF BREERT RERMERERASD  AKK11,000,0007
R REEF
Fujian HaoBang Real Estate Consulting & Agency Co. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability ~Property marketing RMB10,000,000 51% 51%
Ltd. company & agency services,
Fuzhou, the PRC
BRASEERIREERAR HRERN EREEAT WEEHRAERYE >  AKE10,000,0007T
FERM
Fujian FangKe Network Technology Corporation Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability  Provision of full-line RMB50,000,000 51% 51%
company advertising services &
Property marketing,
Fuzhou, the PRC
BEREEEHRRNERAR HRERN EREERT B2 HUESRBER ARES50,000,0007T
WEEH REEM
Tian Pu Commercial Management Co., Ltd. Hong Kong, Limited liability Investment holding, HKD100 - 51%
company Hong Kong (Note ¢)
(izEc)
EATHEXERERAD &8 BREEAT REZR & 100&7T
Fuzhou Kungfu Town Scenic Area Development Co., Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Tourism and UsSD25,000,000 100% 100%
Ltd. company entertainment, Fuzhou,
the PRC
BNHX)EREREFRAR REGN BREERT B RIRE  REIEM  25,000,000% 7
Beijing Fanxing Travel Co., Ltd. Beijing, the PRC, Limited liability ~ Tourism and RMBS5,000,000 100% 100%
company entertainment, Beijing,
the PRC
TREERERRAT HELR BEREERT MR RS PELR  AKK5,000,0007
Zhangpingshi Lianchuang Nongye Fazhan Co., Ltd.  Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability Tourism and RMB10,000,000 60% 60%
company entertainment, Fuzhou,
the PRC
BETHEAREERERAR HRERN BREERT B RRE REEMN AR #10,000,0007
Fuzhou Niaoyulin Youle Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability ~Tourism and RMB5,000,000 82% 82%
company entertainment, Fuzhou,
the PRC
BNBEMELERAT HERN EREERT MR RS REEMN  AKE5,000,0007
+AERERAT T _F5HK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

20 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES

AND AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Principal activities

20 X EMBAR - SEEERE

—FNSINE))

Place of incorporation and and place of Issued or registered/ Effective interest held
Name kind of legal entity operation paid up capital as at 31 December
R+-B=+—H
iR SRR LB e A A BRI FTEEBRESME  CROAZM/BERE RENERER
2022 2021
ZBICE Z2T-F
Fuzhou Mobile Media Co., Ltd. Fuzhou, the PRC, Limited liability ~Provision of mobile RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
company media services,
Fuzhou, the PRC
BNBHERERAR FEEMN EREEAD REUEBBERRE  ARK10,000,0007T
FEIREM
Baiming (Yongtai) Information Technology Co., Ltd.  Yongtai, the PRC, Limited liability Provision of Business ~ RMB50,000,000 50.45% -
company service, Yongtai, the (Note d)
PRC (GES))
B (k%K) EERMBRAT HEXR BREART RECER PEXER ARES0,000,0007
Huaxian Fangke Real Estate Consulting & Huaxian, the PRC, Limited liability Property marketing RMB100,000 51% 51%
Agency Co. Ltd. company & agency services,
Huaxian, the PRC
BREERHESARAEERAT HERH BEREART WEEHERAERYE  ARE100,0007
HEBR
Zhongxing Hongye (Beijing) Enterprise Management  Beijing, the PRC, Limited liability ~ Provision of Business ~ RMB3,000,000 100% -
Co., Ltd company service, Beijing, the (Note e)
PRC (fitzte)
FEAE (bR CEERERAR FEER EREEAH RECERS PEIER AK3,000,0007
(iii) Special purpose entity
(i)FHENER
Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science and Technology Co., ~ Beijing, the PRC, Limited liability  Provision of technology RMB1,000,000 100% 100%
Ltd. company promotion and
consultancy services,
Beijing the PRC
TREEERRKERAR FELR BEREEAH RERAEERBAR ARK,000,0007
B PELR
(b) Joint ventures
bEEEE
(i) Indirectly held by the Company
(EEADFEEE
Baiming (Beijing) Information Technology Co., Ltd  Beijing, the PRC, Limited liability ~ Provision of information RMB30,000,000 49.95% -
company technology consultancy (Note e)
services (GED)
BE OtR) EERBERAF FEER BREFAD REEERMADRE ARE30,000,0007
Baiming (Pingtan) Information Technology Co., Ltd  Fujian, the PRC, Limited liability ~ Provision of information RMB30,000,000 49.95% -
company technology consultancy (Note e)
services (GED)
BE (T8 EERMHERAT HERE EREALT REEERMAARYE ARE30,000,0007
(c) An associate
() BERT
(i) Directly held by the Company
(EFRFEERT
Zhuoshi Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd Beijing, the PRC, Limited liability ~ Provision of information RMB3,000,000 35% -
company technology consultancy (Note e)
services (izEe)

FEME OtR) BRAR

PELR BREEAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES
AND AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

Note d:

Note e:

The subsidiary was sold to independent third party on 1
December 2022.

The Group sold 45% share of the subsidiary to
independent third party on 28 February 2022.

The subsidiary was deregistered on 15 July 2022.

The subsidiary was incorporated on 14 September 2022.
The Group obtained control over the subsidiary by entering
into a contractual agreement with Baiming (Beijing)
Information Technology Co., Ltd, Zhuoshi Technology
(Beijing) Co., Ltd (including their respective shareholders)
and Beijing BaiChuanDuKe Science and Technology Co.,
Ltd. The directors of the Company, based on the advice of
its legal counsel, consider that the contracted agreement
is in compliance with the relevant PRC Law and is legally

enforceable.

On 14 October 2022, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in Zhongxing Hongye (Beijing)
Enterprise Management Co., Ltd (“Zhongxing”), 3%
equity interest in Baiming (Beijing) Information Technology

0., Ltd. (“Beijing Baiming”) and 35% equity interest in
Zhuoshi Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Zhuoshi”) from
an independent third party. The Group accounted Beijing
Baiming as investment in a joint venture and accounted
Zhuoshi as investment in an associate. As Zhongxing
hold 20% equity interest in Beijing Baiming and Zhuoshi
hold 77% equity interest in Beijing Baiming, the Group
effectively hold 49.95% equity interest in Beijing Baiming.
Details of investment are set out in note 10.

The consideration of HK$42,109,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB45,968,000) for acquisition of 100%
equity interest in Zhongxing and 3% equity interest in
Beijing Baiming and consideration of HK$43,799,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB40,122,000) for
acquisition of 35% equity interest in Zhuoshi were settled
by way of issue of convertible bonds by the Company
to the independent third party. Total consideration was
allocated based on respective equity interest in Beijing
Baiming.

B HRRMEE

20 TEHBAT  AREERE

—FNSINE))

Mi5Ea:

M 5Eb:

M S

M3 5Ed:

B SEe:

ZWNBATENR_BE__&F+_F—
BHETEILE=7-°

N6 B R Z Y B A B V45 % B 17 7Y
— - A= /NHEEE
UFE=Fe

ZHB AN _E__FtB8+4a
HEFEsHE R ©

ZHBAENR _E__FhA+WM
HafMmi AEEEBEATR (b
R)EERMERAR HEAR
(=) BRAR (BEKEZEW
KR RIEREEEREREARAE
S BN EIS RN E A B T
Bl - RIBAREEREMNER AAF
BERA aNBERTEEBETE
AERMIE AR LR FHRT

RIEBEZ"F+RA+MBE A%H
SE AR M — % %8 3L 5 = 75 Ui o B 5
FOR) CXEEARAT (T
H) ;9100%KE-BB b)) E8
RMAERAR (MEREWRI) 3%
BEEARE OER) ARAR (MK
A1) H35%KRE - FEBKILRE
WARINGER-—BRERBTNRK
B BEAOFEARIER —BBE
AFANKE-HRPEFTHILRE
ISHI20% i  MBEAFHILRE
ISH77%kE REAEBBERTA
IERBEERN49.95%RE-REFIF
HICMIEE100

WEDEPNI100%KRERIERE
ISHI3 %M M 1E42,109,0007
T (HERHUARMA45,968,000
7o) RN BER A MN35% R ENRE
43,799,000/ 7t (MHERNW AR
40,122,0007T) @B HA A E @ E
UB=ZHBETAIRRBRESHNS G
HoMRERENIEEEENIER
BT DB o

+AERBERAT T __FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

20 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES
AND AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
The consideration for acquisition of 23% equity interest
in Beijing Baiming, which include 20% equity interest
hold by Zhongxing is HK$48,083,000 (equivalent to
RMB44,047,000).

20 FEMBAR - 8B FE R
EAR (8
WEEIE R ERM23%K#E (BEFER
B HI20% K1) BB %48,083,00078 7T
(FBE R AR #44,047,0007T) ©

(d) Material non-controlling interests (d) EARIEERHES
2022 2021
—g_C T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBEFTT
By subsidiaries: BB AEE D -
Fujian Fangke Network Technology REEEMEKARERNHAER
Co. Ltd (“Fujian Fangke") rE ((BEREE 14,368 13,048
Baiming (Yongtai) Information Technology B P& (k%) 15 B M A RA T
Co., Ltd. ("Baiming (Yongtai)") (TEE (k) 1) 14,865 =
Others HAth 3,037 (6,942)
32,270 6,106

Summarised financial information on a subsidiary with

material non-controlling interests
Set out below are the summarised financial information

for a subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that

are material to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

20 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES
AND AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

20 FEMBAR - aBEE R

—FNCINE))

(d) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (d) EARIEEZERER (B)
Summarised balance sheets for Fujian Fangke EERENEEARGREE
2022 2021
—EZ_F —E T —fE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AE¥TIT
Current: e
Assets BE 146,162 85,911
Liabilities =K (121,371) (59,709)
Net current assets MIHEEZFE 24,791 26,202
Non-current: JERE -
Assets BE 11,676 1,593
Liabilities =K (253) (1,166)
Net assets BEFE 36,214 26,629
Summarised statements of comprehensive income FEEENEZEWRERME
for Fujian Fangke
2022 2021
—=E-= TES T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AE¥T T
Revenue WA 56,278 74,943
Profit before income tax BRETIS AR T (2,318) 686
Income tax expense FriSiRf (183) (277)
(Loss)/profit for the year FRN (EB8) EH (2,501) 408
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2/ (B18) W 4B%E (2,501) 408

DECEIFERETN
2H (B8 R m e (1,225) 200
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests & {1 JE3F A2 35 B9 B% B - -

Total comprehensive (loss)/income

allocated to non-controlling interests

+EERERAS —=-——a&m 223



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

20 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES 20 X EMB AT - & & &% K

AND AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) EAR (8
(d) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (d) EXRIFZERER (B)
Summarised cash flow statements for Fujian EEERENHERERME
Fangke
2022 2021
—=_C 2T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBEFTT
Net cash used in operating activities KSR E TR $ 5 (2,966) (1,612)
Net cash used in investing activities KREEFFTARE P (101) (17)
Net cash generated from financing MEEEPMEIRE 2R
activities 73 -
Net decrease in cash and REeERREEMEER
cash equivalents B ERE (2,994) (1,629)
Cash and cash equivalents FYNRERREEEEE
at beginning of year 4,882 6,511
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RN RIS EEIER 1,888 4,882

Summarised balance sheets for Baiming

BE (k%) NEERRREE

(Yongtai)

2022 2021
—®-—f -—=-—f#
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBEFIT

Current: R -
Assets BE 30,000 =
Net assets BEFE 30,000 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

20 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES 20 X EMB AT & & & K

AND AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) EAF (8
(d) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (d) EARIEEZERER (B)
Summarised statements of comprehensive income BE GkHR) NEEREREE
for Baiming (Yongtai)
There is no profit for the year, other comprehensive BE s A~ A E M2 |
income for the year, total comprehensive income for W EANEE W T B A IEER
the year and dividends paid to no-controlling interests. RmIRMAER ©
Summarised cash flow statements for Baiming BE (GkHFE) WRERERUE
(Yongtai)
2022 2021
—=_C BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®ETFTT
Net cash generated from financing MEBEEEERE R
activities 30,000 =
Net increase in cash and HERRESEBEEBIENNFE
cash equivalents 30,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents at FYNRERIREEEEEB

beginning of year =

Cash and cash equivalents at FERNBAERREEEEE
end of year 30,000 -
21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 21 IRIEFRISHA

The analysis of deferred income tax liabilities is as follows: REFREREBEN W T !
2022 2021
—E__fF B
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETF T AR¥TF T

Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTEREE

— to be reversed after more than 12 months — BB iE 1218 B & #5[a] - 632
— to be reversed within 12 months — #1218 B (o] - 256
- 888
+AERBERAT T __FER
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21 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements on the deferred income tax liabilities are as

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

21 RIEFRFH (B)

BIEFSRMAEESINT !

follows:
Fair value
change in
Intangible relation to
assets properties Total
BERMERN
BRI EE AREES st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT AREF T
At 1 January 2021 W_E-_—%—F—H 44,640 877 45,517
Recognised in the consolidated statement R & #f 2 E U & &R AR
of comprehensive income (Note 32) (fFE32) (43,752) (877) (44,629)
At 31 December 2021 R_B_—F
+-A=+—H 888 - 888
Recognised in the consolidated statement K& f#f & E U & &R A
of comprehensive income (Note 32) (M$5E32) (888) = (888)
At 31 December 2022 RIZZZF
+—-B=+—H - - _

No deferred income tax asset has been recognised in
respect of estimated tax losses of RMB89,316,000 as at 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB99,831,000) as it is not probable
that the relevant subsidiaries of the Group will generate
taxable profit to utilise the tax losses in the foreseeable

future. Such tax losses have an expiry period of five years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

22 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES,
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND CONTRACT

22 BHEMARIE HthEAR
B-BstRAZRENER

LIABILITIES
2022 2021
—g_C T —F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AR®EFTT
Trade payables BZEemE 26,508 12,790
Other payables and accrued expenses: HME A HRIERETRX
Accrued utility expenses and other liabilities — FESTH AL RMF X K
Hith& | 2,389 3,138
Accrued salaries and welfare FEST 3 & M AR ] 17,790 17,430
Value added tax and other taxes payable IBERREMEMSRIE 704 1,153
Other payables H g =E 77,997 72,869
Deposits from customers REEFPNEE 3,695 1,441
Down payment of assets classified as held for PDEAFEHEBTERN
sale (Note) BEIE (M) - 8,539
Contract liabilities (Note 5) BMaE (EEs) 5,242 19,194
B, ___ 123.764
134,325 136,554
Payment terms granted by suppliers are mainly cash on HEFATHARERFEFEREENVR

delivery and on credit. The credit periods range from 30 days
to 365 days after end of the month in which the relevant

purchase occurred.

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group received
down payment from an independent third party amounted to
RMB8,539,000 for assets classified as held for sale. During the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Group changed intention and
entered into agreement with the independent third party to sell
45% shares of Xiamen DuKe Information Science & Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Xiamen DuKe"”) and the down payment of RMB8,539,000
was considered as part of consideration for sales of 45% shares of

Xiamen DuKe.

R ARC BR 73 TUAY 7R o 15 B HA E 1F W AR
REERERES M FI30BE3658F

=
== °

GER

BE_E_—F+_B=+—HLEEFE XK
EEMRFEHEEERIIBIE=ME
FTRIBARK8,539,000  BE_ZE_—
+TZA=+—HLEEE REBNETMR &
BUE=FslUhaUALEEMARTEER
EARLB (IEPIEE) W45% K5 > kA
K 58,539,000t E N IBH R A HEEP
EBEAS% BB D RE -

+AERBERAT T __FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

22 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES, 22 BSEMARIE HfthETR
ACCRUED EXPENSES AND CONTRACT BE-EBitHAZREHNEE (B)
LIABILITIES (Continued)

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on the invoice B ENRIBIREEZEBANRE DT

date is as follows: W

2022 2021

- T —F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETIT

1-30 days 1230H 14,940 1,006

31-90 days 31F90H 2,958 5,896

Over 90 days 90H ULk 8,610 5,888

26,508 12,790

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are all AEBEZEMTBEBNEREESIIUA
denominated in RMB. RigstE-

23 BORROWINGS 23 &

2022 2021
== T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARETT

Current BDHA
— Secured bank borrowings (Note (i) — B EBIRITER (REEG) - 5,900
— Unsecured bank borrowings (Note (ii)) —EIRFIRITERR (I 5E)) - 450
_________ - sty

Non-current JEBNHA
— Unsecured borrowing from a joint venture  —&RBE—B&EBELEK

(Note (iii)) BARWER (G 8 8792 -
Total borrowing B AE 2R 8,792 6,350
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note (i):

The maturity of the bank borrowings based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements and excluding the repayment

on demand clause is as follows:

B HRRMEE

E TA (ﬁﬁ)
B EE()

RIR G R 17 5% P & TR E B RX B HR - 0 PR R
SREERR EHRITEROZAABLT ¢

2022 2021

=St - 3 e

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBT T

Within 1 year —FR - 5,900

As at 31 December 2022, all bank borrowings were repaid.

As at 31 December 2021, the bank borrowings were classified as
current liabilities due to the related loan agreements containing a
repayment on demand clause which gives the bank unconditional

right to call the loans at any time.

The Group's bank borrowings are secured by the ownership rights
of the properties and the personal guarantee of Zheng Bai Ling and
Zhang Hui, a key management and the spouse of a key management
of a subsidiary of the Group. The guarantee provided by Mr. Zheng

Bai Ling and Zhang Hui was released as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings carried fixed
rates and are denominated in RMB. The fixed rate is 3.98%. As
at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank borrowings carried fixed
and variable rates and are denominated in RMB. The fixed rate is
3.98%. The variable rates subject to either (1) quarterly adjusted
floating interest rate of 1.15 times the benchmark loan interest rate
as prescribed by the People’s Bank of China for loans of a similar
length (2) 2-months adjusted floating interest rate of the benchmark
loan interest as prescribed by the People’s Bank of China for loans of
a similar length. The effective interest rate for the year range from
3.85% to 7.40% per annum.

R _—F#+_HB=+—H FrEHRTE
FEBEE

W_E_—F+_A=+—H BRZER
TREFNEMERGEZHAEERERRK
o R FIRITEF BRI BERBWER &
ERB/ERDER AR

FEBBRITERUZDENRBERUAREE
H-ENBAENTIEEEASMBENE
ZEE A BN ERIER MRV E A RIER
Ho-BRHEBEEERREBREHNERER -F
——F+ZA=+—H#®k-

A B —F+-RB=+—H ' A~EEIRT
ERREEMNEFE UARBHE BT
M EZ%H3.98E E\_—\,_—E—?— HIS
B AERRITERREEFNERFHF] X
RO UARESE - BEFMNER3.98EF
BAERZNFEARBITHREUEHETR
ENEEERMZEZEM G SFHE; Q)
DPl)\EfEﬁﬁ'fiﬁﬁwi,ﬁﬁ/\miﬁiﬁ’ﬂ%%%
M SMERRE FRNEREFEN
3.85FEF7.40E °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

23

24

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note (i): (Continued)

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group failed to repay a
bank borrowing of RMB5,900,000 in full in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates of the underlying bank borrowings
agreement. Consequently, a principal of RMB3,900,000 and interest
of RMB6,000 became overdue. The Overdue Bank Borrowings
are secured by the Group’s property, plant and equipment with a
carrying value of RMB6,928,000 as at 31 December 2021,

Note (ii):

As at 31 December 2021, the balance is unsecured, carries an
interest rate at 9.22% per annum with a term of 1 year, and is

repayable on demand. The balance is denominated in RMB.
Note (iii):

The Group borrowed a loan from Baiming (Beijing) Information
Technology Co., Ltd. The loan is unsecured and interest-free and

repayable on 31 December 2025.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
On 24 January 2019, the Company entered into the

convertible bond subscription agreement with TopBig
International Development Limited (the “Subscriber”), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Zhi, an Executive
Director and a shareholder of the Company, pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to issue, and the
Subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe for, 3% per
annum convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$250,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB215,750,000).

The initial conversion price of the Convertible Bonds is
HK$0.24 per conversion share. The Convertible Bonds
matures at the day falling on the third anniversary of the
date of issue of the Convertible Bonds and the conversion
period covers the period commencing on the date of issue of

the Convertible Bonds and ending on the maturity date.
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24

e (&)

GIEOMIE )

RIEZ—EF+ZHA=+—H#%B HxEBX
ERBEMBRITERNBENBATERE S
BHERBITEMRARES5,900,0007T°
It > A% AR #3,900,000 R E AR
6,000 B - A IRITE MU A EBER
T2 —F+ZB=+—HEEEAARE
6,928,000 CHIY) 2 ~ B B Ko 5% 1 /R 3R #9R o

B 5E (i) -

NW_Z_—F+-A=+—H &HaEE
W RERERI2NEFE AP —FRARE
REZ -HEHEUAREBE.

(D

FEEMBE QIR EERMARABEA
ER-ZERAEBER REKRERTZE "4
E+ZA=+—HEE-

Al iR (R 55

R _E—HNE—H_+MNOH > A AT HE
HAAFNITEERRRBELESLE
BENATHERERARAR (TRE
A FTIL AR E SR B B &
ARBBRHBRETMRABABTRGER
BB AR A250,000,00058 7T (18
BN ARK215,750,0007T) RIIZEF=H
3EFEM AR ES (Mo ES) ©

AMRESFNVTHRRERSRIAREK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

24 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 24 OligfES (18)
On 23 April 2019, the Convertible Bonds were issued. The MR ESR _Z—hLEMNBE=Z+=H
initial value of the liability component was calculated using a BT -BEMONIREBRBEARF
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond ERFATBBRESHNTBZFXEFAEE
of the Company. o
The convertible bonds are presented as follows: AMERESZ5WT !
2022 2021
S - —E 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®ETFT
At 1 January w—A—H 181,356 168,148
Interest accrued (Note (a)) EstF B (fTsE(a)) 5,954 19,096
Conversion during the year (Note (b)) FEREHR (FIsE(b)) (187,310) (5,888)
At 31 December K+ZRA=+—H - 181,356
Notes: BIsE -
(@) Interest expense is calculated by applying the effective interest (@ FEMEIZDHEEHEGEHOEAI1.5
rate of 11.5% per annum to the liability component. ENERFENEAESH-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

24 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

On 22 April 2022, the conversion option of convertible
bonds remained unexercised and it was lapsed. The Group
and the Subscriber entered into a loan agreement where the
outstanding convertible bonds were replaced by a 2-year loan
from Top Big International Development Limited with face
value of RMB187,310,000 at an interest rate of 3% p.a. (the
“shareholder loan”). The shareholder loan was recognised
and initially measured at fair value of RMB144,484,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$174,363,000). A gain
of RMB42,827,000 have been recognised in the Group's
profit or loss. The Group’s shareholder loan were valued by
Valplus Consulting Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer who holds a recognised relevant professional
qualification. Management assessed the fair value of
shareholder loan using discounted cash flow method and
the discount rate is reference to comparable bonds in the
market with scimitar credit rating. The shareholder loan were
classified as Level 2 under the fair value hierarchy. There were

no transfer between any levels during the year.

On 30 July 2022, the shareholder loan subsequently
derecognised upon entering into the Loan Capitalisation

Agreement. For details, please refer to note 18(a).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, convertible
bonds with carrying amount of RMB5,888,000 were
converted by the Subscriber based on its principal amount of
RMB7,108,000 (Note 18).

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

24 wlakkES (8)

MisE (&)

(b)

RIZZ_FMNB-+H Al #KRE
HEHNEBRBEZEENATEEBERN &
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AR FEREREGRABNREHER
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RIB-__HFtHA=+H BREEHH
BERJULEBERENCHEERIERE
ot BB LM EE18(a) 0
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AR ES (I5E18) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRMEE

25 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE 25 ARERKRIETRARNER
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =R
2022 2021
—ETC —ET—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBT T
Convertible bonds AR ES 25,690 -

On 14 October 2022, the Group acquired 35% equity
interest in Zhuoshi Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd, 100%
equity interest in Zhongxing Hongye (Beijing) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd and 3% equity interest in Baiming
(Beijing) Information Technology Co., Ltd. Pursuant to the
acquisition agreement on 31 July 2022, the acquisition
consideration shall be satisfied by the issue of the
convertible bonds.

On 14 October 2022 and 15 November 2022, the first
tranche and second tranche convertible bonds with
carrying amount of RMB27,063,000 and RMB27,490,000,
respectively, were converted based on the principal amount
of HK$30,803,000 and HK$30,803,000. The third tranche
convertible bonds was converted on 27 February 2023. The
Group's convertible bonds were valued by Valplus Consulting
Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer
who holds a recognised relevant professional qualification.
Management assessed the fair value of financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss with reference to market
price of ordinary shares of the Group. The convertible bonds
were classified as level 2 under the fair value hierarchy. There
were no transfer between any levels during the year.

The Group’s management reviewed the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes.
The management reported directly to the directors.
Discussions of valuation processes and results were held
between management and the valuer. The management
and the directors verified major inputs to the independent
valuation reports and held discussion with the independent
valuer on the valuation basis, processes and results.

RIEBEZ_F+HB+WMH  "EFKE
BARE (55 BRATMN35%M#
hEsAE (ER) CEEBAERATN
100% K ERER (bR EEEMBR
REIMB3%NRE-REFE-_S-__F+ A
=+t BNk ERS WERKERER
BT ES (T o

RIEZZHF+AB+HNEAKRZEZ
F+—A+HH EREESNIABARE
27,063,000t & AR #27,490,0007tH9
FHREZHABRBRESFDIUERE
¥630,803,0007 7T 530,803,000/ 7%
ERETER SR MBRESN T
“—:E_ﬁ_+t5%@ohﬁﬁ%
RO FEXERNBIIEXSERLERM
BAEBBRATBEH AEBB AT IRK
BEHETHE - SEBESEAERY
BROTEHAABKERZRARNS
MBENAREETHG I RKES
DEAANAERBERNE R -FR
1E10) B 4 RS i A 45 o

MMBREENMS  2EEEEED
ERBIUGEMETHNHE - EEEE
BEmEFERE -EEERAGEMEGEE
BFRERETH®R BEEEBRESFE
BRI GEMRENTIEZERHAZIEIL A

Bl tEMwmEEREE - EFRRER-
+AERBERAT T __FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

26 LEASE

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

26 HHE

() REHEERBEXRERNEE

GHEEERREINUTARBA
ENEHR:

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
R-B__F R-IZT-—F
+t-A=+—H +t-A=+—H

RMB’‘000 RMB'000
AR®F T AREFIT

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Buildings BF 316 624
Lands T 2,422 2,617
2,738 3,241

Lease liabilities HEA®R

Current BN A 2,126 2,036
Non-current JERNER 4,315 4,694
6,441 6,730

Additions to the right-of-use asset for the year
ended 31 December 2022 were RMB466,000 (2021:
RMB510,000).

The director carried out an impairment assessment
on the recoverable amount of right-of-use assets of
Yongtai Township development project with carrying
amount of RMB188,000 (2021: RMB2,142,000). The
Group did not recognise impairment charge. Details
of impairment assessment for right-of-use assets of
Yongtai Township development project are disclosed
in note 7. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
RMB1,550,000 impairment charge for the right-of-
use assets are recognized. Details of impairment of
RMB1,550,000 recognised for right-of-use assets for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are disclosed in
note 9(b). These impairment charges were recorded in
the Group's consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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FREEEEINARN466,0007t (ZF
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26 LEASE (Continued)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Amounts recognised in the consolidated (ii)
statements of comprehensive income

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income

show the following amounts relating to leases:

B HRRMEE

26 E (&

RefnzERERAEENE
i
afeERmREINUTARA
ENEER

2022 2021
R =
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use  FHEEEERNEMX :

assets:

Buildings BF
Land T
Interest expense (included MERZ GtARBRA)

in finance costs)

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 were nil
and RMB 1,680,000, respectively.

521 686
196 244
717 930
314 315

REEZZE-__F+ZB=+—
BErR-_Z2E_—F%+ZHA=+—H
EFEE HENRES RS
AZ /R AE11,680,0007T °

+AERBERAT T __FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

27 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN 27 Hthg A R H thikz
2022 2021
—E--f C—T-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Other income: HgA -
Government grants (Note a) BT #EE) (FPsEa) 109 629
Sundry income HIEUA - 321
109 950
Other gain: Hhygas
Fair value gain on biological asset EMEEN A RERE 185 119
Fair value gain of investment properties KREMEN R ABEW T 2,523 =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ER Bl 5,358 =
Gain on liquidation of subsidiaries N b D& 2,609 =
Gain on partial disposal of subsidiaries B HEN B AR NI E 1,673 =
Fair value gain of financial liabilities NRABEKERRARNERE
at fair value through profit or loss BENARERT 1,989 -
Others Hiih 67 =
14,404 119
Note B 5E
(@) The Group obtained government grants and recognised as () BEZZE”ZF+ZB=+—8B1LHF
income of RMB109,000 (2021: RMB629,000) from the Fujian B A& B 1R 22 AT 1 A U BB S
government authority for the year ended 31 December 2022. A AR®109,000T (ZEZ—5F: A
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28 EXPENSES BY NATURE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

Loss before income tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the

28 HMHIDHRX
TS RAIGIBRNG G A) UTFE

following: ERE-YN
2022 2021
—E-C R
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTF T ARETT
Cost of newspaper and public vehicles W BEFEES A
advertising
- Media costs —IREE R A 5,250 9,265
Cost of printing services: ENRI AR TS AL A -
— Raw materials — B 1,208 1,875
— Other costs —Hp A 822 668
Cost of sales of agricultural products HEREmKAE 52,719 154,698
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #)% = &R HITE
(Note 7) (Be5E7) 3,367 3,880
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 26) fFABEEINE (FI:E26) 717 930
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) mEEEEE (MEF9) 1,078 3,567
Auditor's remuneration Z BN & 4,258 3,474
Marketing expenses =l 8,361 24,080
Operating lease charges in respect of land BERLtHNKCEHEWE 422 1,270
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant andtH E )2~ B E KRR E
equipment (Note 35(b)) (Wea) E51E$ &R
(B 5E35(b)) (2,830) 123
Gain on disposals of properties held for sale  HERFIEHEWEN KT - (49)
Net change in provision for impairment of HBIERBAEREESFEE
financial guarantee (14) (245)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at AR ELEBTRARNSRE
fair value through profit or loss (Note 15) BEENAAERRE (KER)
P8R (M45E15) 3,056 (868)
Net change in provision for impairment of trade & 7 FEURGRIE K & 49 & E R (E
receivables and contract assets BHEEFER 1,609 (1,796)
Impairment loss of properties held for sale FEHEYENHERIE
(Note 14) (Mf5E14) 5,323 -
Loss on conversion of shareholder loan to BRERE LA B TR
contingent convertible loan ERNEE 72,719 -
Gain on conversion of convertible bond to AMRESERAREERN
shareholder loan & (42,827) =
Fair value change of contingent convertible loana{ & BJ 1 )8 B A R E &S 25,350 =
Provision for impairment on property, plant and ¥)2 « = K 2 & B E B 5
equipment (Note 7) (fF5E7) - 8,818
Provision for impairment on right-of-use assets fff FAREE ERE#EE (M5E26)
(Note 26) - 1,550
Provision for impairment on goodwill and other 2 &% E thiE 25 E R E & E
intangible assets (Note 9) (FF5E9) 7,148 161,318
Legal and professional fee FEMREEER 1,289 1,969
Written-off of trade receivables (Note 16) idE B 5 e IE (fYsE16) 425 (35)
Net foreign exchange (gain)/losses SMEE (Wagm) B51B 348 (5.231) 1,745
Employee benefit expenses (including directors’ lE S @F IR (BIFEEEMS)
emoluments) (Note 29) (FF5E29) 19,410 27,125
Business tax EEWR 103 252
+AERERAT T _F5HK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS)

29 EERMAX (BEEFIME)

2022 2021
- —ET—fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBFT AREFT
Salaries and other allowances e R EMARL 17,868 24,897
Defined contribution plan REMRETE 1,542 2,228
19,410 27,125
(a) Five highest paid individuals (o) EBEEHAL

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group included 2 directors (2021: 2 directors), whose
emoluments were reflected in the analysis presented
above and note 42. The emoluments paid/payable to
the remaining 3 (2021: 3 individuals) individuals during

the year ended 31 December 2022 were as follows:

BE_F__F+t-R=+—H
tFEE - AEBELAREHALTE
EMEEFE(CEZ—F MBE
F)  RENWEE L RHFEL2
FI2HIN DR RR-REBEEZSE
“HF+ZRA=+—HLFE B
it/ BNGRT=8(CFE_—F:
=%) ALHIBEWT -

2022 2021

S - 2 BT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBEFTT

Salaries and other allowances & Ko HLth w8 R 1,297 1,608
Defined contribution plan REMRETE 22 37
1,319 1,645
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

(a) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the emoluments of the highest paid individuals of the

Group fall within the following bands:

B HRRMEE

29 EERAHAX (BFEEFM=)

(48)

) ELBSHAL @)
BHE_ZE-__FRZIZEZ—F
+_BA=+—HIEFEE - xEER
S ATHMENFE TIIEE :

Number of individuals

ANEK
2022 2021
s == —F
Nil to HK$500,000 EZE500,000%E 7T 2 =
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 75 21,000,000 75 1 3
3 3

30 RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension scheme
to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of
these subsidiaries. The only obligation of these subsidiaries
with respect to the central pension scheme is to meet the

required contributions under the scheme.

The total contributions incurred in this connection for
the year ended 31 December 2022 were approximately
RMB1,452,000 (2021: RMB2,228,000). No forfeited
contributions are available to reduce the contribution

payable by the Group in the future years.

30 EREFGTE

AEBETEAINNERABDNEES
3t 75 T3 BURE i & A9 o RAR AR 2 51 81 Y
ME -BRNBABSAREBEELRHE
RIBNETAD AP RERAES S
R DU R IREF o #h 75 i BT K
HEAEERNBRARNAARA RARK
BHEENRAEMEE -ARNBR
BIFL R REBNE S E B E—BEDRE
stEIfFHFr AR EBIHRR

BE_F_—_F+-A=+—HL
FE MEEENHIRBEABAR
#1,452,0000 (ZE-Z—F : AR
2,228,0007t) o BE B U AT B 1ER
DR FEEREBMEERR

+AERBERAT T __FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

31 FINANCE COSTS — NET

31 MBS —FEE

2022 2021
S - —E T4
Finance income: BFFSULA :
Interest income on short-term bank deposits ZHRIRTT R B9 F] B U A 16 53
Finance costs: IR AA -
Interest expense on bank borrowings IRITERNFEAE (309) (520)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaENHERE (314) (315)
Interest expense on loan from a shareholder ZKBE—ZREMNEHH
B (10,057) (28)
Interest expense on convertible bond AMRESNFERE (5,953) (19,096)
Interest expense on loan from a joint venture HKE—B&ECENERN
MERZ (92) =
Discounting impact on loan from a joint venture ¥R BE—EEEENER
B9 B 3R 52 & 3,600 =
Total finance costs B 75 AN A 4R 28 (13,125) (19,959)
Finance costs — net A — 25 (13,109) (19,906)
32 INCOME TAX CREDIT 32 FRiSRIER
2022 2021
- BT £
Current income tax expense BPEAPRIS RIS
Mainland China enterprise income tax KB PRSI
- Current tax expense —BIHARIEM X (184) (277)
(184) (277)
Deferred income tax credit RIEPTETR IR 888 44,629
704 44,352

The Group has no assessable income arising in or derived

from Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December 2022

and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32 INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s loss before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the

consolidated entities in the respective jurisdictions as

follows:

B HRRMEE

32 FRiFIRIER (&)

LI

AEBBRAERAGENRIARERAE
AREEEEZEENEHER R RN
TR EMTEERER 2 BNEE

2022 2021
—g__ T —F
Loss before income tax BRPTS TR A RS 18 (168,619) (233,216)
Add: pijI
— share of losses on investments — (R A AR
accounted for using equity method KEEE 75,034 =
(93,585) (233,216)
Tax calculated at domestic rates applicable RERRZESEIHEEER
to profits of the entities in the respective AR 5 IR R E B
jurisdictions (Note) I8 (M 5E) (21,727) (55,546)
Tax effects of: UTEENMELE !
Income not subject to tax HEMR WA - (977)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AAlIMR A 2,815 6,223
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax ~ TWEBELEFFEREEN
asset was recognised MIEE 1A 18,397 5,955
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses & 2 B A e sB A # IE &5 18 (189) (7)
Income tax credit FriSfRiE % (704) (44,352)

Note:

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 23.2% (2021:
23.8%). The decrease is mainly caused by more operation for

subsidiaries in Hong Kong which were entitled to lower applicable

tax rate.

P 5t

MEFHBEBRAMNER23.2% (ZBZ—F:
23.8%) - METHIZANER=ZAREE
BRENEBMB AR EFEMPAR

+AERBERAT T __FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

33 LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Basic

Basic loss per share for the years is calculated by

dividing the loss attributable to owners of the

33 BKEE
(a) B

FREBREXBRDBIZEATFR
EERLBEREBRUFRBEETR

Company by the weighted average number of shares in MINEFEEEE -
issue during the year.
2022 2021
—EZZ BT —fF

Loss attributable to owners of the KABIFMBEEEGEE

Company (RMB'000) (ANR#F ) (169,809) (187,468)
Weight average number of shares in EEITRMINE T

issue (thousands) (F52) 1,018,193 923,922
Basic loss per share (RMB per share) BRELAEBE (EBRARD (0.1668) (0.2029)

(b) Diluted

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has no

potential dilutive shares during the year ended 31

December 2022 (2021: same).

34 DIVIDEND

No dividend has been declared by the Company since its

incorporation.
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35 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

FLOWS

(a)

35 HEMRERME

Cash used in operations (o) REXBARE
2022 2021
—E-C &
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
i ARETR ARETT
Loss before income tax BREFISIS AT 18 (168,619) (233,216)
Adjustments for: TS IBEEHAE .
Depreciation for property, plant and ME-BERREINE
equipment 7 3,367 3,880
Depreciation for right-of-use assets ERESEITE 26 717 930
Amortisation for intangible assets BB EEH 9 1,078 3,567
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, $’§¢@¥ i e 5% Y
plant and equipment ) /RSP 28 (2,830) 123
Net gain on disposal of properties held ﬁﬁ?—:@ﬁ&%%m
for sale WmBER 28 = (49)
Net change in provision for B 5 EWGRIE R E R EE
impairment of trade receivables EpERE 16 1,714 (1,800)
Net change in provision for GHNEEREREEET
impairment of contract assets %8 5 (105) 4
Provision for impairment of goodwill ~ BEXREFEERE
and intangible assets BHE 9 7,148 161,318
Provision for impairment of property,  #1% - B K 5% 5 5 (B &
plant and equipment & 7 - 8,818
Provision for impairment of properties  E{EHEYEBERE
held for sale 14 5,323 -
Provision for impairment of right-of-  EREEEREEE
use assets 26 - 1,550
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB A BN E (5,358) =
Gain on liquidation of subsidiaries MEABAEN S (2,609) -
Foreign exchange (gain)/losses on RESEBMINE (IR
operating activities 518 28 (5,231) 1,745
Finance income BHIA 31 (16) (53)
Finance costs B % A A 31 13,125 19,959
Fair value gain on biological assets EMBENAREBENRE 27 (185) (119)
+rERERAR —S-—ssx 243



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRME

35 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

Cash used in operations (Continued)

35 WERMERME (&)

(o) BEXBFAARE (B)

2022 2021
ZEIZHE —EI-F
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
B sE ARET T ANEEBF T
Fair value change of contingent HETBRBRERD
convertible loan NAEES 25,350 -
Gain on conversion of convertible BB ESERAKE
bond to shareholder loan Bl = (42,827) =
Loss on conversion of shareholder loan &5 S AT E AR
to contingent convertible loan REMBEE 72,719 -
Written off of/(Recovery of previously —  ##i88,/ (U [al e BT H#EH)
written off) of trade receivables B 5 R RIE 28 425 (35)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on financial ~ ARELBHRARNS
assets at fair value through profit or REENANE
loss B8/ (W) B8 15 3,056 (868)
Gain on partially disposal of HoHE—BNE
a subsidiary A TR (1,673) -
Fair value loss on financial liabilities ARERKEBEERARN
at fair value through profit or loss THEBNANERIE (1,989) =
Fair value gain of investment property B EYENA RERE 8 (2,523) -
Share of losses of investments DMERBREEARNE
accounted for using the equity =g
method 10 75,034 -
Changes in working capital: EEBTED
— Trade receivables —B 5 RrIE (12,710) 1,803
— Contract assets —5NEE 2,264 1,097
— Inventories -=5 665 188
— Prepayments, deposits and other —-BARE ek
receivables HhpEu s (3,250) 2,978
- Amounts due from related parties —FEURREAE A LT FIB - 1,273
— Trade payables —B5ENMIEA 15,572 1,009
~ Other payables and accrued —HitnE A RIER
expenses FEHRASZ 5,033 15,302
- Amounts due to related parties —EAEEALRIE 4,396 6,165
- Amount due to a joint venture —EAN—HEBrERE 1,410 =
~ Restricted Cash —RIRFIREE 357 =
- Financial guarantee contracts —HBEREN (14) (245)
Cash used in operations REXBEMABRSE (11,186) (4,676)
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35 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FLOWS (Continued)

(b)

(d)

B HRRMEE

35 MEMERME (4&)

Disposal of property, plant and equipment (b) HEME -BERRE
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds EHfIRERERTHEYE BE
from disposal of property, plant and equipment BN RIEETE !
comprise:
2022 2021
—E-C RS es
RMB’000 RMB’000
ATt AEBETT
Net carrying amount(Note 7) BRI FEE (MIEE7) 5,170 123
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEYWE BB REZHDN
plant and equipment (Note 28) W (§548) J$58 (M9sk28) 2,830 (123)
Cash consideration from disposal of HEME BEKREN
property, plant and equipment RERE 8,000 =
Non-cash transactions (c) FIERERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no

major non-cash transactions occurred.

Net debt reconciliation

(d)

The following section sets out an analysis of net debt

and the movements in net debt for each of the years

HE_ S __#KrR_T_-—
+_B=+—HIEFE wmEEE
FTEFRERH o

BHFEBEKR
UTE#HINEHFBROTREET]
FEEHFERNES-

presented.
2022 2021
- —_E_—fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF T AR®EFIT
Net debt 1B7%5 358
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 17) RERREEBIER
(FF5E17) 46,025 8,851
Bank borrowings RITRER - (6,350)
Convertible bonds AR ES - (181,356)
Lease liabilities HEa’ (6,441) (6,730)
Loan from a shareholder KE—ZRENER (4.419) (1,500)
Net debt B 25 35,165 (187,085)
+AERBERAT T __FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

35 NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH 35 WERERME (B
FLOWS (Continued)
Net debt reconciliation (Continued) (d) EFEFIEHER (B)

Cash Loan

and cash Bank froma Convertible Lease

equivalents  borrowing shareholder bond liabilities Total

Rk

Re%R RE—%

BB RiTER RRNER THkGr  BEAH Eh)
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AE®TR ARBTT ARETR AR%TR ARET:R

Net debt as at 1 January 2021
Cash flows

Non-cash movements:

Foreign exchange adjustments
Other non-cash movements

Net debt as at 31 December 2021

Net debt as at 1 January 2022
Cash flows

Non-cash movements:

Other non-cash movements

Net debt as at 31 December 2022

RZBZ-£-RF—-BNEEFE 12,889 (17,860) - (168,148) (7,615 (180,734)
Bene (4,091) 11,510 (1,500) = 1,680 7,599
FREEY .
SERZ 53 = = = 30 83
Hit RS2 - - - (13,208) (825) (14,033)
RZBZ-£+ZRA=+-BH

BHFE 8,851 (6,350) (1,500 (181,356) (6,730)  (187,085)
R-E-_#-B-BMEEIE 8,851 (6,350) (1,500)  (181,356) (6,730)  (187,085)
Bene 37,174 6,350 (2,919) = 910 41,515
FReEY .
HtER&EH - - - 181,356 (621) 180,735

RIBZZE+ZAZ+-AK
BB RE 46,025 = (4,419) = (6,441) 35,165
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

36 COMMITMENTS 36 &I
(a) Operating lease commitments — as a lessor (o) BREHERE—(FALEAA
The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under FAHHEKEREETNEHER
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: BEEEWRABZENT :
2022 2021
—ECHF —E = —E
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ANREBTF T
Not later than 1 year —FELLF 652 1,253
Later than 1 year and not later —FEMERAFUT
than 5 years 2,116 5,536
2,768 6,789
(b) Capital commitments (b) BEAHKIE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the RBREARBITNERERAE
end of the reporting period but not recognised as BENEREARMAIZOT
liabilities is as follows:
2022 2021
—_E_F TEC—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETT

Property, plant and equipment ME -BEREZE 2,640 4,266

+rERERAR —z-—sgxw 247
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37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements,
parties are considered to be related to the Group if the party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating
decisions, or vice versa. Related parties may be individuals
(being members of key management personnel, significant
shareholders and/or their close family members) or other
entities and include entities which are under the significant
influence of related parties of the Group where those parties
are individuals. Parties are also considered to be related if

they are subject to common control.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the related
party transactions were carried out in the normal course
of business and at terms mutually negotiated between the

Group and the respective related parties.

(a) The directors of the Company are of the view that the
following companies/individuals were related parties
that had transactions or balances with the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2022:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

37 MEALXRS

MREFEHYBREMS HEALA
EENEAEBFLY B REERRFE
ROBEEAEREFRNEATE (R
TR AT RABBRERFR
Bo-BHEATANURBEA BMEZEEA
E-TERER HRENAR) SHEAM
B -HAEENBEEALREA A
HEALTEERIBEALEARE
WER -HARERIIHBES IR
WBBBEEAL

FRBEFRR RFHMEBEALRZSZS
RABXEGBETRRBAEFLKRHE
AT HEEEERRET

(a) XABEERAR  UT2AE
ANARBEE_ZE__4+=°A4
—t+—BLHEFEERNEXREEETNT

RARGFEEHNREEAL !

Name Relationship with the Group
X S EE BRI RA &
Mr. Chen Zhi Executive director of the Company/Chief Executive

Officer ("CEQ") of the Group

RS E RABHIT

Ms. Zheng Shou Ling

=/ REBTEAE (MTTEES))

Spouse of the Executive director of the Company/Chief

Executive Office of the Group

BrE L L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

The directors of the Company are of the view that the
following companies/individuals were related parties
that had transactions or balances with the Group

during the year ended 31 December 2022: (Continued)

B HRRMEE

37 MEALRS (@)

(o) XABEFRA UTAAE
ANAERBEE_ZE-__F+=A4
=+—BLEFEEREXRERET
RZ2BRFEEGNEEAL | (@

Name

BB Hh

Relationship with the Group
S E BRI A

Fujian ShiFang Digital Technology Co., Ltd
BETHEBRNERAS

Fujian Lanting Network Technology Holding
Limited Company
EEREABRERABERAT
TopBig International Development Limited
ATERERBRRET
Mr. Yu Shi Quan
REvETE
Mr. Chen Wei Dong
(Resigned on 9 January 2023)

BRERKLE (R Z=F—FAB&MD

Ms. Chen Min
PRz

Liaoning Baixin Media Company Limited

BEEREEEAERAT

Controlled by the Executive director of the Group

HAEENITESZES

A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group

FEB—FENBATNEFERE

A company controlled by the Executive Director of the
Company

HAABNTEREFN—FERE

Executive director of the Company/Chief Financial
Officer of the Group

AABDYPITES AEBERUHBE

Non-executive director of the Company

KTABFWITES

Non-executive director of the Company

KTABFWITES

A significant shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group

FEBR-RBNBATDNTIERR

+AERBERAT T __FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

37 AEALTRSZ (B)

The directors of the Company are of the view that the (o) XRABEERA LX—F’\E/@
following companies/individuals were related parties ANBRBEE_ZE-__F+°H
that had transactions or balances with the Group E—I——EIJJZEEFEWEEZIK%@Lﬁ
during the year ended 31 December 2022: (Continued) REBEBEFHIREE =)
Name Relationship with the Group

L8 4 B E IR A

Ms. Chan Ching Yi Key management of the Group

FREF BT XERTEEEAER

Ms. Chen Xiao Min
EUN:g g

Mr. Zheng Bo Ling
ERiREe T

Mr. Cai Jian Quan

(Resigned on 9 January 2023)
BEMESYE (N2 =F—BNHET)
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren

(Resigned on 9 January 2023)

BELCEE (RIS =F—ANH&D

Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry

Key management of the Group

FEBTEEEAE

Key management of the Group

FEBTEEEAE

Independent non-executive director of the Company

RABBUIFAITES

Independent non-executive director of the Company

RABBIUIFRITES

Independent non-executive director of the Company

=MAALY KABVEIUIFRNITES

Mr. Chen Ye Son of Mr Chen Zhi, Executive director of the Company/
Chief Executive Officer of the Group

IR PEE 5t AE RATPITES HAEBTHERRELEZT

The above names of certain related parties/companies EHEFREAEALT RANEX

represented the best effort by management of the HBHARABEEBEMUNEFXS

Company in translating their Chinese names as they do WMELDVEMER REZEEREA

not have official English names.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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NOTES TO THE CC

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Transactions with related parties:

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the R TSk 7

financial statements, the following transactions were AEERE

undertaken by the Group with related parties during

St+—BUEEEERBEALTENT

the year ended 31 December 2022:

TEEEASHM
M — i REE A L RYEE K

Key management compensation

Lease payment to a related party

THERERAR

2021
B —F

RMB’000
ARETT

3,347
465

3,812

“ECFER




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c) Balances with related parties (c)

37 MEALRSH ()

BB A L FEREER

2022 2021
=~ - s
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ANREEF T
Amounts due to directors: FETEERIA :
Mr. Chen Zhi RS SeE 13,724 11,829
Mr. Yu Shi Quan RETETE 2,989 2,336
Ms. Chen Min PRELZ £+ 390 270
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry =mRSTAE 390 270
Mr. Cai Jian Quan (Resigned on 9 January ZE#LE (W T - =
2023) —RBhB#®E 390 270
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren (Resigned on 9 BECKE (RZEZ=
January 2023) —BAHED 390 270
Mr. Chen Wei Dong BRERLE (RZEZ=
(Resigned on 9 January 2023) —B A HEHTD) 390 270
18,663 15,515
Amounts due to related parties: FE{TRAEANLRIE :
Liaoning Baixin Media Company Limited HEEG{EEIERRAT 127 127
Ms. Zheng Shou Ling EFEe L+ 916 687
Fujian Lanting Network Technology 8 2R E R B R I 10
Holding Limited Company BRAR 530 530
Mr. Chen Ye PR B S 1,354 1,390
Fujian ShiFang Digital Technology BETABBRMBRAE
Co., Ltd 7 7
Fujian Zhongke Xinshikong share BEARMETERERE
investment management Co., Ltd BEEARAE 352 -
Fujian Fanxing Electronics Technology BREEEFREBRAT
Co., Ltd 4 _
Key management of the Group FEEFEEEAS 1,914 1,215
23,867 19,471
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

38

(Continued)

(c) Balances with related parties (Continued)
The balances due to directors and related parties are
unsecured, interest-free, with no fixed repayment term

and repayable upon mutual agreement between the

B HRRMEE

37 MEALRS (@)

(c) BEREALEFBNGER (B)
BNEERBEEALHNERSE
R 2 B R I B E B 0
ARAEBEEERFAEALTHN

Group and the directors and related parties. HEmRERC
2022 2021
—E-C =
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBEBTT
Loan from a shareholder RE—BRRERNER
TopBig International Development Limited FFEE#ZERERHRAE 4,419 1,500

The loan from a shareholder is unsecured, carries interest
rate at 5% per annum, and are repayable in two years from

the drawdown date.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of certain of
the properties held in its subsidiary at consideration of
RMB28,000,000 and the relevant properties had been
classified as assets classified as held for sale as at 31
December 2021.During 2022, the management change the
intention and entered into sale and purchase agreement
to sell 45% shares of Xiamen Duke Information Service &
Technology Co., Ltd. with the independent third party. In
addition, the Group entered into a lease agreement with the
independent third party. Hence it was reclassified from assets

classified as held for sale to investment properties.

38

RE—LRRNERDEIRR RER
KSESHERANRRNBHPESmER

BE-

DHEAREHESEE
AERABUIRE =SB B HEUR
REBARK28,000,000c HEENBA
ARANETYE MAERNEERZ
E-—F+ZHA=+—HBNEARE
HEEE R _ S _Fr-8BENE
BERURABIE =AY BB HEUH
EBEMEREERRARABINAS %K
Bolbih REBMEBERBIE=H5]1L
HEHZF FIb BNEAREHESR
EENDBERLEYE-

+AERBERAT T __FER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

38 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 38 DEAKELHEEE (B)
(Continued)
The associated assets were presented as investment HMEBEENR - -F+ZA=+—H
properties as at 31 December 2022 and assets classified as ENAREMERN ZZE—F+A
held for sale as at 31 December 2021: = +—HEJNRDBAREFLENE
E
2022 2021
k- S - 2 —ET—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ABEBFT
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFFLESRE = 26,681
Investment properties (Note 8) wEM=E (MYsE8) 29,204 -
39 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39 HEEE
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no RIZIEZZHFRZIEZ—F+ZA
material contingent liabilities. —t—HBH AEETRERNEEE-
40 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 40 HAEEI1A
There is no subsequent event after 31 December 2022. R_E_ "+ _"_B=+—H% ##&
HiBEIE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BEERRMEE

41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 41 EREINEEBRERKLHEE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY EE
2022 2021
—EC-CF —EC—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5E ARBFT ARETT

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBATNKRE 20 82,231 —*
82,231 -
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments and other receivables TET IR R H MR U
=g 486 119
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI RS 101,016 92,133
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEEB 38 32
__ 1015400 - 92,284
Total assets WEE 183,771 92,284
EQUITY HE
Equity attributable to owners of the ZAFEE ABELEDR
Company
Share capital [N 261,475 8,065
Share premium AR mE 109,546 55,796
Other reserves HhE B a 188,416 188,416
Accumulated deficits RET 54l a (440,625) (375,804)
Total deficits BS54t 40 %R 118,812 (123,527)
* The balance was rounded to the nearest thousand. e ERENBERBA T

+rERERAS —=-——s4% 255



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 41 ARENEERERKIFEE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 23 (&)

(Continued)

2022 2021
—ECHE B —F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

= ARBFT AEETT

LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities JEREBIEE

Lease liabilities HEa®R 834 1,189

_______ 834 1189

Current liabilities REIBE

Other payables HAFE (IR 37,501 9,761

Amounts due to directors FESEE A 14,536 14,536

Amounts due to subsidiaries NN ERNGIE O] 10,072 7,887

Amounts due to related parties FEAT B A\ =018 1,604 687

Lease liabilities HEaR 412 395

Convertible bonds R ES = 181,356

_____ pRSlESN 214622
Total liabilities =R 64,959 215,811
Total equity and liabilities mKkBaEEEE 183,771 92,284
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the KRN EEEBBERKCESTEN T
Board of Directors on 31 March 2023 and was signed on its “=fF=ZA=+—B#tE  THTIE
behalf; ERREFTEE
Chen Zhi Yu Shi Quan
BRE REE
Director Director
BZ BZ
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NOTES TO THE CC

41 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Note a: Reserve movement of the Company

Accumulated Other

deficits reserves

Rt Hih{#E

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETF T ARBET T

At 1 January 2021 W-®2-—&#—H8—H (185,578) 189,799

Loss for the year FREE (190,226) =

Conversion of convertible bonds BT ES = (1,383)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 WR_ZE_—&+-A=+—H

E_E__F#—H—H (375,804) 188,416

Loss for the year FREE (64,821) =

At 31 December 2022 RZE-__#+-"H=+—H (440,625) 188,416

+AERERAT T _F5R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

42 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a)

42 EFNmRhiED (FE(QEIF
1) (35622F) 53831% A F]
RBEFFDER) R (ﬂ%'-
622GE) REE LHRAR
E BV K 22)

EEREEBTHASHNME
BEERRBITHRABR M E
FIT

The remuneration of every directors and the chief
executive is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2022: BE_Z__+”-“HR=+—H
IEEFE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:

AEARE (FARFARSANEAR) EEMRANEHEARRKHMNE

258

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
Remunerations in connection
paid or with the
Employer's receivable  management
Estimated contributionto inrespectof of the affairs
money a retirement accepting  of the company
Discretionary Housing value of benefit office as or its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits scheme director undertaking Total
HESARER
FRAAGEKE
HRRES ANEBAMRME
RS BAERHEN BUBHE MHEHBHER
Name #a ik ¥t KT ftRER  fAHEREE B BRmEN  DEEOHE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ABEFR  ARBTR  ABETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ABBTR  ARBTR  AREFR
Executive directors BIES
Mr. Chen Zhi RERE 180 1,620 = = = = - 1,800
Mr. Yu Shiquan REREE 180 720 36 - - 1 - - 947
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Chen Wei Dong REREERZZZZF
(Resigned on 9 January 2023) —BAB#ED) 120 - - - - - - 120
Ms. Chen Min e 120 - - - - - - 120
Independent and BUk#iTES
non-executive directors
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren BECEKE(RZBZ=F
(Resigned on 9 January 2023) —AnBED 120 - - - - - - 120
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry ERBALE 120 - - - - - - 120
Mr. Cai Jianquan ERBRE(RZZZF
(Resigned on 9 January 2023) —AABED 120 - - - - - - 120
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42 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HRRMEE

42 EEMmKkiEm (FE(AEE
B1) (5622%F) F3831% A F
REEFHMHER) KA (%
622GE) REE LHRAR
ERRE) (&)

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(Continued)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EERESITHAENME
. ==
(Continued) (&)
The remuneration of every directors and the chief ZEBEEREETHABNEFMNE
executive is set out below: (Continued) FIE - (8
For the year ended 31 December 2021: BHE_Z_—F®F+”-_B=+—H
WEFRE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:
AEARE FRRFATIHNEAR) EFFRANREENIRRNNE :
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect
of director’s
other services
in connection
Remunerations with the
paid or management
Employer's receivable of the affairs
Estimated  contribution to in respect of the
money a retirement of accepting company or
Discretionary Housing value of benefit office as its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits scheme director undertaking Total
HESEHER
KARGENE
REEHARM
HMERIE  RRAGEN ARRERRM NEAMERBEN
Name #e e e [l HEER  fREHENEE BT SNARKNEN  dRENHE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFT NEETT AREFR AEEFT NEETT AEEFR AEEFT NEEFT AEEFT
Executive directors BIES
Mr. Chen Zhi BERE 180 1,620 - - - - S o 1,800
Mr. Yu Shiquan RiVERE 180 720 36 - - 1 - - 947
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Chen Wei Dong REREL (RZ2_=F
(Resigned on 9 January 2023) —AABED 120 S = S S = 3 = 120
Ms. Chen Min b e 120 - - - - - - - 120
Independent and BUk#iTEs
non-executive directors
Mr. Zhou Chang Ren BECRE(MZBZ=F
(Resigned on 9 January 2023) —AABRD 120 S = S S = = = 120
Mr. Wong Heung Ming, Henry EABLE 120 - - - - - - -
Mr. Cai Jianquan BRREL(RZ22=F
(Resigned on 9 January 2023) —AABRD 120 - - - - - - - 120
TAHAERERAT T _FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B IBERRMEE

42 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2021: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2021: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services (2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

There is no other loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, bodies corporate
controlled by and entities connected with all directors
of the Company as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

SHIFANG HOLDING LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

42 EFMmKkiEm (FE(AER
1) (35622F) F3831% A F]
REBEFFmEN) R (B
622GE) k&R LHRAR
ERRE) ()

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

EEBRNEF
FR BEEE B WEEHR WERE
PRAREN (CEZ—F 18 -

ERRILEREEF
FAHESE D WEER YER
EARLLEEBEN (TFZ—F:
) o

MRHESREREZE=FXT
BHRE
REE_E__&+_-_B=+—
BIEFE > AABMEMIBHES
fREAERE=AZNTRE (ZF
“——F i@

BERAUERE -RZEEFEN
NZEABBERZEESZHME
BERASRDANER EER

REMRZZHER
R_E__F#+-ZB=+—H %

BEMUER - REREMBEES
ERINEANBEREATFREE
ENHEBEASRaANEME
PEERRHEMRZZH (ZF
——F e

EENRS ZHAGHINE
At

S 2R B 6 9 AE 0 By 8 30 48 A )
HAARMAERERTILMA
NEEFERAHEERERRE
EHNEARRZ RHHGHTFE-
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